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36359
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000-438-702-000
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7/F Basic Petroleum Bldg., 104 Carlos Palanca St., Legaspi Village, Makati City
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October 23, 2019 at 3:00 P.M. Dusit Thani Hotel, Arnaiz Avenue, Makati City
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Oct 1, 2019

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations: 
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N/A

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA 
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding



 Yes  No 

Common shares 2,815,392,714

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange? 
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the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.
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Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books 

Start Date Oct 2, 2019
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Filed on behalf by:
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1. Check the appropriate box;

_ Preliminary Proxy Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter BASIC ENERGV CORPORATION

3. Incorporated in the Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC Identification Number 36359

5. BIR Tax Identification Code 000-438-702

6. 7/F Basic Petroleum Bldg.. C. Palanca St.. Leqaspi Vill.. Makati City 1229

Address of principal office Postal Code

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code +63(2)817-8596 & 98

8. October 23. 2019 at 3:00 P.M. at the Dusit Thani Hotel. Arnaiz Avenue. Makati City

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to the
security holders. October 1. 2019

10. Name of Persons other than the Registrant Filing Proxy Statement

NONE

Address^

Phone Number

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code (information on number of
shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock

Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common 2.815.392.714

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes No

If so, disclose name of the Exchange: Philippine Stock Exchange



PARTI

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM I. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION (the Corporation)
will be held on Wednesday, October 23, 2019, at 3:00 P.M. at the Dusit Thani Hotel, Arnaiz Avenue,
Makati City

The complete mailing address of the principal office of the Corporation Is:
7*^ Floor, Basic Petroleum BIdg.
104 C. Palanca Jr. St., Legaspi Village
Makati City

RECORD DATE

The record date for the purpose of determining stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the
Annual Stockholders Meeting is October 1, 2019.

APPROXIMATE DATE OF RELEASE OF PROXY STATEMENT AND PROXY FORM

Date: October 1, 2019

ITEM II - DISSENTERS' RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

The appraisal right of dissenting stockholders Is governed by Sec. 80-85 of the Revised Corporation
Code, which provide as follows:

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against (1) an
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation that changes or restricts the rights of any stockholder or
class of shares, or authorizes preferences in any respect superior to the outstanding shares of any
class, or extends or shortens the corporate existence; (2) a sale, lease, exchange, transfer,
mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate property and assets;
(3) a merger and consolidation; and (4) investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than
the primary purpose of the corporation. The dissenting stockholder who votes against any of the
aforementioned proposed corporate action shall make a written demand on the corporation for
payment of the fair value of his share(s), within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the
vote was taken. Failure to make the written demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of
the appraisal right.

If the proposed corporate action is implemented, the corporation shall pay the stockholder, upon
surrender of the certificate/s of stock representing the stockholder's shares, the fair value thereof as
of the day before the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of
such corporate action.

If within sixty (60) days from the approval of the corporate action by the stockholders, the
withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the shares, it shall be
determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named by the
stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The findings of the
majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the corporation within thirty
(30) days after such award is made. No payment shall be made to any withdrawing stockholder
unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such payment. Upon



payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer
his shares to the corporation.

From the time of the demand by the dissenting stockholder until either the abandonment of the
corporate action involved or the purchase of the shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to
such shares, including voting and dividend rights shall be suspended. However, if the dissenting
stockholder is not paid the value of his shares within the said 30 days after the award, his voting
and dividend rights shall immediately be restored.

The right of the dissenting stockholder to be paid the fair value of his shares shall cease {i) if the
demand for payment is withdrawn with the consent of the corporation, if the corporate action
Involved is abandoned or rescinded by the corporation or Is disapproved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), if its approval is required, or if the SEC determines that the
stockholder is not entitled to appraisal rights. In such cases, the status as stockholder shall be
restored and all dividend distributions which would have been accrued on the shares shall be paid
to the stockholder.

ITEM III - INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No director or officer of the Corporation or nominee for election as director, or officer of the
Corporation, or past director or officer of the Corporation at anytime since the beginning of the last
fiscal year, and to the best knowledge of the Corporation, no associate of a director or officer or
nominee for election as director or officer of the Corporation has any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, other than the election to office as directors of the incumbent directors.

The Corporation has not received any information from a director or nominee-director of the
Corporation, either verbally or in writing of his/her intention to oppose any action to be taken by the
Corporation at the annual stockholders meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM IV - VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

a) Number of common shares — 4,660,267,714 shares (inclusive of subscribed and unpaid
shares), as of August 31, 2019. Each share is entitled to one vote, subject to cumulative voting,
as explained below. There are no restrictions that limit the payment of dividends on common
shares.

b) Record Date - October 1, 2019.

c) Voting Rights - At the annual meeting of stockholders, every stockholder entitled to vote shall
have the right to vote the number of shares of stocks standing in his own name in the stock
books of the corporation at the time of the meeting. In the election of directors, a stockholder
may: (a) vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected;
(b) cumulate said shares and give one (1) candidate as many votes as the number of directors
to be elected multiplied by the number of the shares owned; or (c) distribute them on the same
principle among as many candidates as may be seen fit, provided that the total number of votes
cast shall not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholder as shown in the books of
the corporation multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected. No delinquent stock
shall be voted.



d) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

The entity known to the Registrant to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the Corporation's outstanding common shares as of August 31, 2019 are;

(1)Title
of Class

(2)Name & Address of
Record Owner &

Relationship with
Issuer

(3) Name of
Beneficial

Ownership
and

Relationship
with

Record Owner

(4)Citizen
-ship of
Record

Owner

(5) No. of
Shares Held &

Nature of

Ownership
(Record/
Beneficial)

(6)
Percent

age

Common

Shares

Philippine Depository and
Trust Corporation*
37/F Tower 1, Enterprise
Center, Ayala Avenue,
Makati City (No relationship
with the Corporation)

Various

Participants
of PCD

Filipino 2,375,902,213

(Record)
84.39%

Common

Shares

Meta Corporation Public
Company Limited (formerly
Vintage Engineering Public
Company Limited)
33/4 the 9'^ Towers, Grand
Rama 9 Tower A, 36^^
Floor, Rama 9 Road, Huay
Kwang, Huay Kwang,
Bangkok, Thailand
(no relationship with the
Corporation)

N.A. Company
is

registered
in

Thailand

255,274,202 9.07

^Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation (PDTC") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Philippine Central Depository, Inc. ("POD"), which acts as trustee-nominee for all shares
lodged in the POD system. It was formerly known as the POD Nominee Corporation. The
beneficial owner of such shares are PCD's participants who hold the shares on their behalf or
on behalf of their clients.

PCD is a private corporation organized to implement an automated book entry system of
handling securities transactions in the Philippines. Under the PCD procedures, when an
issuer of a PCD-eligible issue will hold a stockholders' meeting, the PCD shall execute a pro-
forma proxy in favor of its participants for the total number of shares in their respective
principal security account as well as for the total number of shares in their client securities
account. For the shares held in the principal securities account, the participant concerned is
appointed as proxy with full voting rights and powers as registered owner of such shares. For
the shares held in the client securities account, the participant concerned is appointed as
proxy, with the obligation to constitute a sub-proxy in favor of its clients with full voting and
other rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by such clients.

Meta Corporation Public Company Limited ( formerly Vintage Engineering Public Company
Limited) or META is a listed company in the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and registered as a
public company in Thailand with principal offices at 33/4 the 9'^ Towers, Grand Rama 9 Tower
A, 36"^ Floor, Rama 9 Road. Huay Kwang, Huay Kwang, Bangkok, Thailand. It is one of the
most active companies operating in the field of renewable energy in Thailand today.



Transforming from its initial business of mechanical and electrical engineering in 1992, META's
business strategy is to be a fully integrated business focusing on developing a strong and
robust portfolio of power plant projects, while expanding its engineering business as an EPC
contractor and an O&M operator. Its current principal officers are Mr, Soraj Rojanabenjakul,
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Executive Committee, Mr. Supasit
Pokinjaruras, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Aung Thiha, Executive Director and Mrs, Aranya No-
in. Chief Financial Officer.

Three (3) PDTC participants hold more than five percent (5%) of the Corporation's total
outstanding and issued common shares of stock, as of August 31, 2019, namely; Philstocks
Financial, Inc. {243,662.973 shares) COL Financial Group, Inc., (162,130,646 shares), and
Unicapital Securities, Inc. (143,879,064 shares). None of the clients of said participants were
reported to own more than 5% of the Corporation's total outstanding and issued common
shares.

As of August 31, 2019, out of the 2,815,392,714 issued and outstanding shares of the
Corporation, 2,410,465,915 shares or 86,62% are held by the public, while 2,557,817,869
shares equivalent to 90.85% are held by Filipino citizens and 257,574,845 shares equivalent
to 9.15% are held by foreigners,

(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Key Officers

The following are the number of common shares known to the Corporation to be owned beneficially
and/or of record by the incumbent directors and key officers of the Corporation, and the percentage
of shareholdings of each, as of August 31, 2019:

DIRECTORS

Title of Class Name of Beneficial

Owner

Amount of Beneficial

Ownership & Relationship

w/ Beneficial Owner Citizenship Percentage

Common Oscar C. De Venecia 110,000 (direct)

13,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.469£

Common Francis C. Chua 2  (direct)

13,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.46%

Common Ramon L Mapa 268,635 (direct)

3,000,000) (indirect)

Filipino 0.35%

Common Oscar L De Venecia, Jr. 516,334 (direct)

9,025,OOO(indirect)

Filipino 0.12%

Common Ma. Fiorina M. Chan 100,000 (direct)

13,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.46%

Common Eduardo V. Manalac 10,000 (direct)

8,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.28%

Common Jaime J. Martirez 10,000 (direct)

15,025,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.53%

Common IsidoroO.Tan 24,822,276 (direct)

13,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 1.34%

Common Oscar S. Reyes 10,000 (direct)

13,000,000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.46%

Common Harvey L N. Dychiao 10,000 (direct) Filipino .0%

Common Srinarin Poudpongpaiboon 10,000 (direct) Thai 0%

TOTAL 125,917,247 4.47%



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Title of Class Name of BeneHclal

Owner

Amount of Beneficial

Ownership &

Relationship

w/ Beneficial

Owner

Citizenship Percentage

Common Alberto P. Mortllo 303,185 (direct)

1,350, 000 (indirect)

Filipino 0.06%

Common Corazon M. Bejasa 100,000 (indirect) Filipino .

Common Angel P. Gahol 1,476 (direct) Filipino .

TOTAL 1,754,661 0.06%

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS AS A GROUP

Title of Class Name of Beneficial

Owner

Amount of Beneficial

Ownership & Relationship
w/ Beneficial Owner Citizenship Percentage

Common Directors as a Group 25,757,247(direct)

100,050,000(indirect)

Filipino 0.95%

3.69%

Executive Officers as a

Group
304,661(direct)

1,550,000 (indirect)
Filipino 0.01%

0.05%

TOTAL 127,671,908 4.70%

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

None of the directors and officers owns 5% or more of the outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation. The Corporation is not also aware of any person holding 5% or more of the
Corporation's outstanding shares under a voting trust agreement or similar agreement.

Changes In Control

Management is not aware of any existing arrangement which may result In a change in control of
the Corporation by stockholders.

ITEM V - DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following are the incumbent directors of the Corporation;

Name

Oscar C. De Venecia

Francis C. Chua

Ramon L. Mapa
Oscar L. de Venecia, Jr.
Ma. Fiorina M. Chan

Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao
Eduardo V. Manalac

Jaime J. Martirez

Srinarin Poudpongpaiboon
Oscar S. Reyes
Isidore O. Tan

Period of Service

1988 to July 12, 2007; February 12, 2009 up to the present
1998 up to the present
1976 up to the present
1999-2006; March 30, 2007 up to the present
April 3, 2008 up to the present
July 29, 2015 up to the present
September 30, 2009 up to the present
October 10, 2007 up to the present
May 7, 2019 up to the present
April 04, 2007 up to the present
1993 up to the present

Each director of the Corporation holds office for a one (1) year term beginning on the date of his
election and expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders next after his election and until his
successor shall have been elected and qualified.



NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Corporation, upon endorsement of the Nominating Committee
composed of Mr. Oscar C. De Venecia, as Chairman, with Mr. Francis C. Chua, Mr. Ramon L.
Mapa, Mr. Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr., and Mr. Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao as members, has
approved the nomination of the following as directors for election at the annual meeting of
stockholders:

Oscar C. De Venecia (incumbent director)
Francis C. Chua (incumbent director)
Ramon L. Mapa (incumbent director)
Oscar L. de Venecia, Jr. (incumbent director)
Ma. Fiorina M. Chan(incumbent director)
Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao (incumbent director)
Eduardo V. Manalac (incumbent director)
Jaime J. Martirez (incumbent director)
Srinarin Poudpongpaiboon (incumbent director)
Oscar S. Reyes (incumbent director)
Isidoro O. Tan (incumbent director)

From the above nominees, the following are nominated as Independent Directors:

Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao (incumbent director)
Eduardo V. Manalac (incumbent director)
Oscar S. Reyes (incumbent director)

The Nominating Committee has determined that all the nominees possess all the qualifications and
have none of the disqualifications for directorship as prescribed in the Corporation's By-Laws and
Manual of Corporate Governance. None of the directors and officers of the Corporation are
connected with any government instrumentality, agency or office.

For the purpose of electing the independent directors, the Nominating Committee adopted the
independence criteria set out in the Corporation's Manual of Corporate Governance, Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code and the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed
Companies. The independent directors-nominees, namely: Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao, Eduardo
V. Manalac and Oscar S. Reyes, are not officers or employees of the Corporation nor any of its
subsidiaries, and are free from any business or other relationship with the Corporation which could
or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgments in carrying out their responsibilities as independent directors.

The nominees for election as independent directors of the Board of Directors were nominated, as
follows:

Nominee Nominating Partv Relationship

Harvey Lawrence N. Dychiao Oscar C. De Venecia none
Eduardo V. Manalac Oscar C. De Venecia none
Oscar S. Reyes Oscar C. De Venecia none

None of the above directors declined to stand for election to the Board of Directors because of any
disagreement with the Corporation or any matter relating to the Corporation's operations, policies or
practices.

Board Committees

The present members of the Audit Committee, which reviews the audit plans, reports and findings of
the internal and external auditors of the Corporation, among others, are:



Oscar S. Reyes (Independent Director)
Harvey L. N. Dychiao (Independent Director)
Eduardo V. Manalac (Independent Director)
Jaime J. Martirez

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

The present members of the Nominating Committee, which reviews the qualifications of nominees
to the Board of Directors and the key officers of the Corporation, are:

Oscar C. De Venecia

Francis C. Chua

Oscar L. De Venecia. Jr.

Ramon L. Mapa
Harvey L. N. Dychiao (Independent Director)

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

The present members of the Corporate Governance Committee, which is responsible for
maintaining and ensuring good governance of the Corporation, are:

Harvey L. N. Dychiao (Independent Director)
Eduardo V. Manalac (Independent Director)
Oscar S. Reyes (Independent Director)
Ma. Fiorina M. Chan

Francis C. Chua

Jaime J. Martirez

Isidore O. Tan

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

The present members of the Risk Committee, which is in charge of identifying the risks involved in
all project and investment proposals, assessing its impact on the Corporation and adopting policies
for the management of these risks, are:

Jaime J. Martirez

Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr.
Ma. Fiorina M. Chan

Harvey L.N. Dychiao (Independent Director)
Eduardo V.Manalac (Independent Director)
Oscar S. Reyes (Independent Director)

The following are the incumbent officers of the Corporation:

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Oscar C. De Venecia

Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr.
Alain S. Pangan
Corazon M. Bejasa
Alberto P. Morillo

Angel P. Gahol
Darius A. Marasigan

Chairman

President & CEO

VP for Finance

VP - Corporate Secretary
VP for Operations
AVP-Compliance Officer
Risk Management Officer

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The following are the names, ages, positions and period of service in the Corporation of the
nominees for election as directors for the term 2019-2020, and present key officers of the
Corporation, and their business experiences for the last five (5) years:

i



DIRECTORS

OSCAR C. DE VENECIA, 87 years old, Filipino, is the Chairman of the Board. Prior thereto, he
held several positions in the Corporation: as the Executive Vice President of the Corporation and
director in 1972; became President and CEO in 1980; and was elected as Chairman of the Board &

CEO from 1988 to July 12, 2007. He served as Chairman of the Advisory Board from July 12, 2007
to February 11, 2009 before assuming the position of Chairman of the Board on February 12, 2009.
He is also the Chairman of the subsidiaries of the Corporation, namely: Basic Biofuels Corporation ,
Basic Diversified Holdings, Inc., Basic Geothermal Energy Corporation, Basic Renewables, Inc.,.
IBasic, Inc., and Southwest Resources, Inc..

He is a member of the Advisory Board of the Philippines Trade Foundation and was a director of the
Manila Economic & Cultural Office (MECO), an Independent Director of the Export & Industry Bank
and he was a director of the Pangasinan Economic Development Foundation, Inc. He is Past
Chairman and President, now Senior Adviser, of the Petroleum Association of the Philippines.

He was the Honorary Consul General of Ukraine in the Philippines and Past Dean of the Consular
Corps of the Philippines. On September 12, 2017, he was awarded the Distinguished Service Award
from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Ukraine. He is a Rear Admiral of the Philippine Coast Guard
Auxiliary and a former Trustee of the Free Rural Eye Clinic Foundation, Inc. in San Fabian,
Pangasinan. He is a Past President of the National Association of Mapua Alumni and a life member
of the Management Association of the Philippines.

He was one of the Ten Most Outstanding Alumni in 1980 in the field of Civil Engineering and in the
field of Civic Involvement in 1991, conferred by the Mapua Institute of Technology and National
Association of Mapua Alumni; one of the Ten Most Outstanding Civil Engineers of the Philippines in
1980 conferred by the Philippine Institute of Civil Engineers; one of the 1981 Ten Most Outstanding
Citizens of Dagupan City in the category of Business and Industry; one of the recipients of a
Presidential Commendation on the discovery of commercial oil in the West Linapacan Field, from
President Corazon C. Aquino on January 19, 1992; awarded a Plaque of Appreciation in recognition
of his achievements as Chairman of the National PolioPlus Committee in the Philippines,
Department of Health from President Fidel V. Ramos and an awardee of the "Chevalier Dans
L'Ordre National Du Merite" from the French Government on February 10, 2004.

He is a Past President of the Rotary Club of Makati West and Past District Governor of Rotary
International, District 3830; Past Chairman of the Rotary Golfing Fellowship Foundation of the
Philippines, Inc.; and Past Chairman, Philippine College of Rotary Governors, Inc. (1997-1998). He
has received numerous awards and recognitions: Awarded Plaque of Appreciation by the Rotary
Foundation as Chairman of the National PolioPlus Immunization Committee (1992-2001) when the
Philippines was certified Polio Free by the WHO on October 29, 2000; Multiple Paul Harris Fellow;
Major Gift Donor; Volunteer and Benefactor of R.I.; Awardee, "Special Rotary International
Presidential World Understanding and Peace Award" given by R.I. President Stan McCaffrey as
President of the Rotary Club of Makati West during the 1982 R.I. Convention in Dallas, Texas,
U.S.A.; Awardee, "Citation for Meritorious Service" and "Distinguished Service Award" from The
Rotary International Foundation; Awardee, "President's Golden Century Citation" from R.I. President
Herbert G. Brown; Awardee, "Regional Service Award for a Polio-Free World" from The Rotary
International Foundation; Awardee, "Service Above Self Award", Rotary International, and the Polio
Plus Pioneer Service Award from the Rotary International Foundation Trustees for 2017-2018. He
was the Representative of District 3830 to the 2004 Rotary International Council on Legislation,
Chicago, Illinois. He represented the President of Rotary International in various Rotary district
conferences in the Philippines, Australia. India, Korea and Japan,



He was conferred the degree of Doctor of Humanities (Honoris Causa) by the Central Luzon State
University on June 30, 2017.

FRANCIS C. CHUA, 69 years old, Filipino, Is a director of the Corporation since 1998, a Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Directors and Director of the various subsidiaries of the Corporation
since November, 2007. He is a member of the Board of Governors of the Philippine Stock
Exchange, Vice Chairman of Bank of Commerce ( a director since 2008) and a director of NGCP
since 2009.

He was the Special Envoy on Trade and Investments of the Department of Foreign Affairs from
June, 2007 to May 2010. He is the Honorary Trade and Investment Representative of the
Department of Trade and Industry since 2002. He is also the Honorary Consulate General of the
Republic of Peru in Manila, since 2006. He was a Special Adviser on Economic Affairs, Office of the
Speaker of the House of Representatives, Congress of the Philippines in 1997 and member of the
Board of Trustees of the Technical Education and Skills Development Authority from 2006 to 2009.
He was the Chairman and President of BA Securities; President of the Philippine Satellite
Corporation, and Vice-Chairman/Treasurer of Mabuhay Satellite Corporation.

For his civic affiliations, among others, he is the Honorary President of the Federation of Filipino
Chinese Chambers of Commerce & Industry, past President of the Chamber of Commerce of the
Philippines Foundation; and Chairman Emeritus of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce &
Industry.

He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering from the University of the
Philippines, in 1967, and was conferred Doctor of Humanities. Honoris Causa from the Central
Luzon State University.

RAMON L. MAPA, 75 years old, Filipino, is a director of the Corporation since 1976 and a Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors since October, 2007 and director of the various subsidiaries of
Corporation. He is the Vice Chairman and Treasurer of Sicogon Development Corporation,
Treasurer of Optimum Asia Realty & Development Corporation, Director of Sta. Elena Properties,
Inc., since 2002, and Director and Treasurer of Maple Agricultural Corporation, and Maple Realty
Corporation since 2002. He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Arts, major in Economics from the
Ateneo University in 1965 and earned MBA credits also at the Ateneo University in 1966.

OSCAR L. DE VENECIA, JR., 52 years old, Filipino, is a director and the President and CEO of the
Corporation. He was the Executive Vice President & COO of the Corporation since April 04, 2007
and was appointed as President & CEO of the Corporation in August, 2011. He has served the
Corporation in various executive positions, namely, as SVP and COO from June, 1997 up to June,
2001 and was the President and CEO from December, 2002 up to November, 2005. He is the
President of Basic Geothermal Energy Corporation, Basic Renewables, Inc. and Basic Biofuels
Corporation, and Basic Diversified Industrial Holdings, Inc., the Chairman and President of iBasic,
Inc., director of Basic Consolidated International, Inc. and President of Southwest Resources, Inc.

He was the President of Forum Energy Philippines, Inc. from November 2005 to April 2007,
Chairman and CEO of Blue Bamboo Solutions, Inc. from September, 2002 to December, 2005, a
Consultant for Strategic Alliance Development Corporation from March, 2002 and moved as
Business Development Manager of Stradcom Corporation from May to November, 2002. He was
the President of the Rotary Club of Makati East for the Rotary Year 2010-2011, and is a member of
the Management Association of the Philippines. He was appointed Honorary Vice Consul of the
Consulate of Ukraine in the Philippines covering the Clark-Subic Economic Zone from February 18,
2011 to March 15, 2019.

He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Fordham University, New York City
in 1996.
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MA. FLORINA M. CHAN, 63 years old, Filipino, is a Director of the Corporation since April 3, 2008
and director of the various subsidiaries of the Corporation since 2008. She was the President &
COO of Philippine Commercial Capital, Inc., with which she was employed from July 16, 1982 to
March 31, 2011. She was also a director of PCCI Securities Brokers Corporation, International
Capital Corporation and PCCI Equities, Inc., since 2005. She obtained her degree in Bachelor of
Science in Business Economics at the University of the Philippines in 1977 and Master in Business
Administration at the Fordham University in 1980.

HARVEY LAWRENCE N. DYCHIAO, 41 years old, Filipino, Is an Independent Director of the
Corporation (a director since July, 2015). He is the Managing Director of Bonifacio Capital Group,
Inc. He is a New York and Philippine-qualified lawyer with extensive transactional experience in
mergers and acquisitions, venture capital and financings. His experience includes advising in
relation to project development, capital raisings, privatizations, and structured finance transactions.
His sector focus includes energy, retail, mining, real estate, consumer finance and goods. He was a
member of the privatization and special projects team of the Department of Finance of the
Philippines. He attended Harvard Law School.

EDUARDO V. MANALAC, 73 years old, Filipino, and is an Independent Director of the Corporation
(a director since October, 2009). He is the President of TransEnergy Intemational Limited and Vires
Energy Corporation Philippines. From 2003 to late 2004, Mr. Mahalac was Undersecretary of the
Department of Energy (DOE) of the Philippines, where, among other achievements, he promoted
the standardization and use of coconut biodiesel, which highlighted the DOE's participation in
developing the "Biofuels Law." He instituted a transparent new system for the awarding of oil service
contracts, that led to the First Philippine Contracting Round in 2003. He was appointed President
and CEO of the Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC) on August, 30, 2004, President and CEO
of the PNOC Exploration Corporation (PNOC-EC) in September, 2004, and subsequently Chairman
of the PNOC Energy Development Corporation (PNOC-EDC) within the same period. Mr. Mahalac
also initiated international cooperative meetings that led to the historic signing of the Tripartite
Agreement for a Joint Marine Seismic Undertaking in the South China Sea between the Philippines
(PNOC), China (China National Offshore Oil Corporation), and Vietnam (Petrovietnam).

Prior to 2003, he was an executive for the Oklahoma-based Phillips Petroleum Company, now
Conoco Phillips based in Houston Texas. He served as Exploration Manager for Latin
America/Asia/Former Soviet Union from 1981-85 and was then assigned to head Phillips Petroleum
Company Indonesia as its Managing Director from 1985-87. He was also President and General
Manager of Phillips Pakistan from 1987-89 and Exploration Manager for Latin America from 1989-
95. His last posting with Phillips was China, where, as Vice-President and Exploration Manager for
Phillips China, he discovered the giant Peng Lai oil field in northern China's Bohai Bay in 1999, For
this reason, and for other outstanding achievements, the government of the People's Republic of
China honoured him with its Friendship Award in 2001, and its first-ever Foreign Model Worker
Award in 2002.

Mr. Mahalac attended the University of the Philippines in Diliman, Q.C. Philippines, which conferred
on him an Outstanding Alumni Award in 2005. He graduated from UP with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Geology in 1967, and completed post-Graduate studies in petroleum geology through
1969.

JAIME J. MARTIREZ, 65 years old, Filipino, is a director of the Corporation and its subsidiaries
since October, 2007. He is the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Unicapital Group. He is
also the President and Chief Executive Officer of Unicapital Finance and Investments, Inc.,
Unicapital, Inc., and Unicapital Securities, Inc. on a concurrent capacity. He holds other key
positions in several private and publicly listed corporations that are engaged in the fields of real
estate, water distribution and information technology. He is a director of Majaico, Inc., a diversified
holding corporation, in Malayan Savings Bank, in Acme Pawnshops, Inc. and in MJ Holdings, Inc., a

11



real estate company engaged in commercial property development in the Makati Central Business
District and President of Unoventure, Inc., a PEZA registered enterprise facilities provider. He also
sits as Director of Des Eaux Utilities Co., Inc., a bulk water provider of several local water districts in
Bulacan.

Mr. Martirez is a member of the Makati Business Club, charter member of the Makati Rotary Club
and past director of the Philippine Finance Association. He has acquired and developed
professional expertise in the field of Investment Banking for the last 41 years, since 1976.

He obtained his degree in Business Administration from De La Salle University in 1975 and
completed his post graduate courses from the Ateneo Graduate School of Business in 1979.

SRINARIN POUDPONGPAIBOON, 36 years old, a Thai national, was recently elected as director
of the Corporation. She is presently the Deputy Managing Director of Green Earth Power (Thailand)
Company Limited, an affiliate of Meta Corporation and two (2) other prominent publicly listed
companies in Thailand, which is the owner of the 220 MW Minbu Solar Power Plant project in
Myanmar. Prior to this position, in 2016, she was the Senior Manager, Development and
investment Division of Singha Estate Public Company Limited ( Thailand) and earlier, she was
Assistant Vice President, Senior Analyst- Real Estate Sector Head (Research and Analysis) of
Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited ( Thailand).

She obtained a Master of Science degree in Real Estate Development from Columbia University,
New York, USA, in 2009 and a Bachelor of Business Administration (International Program) from
Thammasat University (Thailand) in 2003, graduating with Second-Class Honours.

OSCAR S. REYES, 73 years old, Filipino, and a director of the Corporation and its subsidiaries
since June 2007. He was the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Manila Electric
Corporation and Chairman/Director of various Manila Electric Company Subsidiaries and Affiliates
until May 31, 2019. Among his other current positions are: Member of the Advisory Board of
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company, and Member of the Advisory Council of the Bank of
the Philippine Islands. He is the Chairman of Pepsi Cola Products Philippines, Inc., and a director
of PLDT Communications & Energy Ventures Inc., and the Asian Eye Institute. He is an
independent director of Manila Water Co., Cosco Capital Inc., Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc.. Sun
Life Prosperity Funds, Grepalife Dollar Bond Fund Corporation, Grepalife Fixed Income Fund
Corporation, Grepalife Bond Fund Corporation, Petrolift Inc. and Eramen Minerals, Inc. He was
recently elected as Independent Director of the Philippine Dealing System Holdings Corp.,
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation, Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation, Philippine
Securities Settlement Corporation and Team Energy Corporation. Prior to the above positions,
he served the Shell Companies in the Philippines in various capacities, including Country
Chairman and concurrently President of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, and Managing
Director of Shell Philippines Exploration B.V.

He finished his Bachelor of Arts Major in Economics (Cum Laude) degree at the Ateneo de Manila
University in 1965. He took post-graduate studies at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.
Waterloo Lutheran University and the Harvard Business School

ISIDORO O. TAN, 71 years old, Filipino, is a director of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, since
1993. He is also the President & Director of Filspin, Inc. for the last thirty (30) years. He obtained his
degree in Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering at the Adamson University in 1969.

OFFICERS

CORAZON M. BEJASA, 72 years old, Filipino, is the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation with
the rank of Vice President since July 12, 2007. She was Head, Legal and Human Resources of
ValueGen Insurance Corporation and Banclife Insurance Corporation from 2002 to 2006. Earlier,
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she was Corporate Secretary and Senior Vice President for Support Services and occupied various
department head positions for legal, human resources, credit, administration, mortgage banking and
consumer banking at Urban Bank from 1983 to 2000. She obtained her Bachelor of Laws from the
University of Santo Tomas, graduating with Magna Cum Laude honours in 1972 and placed No. 8
in 1972 Bar Examinations.

ALBERTO P. MORILLO, 64 years old, Filipino, is the Vice-President for Operations since 2007. He
first joined the Corporation in July 1987 as Geologist and became Vice President in 1989 until 1997.
He continued serving the Corporation as a Consultant from 1997 and was rehired as Vice President
for Petroleum Operations in 2007. His earlier work included stints as Geologist in various
exploration and mining companies including PNOC - Exploration Corporation, Semirara Coal
Corporation and Jasra Kutei Basin Ltd. in Indonesia, among others. He is also concurrently a
Director of First Exploration and Development Services, a technical consultancy firm. He obtained
his Bachelor of Science degree in Geology from the University of the Philippines in 1978, and has
earned MBA units from the Ateneo de Manila University. He has taken the Management
Development Program from the Asian Institute of Management in 1994, and an MS in Computer
Science (pending thesis) from the AMA Computer College in 2001.

ALAIN S. PANGAN, 40 years old, Filipino, a Certified Public Accountant, and was engaged as Vice
President for Finance effective January, 2018. He was the Investment and Treasury Manager of
Enfinity Philippines Services, Inc., a renewable energy company with international activities in solar
and wind energy, for more than three (3) years prior to his employment with the Company. He had
more than five (5) years of audit, compliance and consulting work with reputable Philippine audit
firms. He obtained his Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the Far Eastern University in 2003.

ANGEL P. GAHOL, 66 years old, Filipino, is the Assistant Vice President- Legal Department of the
Corporation since August 15, 2006. He is the Assistant Corporate Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Corporation. He has been the Legal and Human Resources Manager of the PHINMA's
industrial estate, Bacnotan Industrial Park Corporation,.and Bacnotan Steel Industries. Inc. from
1997 to 2002 and of the mini-steel mill plant project located in Calaca, Batangas as HRD Manager
on a concurrent basis. He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Arts, major in Economics, from the
University of Santo Tomas in 1973 and his degree in Bachelor of Laws from the same university in
1979.

DARIUS A. MARASIGAN, 48 years old, Filipino, is the Risk Management Officer of the
Corporation. He rendered consultancy services on renewable energy projects for Restored Energy
Development Corporation of the Armadillo Group of Companies from August, 2012 to April. 2014,
and for PNOC Renewables Corporation from November, 2010 to August 2013. He was Senior
Planning Officer at the PPP Center of the Philippines of NEDA from July, 2007 to October, 2010.
He graduated from the Mapua Institute of Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electrical Engineering, in 1994.

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

The key officers of the Corporation who are expected to make a significant contribution to the
business of the Corporation consist of the above-named directors holding executive positions and
officers. To retain these key officers, the employee benefits of the Corporation as defined in its
Personnel Manual, may be upgraded when warranted by an improved financial condition of the
Corporation, to make these benefits competitive with the industry.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

Mr. Oscar L. de Venecia. Jr., President & CEO, Is the son of Mr. Oscar C. De Venecia, the
Chairman of the Corporation. There are no other family relationships within the fourth civil degree
known to the Corporation among the rest of the directors, nominees and executive officers of the
Corporation.
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INVOLVEMENT IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Corporation is not aware of any bankruptcy proceedings filed against any of Its directors or
executive officers, nor of any criminal conviction or final judgment barring or limiting any business
involvement or any order or judgment subjecting said directors or executive officers, or a violation of
a securities or commodities law or regulation filed against any of its directors or executive officers,
during the past five (5) years ending August 31, 2019.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

(1) On June 15, 2017, the Company signed an Investment Term Sheet with Solmax Power Limited,

(Solmax) a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is into acquiring, investing and
developing solar projects in Japan. The Company planned to invest in Solmax up to 80% of the

equity thereof, subject to satisfactory results of the due diligence work to be conducted by the
Company on Solmax and its solar projects. To enable the Company to undertake the due diligence
work, the Company made a refundable earnest money deposit with Solmax in the amount of JPY

50,000,000.00 on July 14, 2017. However, with the termination of the due diligence work, the
refundable deposit was returned in December, 2018 and formed part of the cash balance of the
Company as of December 31, 2018.

a) The transaction refers to a refundable earnest money deposit transaction made with
Solmax, which shall be converted to equity, upon satisfactory results of the due diligence
work conducted on Solmax and its solar projects. The deposit was made also to secure

exclusivity in the negotiations on the Company's equity investment in Solmax.

b) Vintage Holding Japan Company Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Vintage
Engineering Public Company Limited ( now Meta Corporation Public Company Limited), a
publicly listed company registered in Thailand, and a shareholder of the Company, will also
invest in Solmax, subject to favourable due diligence work results.

c) There was no transaction price for the equity investment which was agreed by the parties
as the due diligence work conducted by the Company on Solmax and its solar projects was
not completed.

d) There was no fairness opinion required for the transaction.

e) The due diligence work on Solmax and its solar projects could not be completed and was
thus terminated as of September 28, 2018.

(2) On November 9, 2017, the Company signed an Investment Term Sheet with Vintage
Engineering Public Company (VTE) (now Meta Corporation Public Company Limited), a publicly
listed company registered in Thailand, and a shareholder of the Company, to invest in Vintage EPC
Co. Ltd. (VEPC) and Vintage International Construction Co. Ltd. (VINTER), which are limited
companies registered in Thailand and which are then wholly owned by VTE, subject to satisfactory
results of the due diligence work to be conducted by the Company on said companies and their
projects.

VEPC and VINTER are the first counter-parties of GEP (Myanmar), the owner-developer of the 220
MW solar power plant located in the Minbu District, Magway region, Myanmar, for the supply and
construction service requirements of the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
subcontractor engaged for the said project. The Company planned to invest up to 15% of the total
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equities of VEPC and VINTER, with an option to increase up to 20%. As of December 31, 2017, the
Company had remitted a total amount of Phpl 33,284,474.91 as a refundable earnest money
deposit to enable the Company to conduct said due diligence work and to secure exclusivity in the
negotiations on the Company's equity investments in VEPC and VINTER. This amount was part of
"Refundable Deposits" booked under the "Assets" account in the Company's 2017 financial
statements. After satisfactory due diligence and upon finalizing the investment in both
aforementioned Thailand-based EPC companies on July 02, 2018, this amount was reclassified to
"Investment in Associates" in the Company's 2018 financial statements. Total balance of
"Investment in Associates" account of the Company in relation to the equity investment in VEPC and
VINTER amounted to Php214,816,955.00 as of August 31, 2019.

a) The transaction originally referred to a refundable earnest money deposit transaction
made with VTE, to be converted to equity in VEPC and VINTER, upon satisfactory results of
the due diligence work conducted on VEPC and VINTER and its EPC contracts. Upon
execution of the Share Purchase Agreements on June 27, 2018, the refundable earnest
money deposit was applied to the equity contributions of the Company, as stipulated in said
agreements.

b) Meta Corporation is one of the significant shareholders of the Company with total holdings
of 9.07% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Company, as of August 31, 2019.

c) The transaction price for the equity investments in VEPC and VINTER was mutually
agreed by the parties and stipulated in the Share Purchase Agreements executed by the
parties on June 27, 2018.

d) There was no fairness opinion required for the transaction.

e) The due diligence work on the said companies has been completed and the Share
Purchase Agreements were signed on June 27, 2018.

3) On November 23, 2017, Vintage Engineering Public Company Limited (VTE) ( now Meta
Corporation Public Company Limited), a publicly listed company registered in Thailand and an
existing shareholder of the Company, subscribed to an additional 104,816.332 shares of the
Company at a subscription price of PhpO.32 per share. On July 23, 2018, Meta Corporation
subscribed to an additional 106,892,000 shares of the Company at a subscription price of PhpO.25
per share.

a) The transactions were subscriptions by VTE/ Meta Corporation to additional shares of
stock of the Company, the proceeds of which are to be used for the Company's equity
investment in VEPC and VINTER and part as working capital of the Company.

b) VTE is one of the significant shareholders of the Company with total holdings of 9.07% of
the total issued and outstanding shares of the Company, as of June 30, 2019.

c) The subscription price of PhpO.32 per share for the 104,816,332 shares was a mutually
agreed price, based on a projected market value of the Company's shares, resulting from
the increase in the paid-in capital of the Company due to additional subscriptions made by
VTE/ Meta Corporation, while the subscription price of PhpO.25 per share for the
106,892,000 shares was based on the par value of the shares of the Company.

d) There was no fairness opinion required for the transaction.
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e) In an agreement executed with VTE on February 14, 2017, VTE has agreed to subscribe
to shares of stock the Company, up to 9% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the
Company.

4) On December 6, 2017, the Company signed an Investment Term Sheet with Innocent Biomass
Power GK (IBP), a limited liability company incorporated in Japan, which is into acquiring and
developing biomass projects in Japan. The Company planned to invest in IBP up to 10% of the
equity thereof, upon satisfactory results of the due diligence work to be conducted by the Company
on IBP and its biomass project. To enable the Company to undertake the due diligence work, the
Company made a refundable earnest money deposit with IBP in the amount of JPY34,063,800.00
on December 12, 2017. The peso equivalent of this amount is part of the "Refundable Deposits"
booked under the "Assets" account in the Company's 2018 financial statements.

a) The transaction refers to a refundable earnest money deposit transaction made with IBP,
which shall be converted to equity, upon satisfactory results of the due diligence work
conducted on IBP and its biomass project. The deposit was also made to secure exclusivity
in the negotiations on the Company's equity investment in IBP.

b) Vintage Holding Japan Company Limited, a limited company registered in Thailand and
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Vintage Engineering Public Company Limited, (now
Meta Corporation Public Company Limited), a publicly listed company registered in Thailand,
and a shareholder of the Company, will also invest in IBP, subject to satisfactory results of
the due diligence work.

c) No transaction price for the equity investment was agreed upon by the parties as the due
diligence work conducted by the Company on IBP and its biomass project was not
completed.

d) There was no fairness opinion required for the transaction.

e) The project was not pursued as the due diligence work on IBP and its biomass project
was terminated as of end March, 2019. .

(5) On December 6, 2018, the Company signed an Investment Term Sheet with Solmax Electric
Power Holdings IV Company Limited, (Solmax IV), a limited company incorporated in Taiwan, which
is into acquiring, investing and developing solar rooftop projects and other solar projects in Taiwan.
The Company planned to invest in Solmax IV up to 80% of the equity thereof, subject to satisfactory
results of the due diligence work to be conducted by the Company on Solmax tV and its solar
projects. To enable the Company to undertake the due diligence work, the Company made a
refundable earnest money deposit with Solmax IV in the amount of about US Dollars 444,960.75 on
January 3, 2019. The peso equivalent of this amount is part of "Refundable Deposits" booked under
the "Assets" account in the Company's 2019 financial statements.

a) The transaction refers to a refundable earnest money deposit transaction made with
Solmax IV, which shall be converted to equity, upon satisfactory results of the due diligence
work conducted on Solmax IV and its solar projects. The deposit was made also to secure
exclusivity in the negotiations on the Company's equity Investment in Solmax IV.
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b) There was no transaction price for the equity investment which was agreed by the parties
as the due diligence work conducted by the Company on Solmax IV and its solar projects
was not completed.

c) There was no fairness opinion required for the transaction.

d) The equity investment in Solmax IV was not pursued as the due diligence work on Solmax
IV and its solar projects was terminated as of end May. 2019.

(6) For the past three (3) years, there were no related party transactions with other parties that fall
outside of the definition of "related parties" under PAS/IAS No. 24 but with whom such parties may
be able to negotiate terms of material transactions with the Company that may not be available from
other clearly independent parties on an arm's length basis.

There has been no material transaction during the past three (3) years, nor was there any material
transaction, contractual or other commitments, currently on-going or being proposed, to which the
Company was or is to be a party with any incumbent director and/or executive officer of the
Company, disclosed or required to be disclosed in the financial statements of the Company
pursuant to PAS/IAS No. 24.

In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with its subsidiaries consisting of
non-interest bearing advances to finance the working capital requirements of these subsidiaries,
and provides assistance to its subsidiaries in carrying out certain administrative functions in
connection with its business operations.

ITEM VI - COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

NAME/POSITION FISCAL

YEAR

SALARIES BONUSES OTHER

COMPENSATION

Oscar L de Venecia, Jr.

President & COO

Corazon M. Bejasa

VP & Corporate Secretary

Alberto P. Morillo

VP-Operations

Alain S. Pangan

VP-Finance

Total 2019

2018

2017

7,547,241 (estimated)

11,102,118

9,326,096

628,937 (estimated)

817,079

751,205

-

All Other Officers as a

Group Unnamed

2019

2018

2017

1,484,613 (estimated)

2,535.529

2,535,529

123,718 (estimated)

200,563

200,563

-

The Directors of the Corporation do not receive compensation from the Corporation, except per
diems for attendance at Board and Committee Meetings at Php17,325.00 and Php 8,663.00 per
attendance, respectively. Except for the stock option plan discussed below and the existing
retirement plan for officers and employees of the Corporation, and the Management Contract of the
President & CEO, there is no other existing compensatory plan or arrangement covering bonuses,
profit-sharing, warrants, options and other rights for directors and officers of the Corporation, or
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which will arise from the resignation, retirement, expiration of term of employment, change in control
or change in the officer's responsibilities.

A stock option plan was approved by the stockholders at the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders,
whereby directors and members of the Advisory Board, officers and selected employees of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries, and other persons as determined by the Board of Directors shall be
granted the option to purchase shares of stock of the Corporation from its unissued capital stock at
par value, and exercisable on the 3"^ year from approval of the plan by the stockholders, subject to
such allocation of shares as may be approved by the Board of Directors, not to exceed the total of
500,000,000 shares (SOP shares). On June 18, 2010, the stockholders approved the extension of
the exercise period from July 12, 2010 to July 11, 2013. The details and mechanics of the plan have
been approved by the Board of Directors on July 29, 2011. The SEC has issued its Certificate of
Exemption from Registration requirements on September 8, 2011. The SOP shares were approved
for listing by the Philippine Stock Exchange- 26,700,000 shares in December, 2012 and
473,300,000 shares in July, 2013. As of August 31, 2019, 117.625,000 SOP shares have been
paid and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

ITEM VII. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. (SGV) was the Corporation's independent auditors for the year 2018.
The same auditing firm is being recommended for appointment as the Corporation's external auditor
for the year 2019 by the stockholders at the annual meeting of stockholders. Representatives of
SGV will be present during the annual meeting of stockholders and will be given the opportunity to
make a statement if they so desire. They are also expected to respond to appropriate questions
from stockholders, should there be any. SGV has accepted the Corporation's invitation to stand for
re-election this year.

Audit services of SGV for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 included the examination of the
books and consolidated financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, assistance in
the preparation of the Corporation's final income tax returns and other services related to filing of
reports made with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Bureau of Internal Revenue.
The audit fees for 2017 and 2018 were Php620,000.00 and Php 640,500.00, respectively. The audit
fees for 2017 were fully paid as of May 21, 2018, while the audit fees for 2018 were fully paid on
May 29, 2019.

There was no event in the past five (5) years where SGV and the Corporation had any
disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedures.

Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. SGV will be
recommended as the external auditor who will conduct the audit of the financial statements of the
Corporation for the fiscal year 2019, subject to approval by the stockholders. In compliance with
SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3(b)(iv) (Rotation of External Auditors), Ms. Leovina Mae V. Chu, was
assigned as partner-in-charge beginning with the 2017 audited financial statements.

ITEM VIII - COMPENSATION PLANS

There are no plans, under which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed to
directors and officers of the Corporation, which will be taken up at the annual meeting of
stockholders.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM IX - AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on May 7, 2019 approved the increase in the
Corporation's authorized capital stock from Php2.5 Billion consisting of 10 Billion shares to PhpS.O
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Billion consisting of 20 Billion shares, subject to the approval of stockholders at the annual
stockholders meeting, in anticipation of the entry of a new investor However, to date, discussions
are still on-going on the results of the due diligence work on the Corporation.

ITEM X - MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

There is no modification or exchange of securities which will be submitted for approval of
stockholders at the annual stockholders meeting.

ITEM XI - FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(a) 2018 Audited Financial Statements

The 2018 financial statements of the Corporation were audited by the Corporation's external
auditors;

SGV & Company
Mailing Address: SGV Building, 6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1226
Certifying Partner: Leovina Mae V. Chu
C.P.A. Certificate No. 99910

SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A {Group A) issued on October 18, 2018 valid
until October 17. 2021

Tax Identification No. 209-316-911

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-96-2018, February 2, 2018 valid until February 1,
2021

PTR No 7332629, January 3, 2019, Makati City

The Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of December 31, 2018 are
attached as part of this Information Statement.

(b) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosures

There are no disagreements with the Corporation's external auditors on any accounting principles or
practices, and financial statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedures in the 2017 audited
financial statements of the Corporation.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial reporting year,
except for the following revised and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations, based on
the International Financial Reporting Committee Interpretations, which the Company adopted as of
January 1, 2018, namely:

i. Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions. Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements;

ii. Adoption of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. PFRS reflects all phases of the financial
instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The Corporation has provided the required
information in the Notes to the 2018 consolidated financial statements; and

iti. Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4. The
amendments were not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have
activities that are predominantly connected with Insurance or issue insurance contracts.

iv. Adoption of PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. PFRS 15 supersedes PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other
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standards. Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

V. Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle). The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

vi. Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property. The Group's
current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of these amendments did
not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.

vii. Adoption of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the
adoption of these interpretations did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

The abovementioned amendments were applied retrospectively. However, their application has no
effect on the Corporation's financial position and performance as the Corporation has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

The above changes were disclosed in the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the
Corporation as of December 31, 2018.

(c ) Participation of Representatives of External Auditors

Representatives of SGV and Company, which audited the aforementioned financial statements of
the Corporation (i) are expected to be present at the annual meeting of stockholders (ii) will have the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so; and (iii)are expected to be available to
respond to appropriate questions from stockholders during said meeting.

(d) Incorporation by Reference

The following documents are incorporated herein by reference and are attachments to this
Information Statement:

(1) Notice of Annual Stockholders Meeting and Proxy Form;
(2) 2018 Management Report;
(3) Statement of Management's Responsibility for the 2018 ACFS;
(4) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (ACFS) of the Corporation as of

December 31, 2018; and
(5) Interim Unaudited Financial Statements for the Quarter and 2"^ Quarter of 2019.

ITEM XII - MERGER, CONSOLIDATION, ACQUISITION & SIMILAR MATTERS

There are no actions to be taken up at the annual meeting of stockholders which will involve the
merger or consolidation of the Corporation with another entity or acquisition by the Corporation of
any other going business or the assets thereof.

ITEM XIII - ACQUISITION/DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

There are no actions to be taken up at the annual meeting of stockholders which will involve the
acquisition or disposition of property, whether real or personal, of the Corporation.
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ITEM XIV - RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

There are no actions to be taken up at the annual meeting of stockholders which will involve the
restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account of the Corporation.

D. OTHER MATTERS

ITEM XV - ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS

The following actions on reports of the Corporation shall be submitted in the annual meeting of
stockholders:

(a) Approval of the Minutes of the 2018 Annual Stockholders' Meeting held on June 27, 2018,
which contain the following:

• Approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Stockholders' Meeting.
• Notation of the 2017 Management Report and the 2017 Audited Financial Statements.
• Ratification of all acts done by the Board of Directors and Management for the term 2017-2018.
• Election of the Directors of the Corporation for the term 2018-2019; and
• Creation of preferred shares and a corresponding amendment of Article Seventh of the Amended

Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation; and
• Appointment of SGV & Co. as the external auditor for the fiscal year 2018.

(b) Notation of the 2018 Management Report which shall include material information on the current
top twenty (20) stockholders of the Corporation and a detailed description and assessment of
the performance of the Corporation in 2018 and the plan for operations for 2019;

(c) Notation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending December 31,
2018, which shall include a statement of the adequacy of internal controls and risk management
systems, statement of external audit and non-audit fees, if any; dividend policy and in case of
non-payment of dividends, the reasons therefor;

(d) Ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the period covering the term
2018-2019, a list of which shall be attached in the agenda and shall be furnished to all
stockholders of the Corporation at the annual meeting of stockholders.

(e) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors including Independent Directors for the
ensuing year, which shall be preceded by a presentation of the material information on the
nominees, their profiles, attendance report, appraisal and performance report, compensation
report and disclosures on self-dealings and related party transactions, if any;

(f) Approval of the increase in the authorized capital stock of the Corporation from Php2.5 Billion
consisting of 10 Billion shares to PhpS.O Billion consisting of 20 Billion shares and the
corresponding amendment of Article Seventh of the Amended Articles of Incorporation;

(g) Approval of the amendment of Article II of the Amended By-Laws of the Corporation by adding a
new section as Section 10 creating the position of Chairman Emeritus: and

(h) Appointment of SGV & Co. as External Auditors for the 2019 financial statements.

ITEM XVI - MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

There are no matters to be taken up at the annual meeting of stockholders which are not required to
be submitted for stockholders' vote or approval.

ITEM XVII - AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS

The following amendments to the Amended Articles and Amended Bylaws of the Corporation shall
be submitted for stockholders' approval at the annual meeting of stockholders:
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a) Article Seventh of the Amended Articles of Incorporation increasing the authorized capital stock
of the Corporation from Php2.5 Billion consisting of 10 Billion shares to PhpS.O Billion consisting
of 20 Billion shares; and

b) Article II of the Amended By-Laws adding a new section as Section 10 creating the position of
Chairman Emeritus.

ITEM XVIII - OTHER PROPOSED ACTIONS

There are no other proposed actions to be submitted for stockholders' approval at the annual
meeting of stockholders;

ITEM XIX - VOTING PROCEDURES

(a) VOTE REQUIRED

Motions in general require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of the Corporation's
common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote in the annual meeting of
stockholders.. There are no matters to be taken up in the annual meeting of stockholders which
will require the affirmative vote of at least two thirds (^A) of the outstanding and issued capital
stock of the Corporation.

fb) ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In the election of directors, every stockholder entitled to vote shall be allowed to accumulate his
vote in accordance with the provisions of law. For this year's election, the top eleven (11)
nominees with the most number of votes will be declared as the elected directors. If the number

of the nominees does not exceed the number of directors to be elected, all the shares present or
represented at the meeting will be cast in favor of the nominees. If the number of nominees
exceeds the number of directors to be elected, voting will be done by ballot.

(bl METHOD OF COUNTING VOTES

Counting of votes will be done by the Corporate Secretary (or his authorized representatives)
with the assistance of the representatives of the independent auditors and stock transfer agent
of the Corporation. All votes attaching to the shares of common stock owned by stockholders
whose proxies were received by the Corporation will be cast In accordance with the instructions
given or authority granted under the proxies.

ATTACHMENTS

The attachments to this Information Statement consist of the Notice of Stockholders' Meeting and
Proxy Form, the Corporation's 2018 Management Report, the 2018 Consolidated Audited Financial
Statements of the Corporation, Statement of Management's Responsibility for the 2018 Audited
Financial Statements and the Interim Unaudited Financial Statements for the 1®^ Quarter of 2019.

The Corporation will provide without charge each person solicited, on the written request of
any such person, a copy of the Corporation's Annual Report for 2018 (SEC Form 17-A). Such
written request should be directed to the:

Corporate Secretary
Basic Energy Corporation
T*'' Floor, Basic Petroleum BIdg.
104 Carlos Palanca, Jr. St., Legaspi Village
Makati City
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At the discretion of Management, a charge may be made for exhibits, provided the charge is
limited to reasonable expenses incurred by the Corporation in furnishing the exhibits.

Copies of resolutions of the Board of Directors, since the 2018 Annual Stockholders' Meeting, are
available for examination during office hours at the office of the Corporate Secretary.

PART II

SOLICITATION INFORMATION

ITEM I - IDENTIFICATION

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION, IN ITS BEHALF, IS SOLICITNG PROXIES IN CONNECTION
WITH ITS ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON OCTOBER 23, 2019 at
3:00 P.M. AT DUSIT THANI HOTEL, ARNAIZ AVENUE, MAKATI CITY.

ITEM II - INSTRUCTIONS

a) The proxy form attached to this Information Statement shall be used for the 2019 Annual
Stockholders Meeting, signed by the stockholder concerned, and need not be notarized. The
proxy shall be executed in favour of the Chairman of the Board or in his absence, the
President of the Corporation. A stockholder may submit a proxy for the 2019 Annual
Stockholders Meeting and subsequent meetings of stockholders, for a period not to exceed
five (5) years as provided by law.

b) The proxy for a stockholder which is a corporation or a partnership should be executed by a
duly authorized officer of the corporation or partnership and must be accompanied by a
Corporate Secretary's Certificate quoting the Board or Partners' resolution or extracts
thereof authorizing the said corporate officer to execute said proxy.

c) Executors, administrators, receivers and other legal representatives duly appointed by the
court may attend and vote on behalf of the stockholders, without need of any written proxy,
provided a copy of the court appointment shall be presented to the Corporate Secretary of
the Corporation.

d) The proxy form for shares of stock owned jointly shall be signed by all owners and for shares
owned in an "and/or" capacity, by any one of the owners.

e) Proxy form executed abroad shall be duly authenticated by the Philippine embassy or
consular office in that state or country.

f) Proxies should be submitted to the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation on or before
October 15, 2019.

g) The Committee of Inspectors designated by the Board of Directors shall validate the proxies
on October 18, 2019 at 3:00 P.M. at the principal office of the Corporation, and any
stockholder, in person or through counsel, may be present during the validation of proxies.
The proxy rules under the SEC implementing rules SRC No. 20 (11) (b) shall govern all
proxy issues raised during the validation process.
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ITEM III - REVOCABILITY OF PROXY

A stockholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it by a written instrument at any time before
the right granted is exercised. A proxy is also considered revoked if the stockholder attends the
meeting in person and expresses his intention to vote in person,

ITEM IV- PERSON MAKING THE SOLICITATION

The solicitation of proxies is being undertaken by the Corporation in order to obtain the required
quorum and the required vote to approve the matters to be taken up at the annual meeting of
stockholders. The Corporation has not received any written information by any director of any
intention to oppose any action to be taken up in the annual meeting of stockholders.

The Corporation intends to utilize couriers and messengers and the services of the Philippine Post
Office to undertake the personal delivery of the proxy statements and proxy forms. Costs will be
limited to the printing costs, costs of delivery services, mailing and publication costs estimated at
about Php600,000.00 and will be shouldered by the Corporation.

ITEM V - INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No director or officer of the Corporation or nominee for election as director, or officer of the
Corporation, or past director or officer of the Corporation at anytime since the beginning of the last
fiscal year, and to the best knowledge of the Corporation, no associate of a director or officer or
nominee for election as director or officer of the Corporation has any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, other than the election to office as directors of the incumbent directors.

(Part III Follows)
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PART

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, and after reasonable inquiry and to

the best of our knowledge and belief and on behalf of the Corporation, we certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct.

Signed on SepternOer 3, 2019, at Makati City.

OSCAR L. DE VENECIA, JR.

President & CEO

ALAIN'S. PANGAN

Vice President for Finance

COF&pRm
Corporate Secretary
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BASIC ENERGY
^ ©
^  CORPORAT I ON

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the regular Annual Meeting of Stockholders of BASIC
ENERGY CORPORATION will be held at the Dusit Than! Hotel, Arnaiz Avenue, Makati
City, on Wednesday, October 23, 2019 at 3:00 p.m., with the following agenda;

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Certification of Due Notice of Meeting and Existence of Quorum
3. Approval of Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting Held on June 27, 2018
4. Presentation of the 2018 Annual Report
5. Presentation of the 2018 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Ratification of All Acts of the Board and Management for 2018-2019
7. Election of Directors for the Term 2019-2020

8. Proposed Amendment of Article Seventh of the Amended Articles of
Incorporation increasing the authorized capital stock from Php2.5 Billion to
Php5 Billion

9. Proposed Amendment of Article II of the Amended By-Laws by adding a new
section as Section 10 creating the position of Chairman Emeritus

10. Appointment of External Auditors for the 2019 Financial Statements
11. Other Matters

12. Adjournment

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on October 1, 2019 are entitled
to notice of, and to vote at this meeting. For this purpose, the Stock and Transfer Books of
the Corporation shall be closed from October 2 to 23, 2019.

In case you cannot attend in person, please accomplish the attached Proxy Form
and mail or deliver the same at the principal office of the Corporation at the 7^^ Floor, Basic
Petroleum Building, 104 C. Palanca, Jr. St.. Legaspi Village, Makati City, on or before
October 15, 2019. Validation of proxies will be on October 18, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. at the
principal office of the Corporation.

Please find attached the processes for the nomination and election of directors and
the list of actions taken by the Board of Directors and Management for the term 2018-2019.
You may access the 2019 Definitive Information Statement and its attachments by opening
this link http://blt.lv/2kvao6C or by scanning the QR Code below.

Minutes of the 2018 Annual Stockholders Meeting are available for your perusal at
the principal office of the Corporation during business hours.

We look fon/vard to your attendance at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

Makati City, Septembers, 2019.

CO

Corp
M. BEJASA

e Secretary



PROXY FORM

ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

October 23, 2019 - 3:00 P.M.

DUSITTHAN! HOTEL

Arnaiz Avenue, MakatI City

The undersigned stockholder of BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION (the "Corporation"), hereby appoints,
names and constitutes the Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, the President & CEO of the Corporation, as
proxy to represent and vote all shares registered in the name of the undersigned stockholder at the Annual Meeting
of the stockholders of Corporation scheduled on October 23 2019 at 3:00 P.M. and any postponements or
adjournment(s) thereof, and hereby ratifying and confirming any and all action taken by said proxy on matters which
may properly come before such meeting or its postponements or adjournment(s) thereof. In particular, the
undersigned hereby directs the proxy to vote the shares on the following agenda items in the manner indicated
below, or if not so indicated, the proxy shall exercise full discretion in acting thereon.

AGENDA ITEMS ACTION

Approve Disapprove Abstain

1. Approval of the Minutes of the June 27, 2018 Meeting

2. Notation of the 2018 Annual Report and the 2018
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Ratification of all acts of the Board and Management for
2018-2019

4. Election of Directors Authority to
Vote Withheld

Oscar C. De Venecia

Francis C. Chua

Ramon L. Mapa

Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr.

Ma. Fiorina M. Chan

Jaime J. Martirez

Srinarin Poudpongpalboon

Isidore 0. Tan

Harvey L.N. Dychlao (Independent Director)

Eduardo V. Manalac (Independent Director)
Oscar S. Reyes (Independent Director)

5. Approval of the amendment to Article Seventh of the
Amended Articles of Incorporation Increasing the
Authorized Capital Stock from Php2.5 Billion to Php5
Billion

6. Approval of the amendment to Article II of the Amended
Bylaws adding a new section as Section 10 creating the

position of Chairman Emeritus.
7. Appointment of SGV & Co. as External Auditor

The above-named nominees were screened and pre-quallfied In accordance with the Corporation's Manual of Corporate
Governance and the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies.

Signed this ,2019 at

Notes: Signature of Stockholder over Printed Name

(a) All proxies for the meeting should be received by the Corporate Secretary on or before October 15, 2019.
(b) The proxy for a stockholder which is a corporation or a partnership should be executed by a duly authorized officer of

the corporation or partnership and must be accompanied by a Corporate Secretary's Certificate authorizing the said
officer to execute said proxy.

(THIS PROXY IS BEING SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION)



Basic Energy Corporation

Nomination Process

(i) The Board of Directors sets the date, time and venue for the year's annual

stockholders meeting in its regular meeting for the month of February or March, at the

latest. The Compliance Officer discloses to the Securities and Exchange Commission

(SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) the setting of the annual stockholders'

meeting immediately after the Board meeting.

(ii) Any stockholder may submit nominations for election as members of the Board after

the disclosures to the SEC and the PSE. Nominations shall be signed by the nominating
stockholder and accepted and signed by the would-be nominee and submitted to the

Nominating Committee at any time before the Committee submits the Final List to the

Board.

(iii) The Nominating Committee pre-screens the would-be nominees, ensuring that they
possess all the qualifications and that they do not possess any of the disqualifications for

directors as prescribed in the Manual on Corporate Governance, the Company's By-Laws
and other applicable laws and regulations.

(iv) The Nominating Committee shall have the right to require the nominating
stockholder to submit a resume of the would-be nominee and such other documents as

may be necessary for the Nomination Committee to undertake its pre-screening
functions.

(v) After the pre-screening process, the Nominating Committee prepares a Final List of

all nominees and submits the list to the Board of Directors for approval, complete with

the information required by the Securities Regulation Code.

(vi) The Final List of Nominees as approved by the Board shall be immediately disclosed
to the SEC and the PSE. The Final List of Nominees is reported in the definitive

Information Statement furnished to all stockholders prior to the stockholders' meeting.
In case a nominee is not included in the Final List, the Corporate Secretary shall

accordingly advise, in writing, the nominating stockholder and his/her nominee.

(vii) Only nominees whose names appear on the Final List of Nominees shall be eligible

for election as directors. No other nomination shall be entertained after the Final List of

Nominees shall have been disclosed and submitted to the SEC and the PSE. No further

nominations shall be entertained or allowed on the floor during the actual stockholders'

meeting.



Election Process

(i) The election of directors shall be part of the regular agenda for the annual
stockholders meeting.

The election of directors shall be preceded by a presentation of the material information

on the nominees, their profiles, attendance report, appraisal and performance report,
compensation report and disclosures on self-dealings and related party transactions, if
any;

(ii) At the annual meeting of stockholders, every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the
right to vote the number of shares of stocks standing in his own name in the stock books of the

corporation at the time of the meeting. In the election of directors, a stockholder may: (a) vote
such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected; (b) cumulate
said shares and give one (1) candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected

multiplied by the number of the shares owned; or (c) distribute them on the same principle
among as many candidates as may be seen fit, provided that the total number of votes cast shall

not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholder as shown in the books of the

corporation multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

(ill) No delinquent stock shall be voted.

(iv) If the number of the nominees does not exceed the number of directors to be

elected, all the shares present or represented at the meeting will be cast by the
Corporate Secretary in favour of the nominees. If the number of nominees exceeds the

number of directors to be elected, voting will be done by ballot.

(v) The top eleven (11) nominees with the most number of votes will be declared as the
elected directors.

(vi) Counting of votes in the ballots will be done by the Corporate Secretary (or his
authorized representatives) with the assistance of the representatives of the external
auditors and/or the stock transfer agent of the Company.

(vii) All votes attaching to the shares of stock owned by stockholders whose proxies
were received by the Corporate Secretary will be cast in accordance with the
instructions given or authority granted under the proxies.



ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT OF BASIC ENERGY

CORPORATION FOR THE TERM 2018-2019

DATE OF

MEETING

TYPE OF MEETING ACTIONS TAKEN

June 27. 2018 Organizational Meeting Elections of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries for the

term 2018-2019.

Appointment of Members of the Advisory Board, Board
Committees and Appointment of Officers for the term 2018-2019.

July 26, 2018 Regular Meeting Approved the amended Charters of the Audit Committee and the
Risk Committee.

August 30, 2018 Regular Meeting Approved the recommendation of the Corporate Governance

Committee to develop the performance appraisal parameters or

standards and form, for the performance assessment of the Board,

its committees and directors, for the term 2018-2019.

Noted the Bylaw provisions on the required attendance of directors

in Board meetings for at least 50% of the total meetings held during

the term, and allowing attendance thru teleconferencing or

videoconferencing.

September 28, 2018 Regular Meeting Noted action taken by Management in not pursuing the solar

projects in Japan and requesting refund of the refundable earnest

money deposit.

November 8, 2018 Regular Meeting Noted the report of the Audit Committee on the audit plan of SGV
& Co. for the 2018 financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

December 6,2018 Regular Meeting Authorized the President & CEO to sign a non-binding term sheet

for a roof-top solar project in Taiwan, to allow the Company to

conduct due diligence on the project and secure exclusivity in the

negotiations with the project proponent.

Authorized the President & CEO to sign a non-binding term sheet

for a solar power plant project in Biliran, Eastern Visayas to allow

the Company to conduct due diligence on the project.

Approved the Budget for 2019 of the Company at Php 61.943

Million.

Authorized the President & CEO to sign a non-binding Term Sheet

with a prospective new investor to conduct due diligence on the
Company.

January 31, 2019 Regular Meeting Approved the engagement of PJS Law as the external counsel of the
Company to review definitive agreements which may be entered

into by the Company with a prospective new investor.

February 28. 2019 Regular Meeting Authorized the President & CEO to negotiate the engagement fee
for a financial consultant for purposes of valuation of the
Company's shares.



Approved the designation of signatories for the Company's
Retirement Fund.

March 28, 2019 Regular Meeting .Approved the 2018 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries.

Noted Management's action of not pursuing the 25 MW Saga

Biomass Project in Saga, Japan due to incomplete due diligence

materials within the agreed due diligence period.

Accepted the resignation of Mr. L.R. Arguelles as member of the

Advisory Board, effective immediately and approved the retirement

of Atty. C.M. Bejasa as Corporate Secretary effective after the 2019

annual stockholders meeting.

May 7,2019 Regular Meeting Accepted the resignation of Mr. Supasit Pokinjaruras as director

effective immediately and, upon recommendation of the

Nomination Committee, elected Ms. Srinarin Poudpongpaiboon as

director, for the remainder of the term of Mr. Pokinjaruras.

Approval of the increase of the authorized capital stock of the

Company from Php2.5 Billion consisting of 10 Billion shares to

Php5.0 Billion shares consisting of 20 Billion shares, at par value of

PhpO.25 per share. The approval is in anticipation of the entry of a

new investor, thus, the proposed capital increase shall be submitted

for approval by stockholders at the annual stockholders meeting

when the entry of the new investor is approved by the Board.

Noted the performance appraisal rating of the Board, Board

Committees and the directors of Mostly Satisfactory/ Exceeds

Standards.

May 30, 2019 Regular Meeting Setting of the Annual Stockholders Meeting on August 28. 2019 at

3:00 pm. with record date of August 1. 2019 and the venue to be

determined at the next Board meeting.

June 27, 2019 Regular Meeting Approved the nominations of the incumbent directors for election

as directors for the term 2019-2020 at the annual stockholders

meeting.

Authorized the President & CEO to submit the listing application

with PSE for the Tranche 2.2 shares of Meta Corporation Public

Company Limited consisting of 106,892,000 shares.

Approved the closing of the stock and transfer book for purposes of

the annual meeting of stockholders from August 2 to 28, 2019, the

deadline for the submission of proxies on August 16, 2019 and the

venue of the annual stockholders meeting at Dustit Thani Hotel,

Makati City.

Approved the proposed amendments to the Articles and Bylaws of

the following subsidiaries: Basic Diversified Industrial Holdings,

Inc., Basic Biofliels Corporation and Basic Renewables. Inc. so as

to specify their principal office addresses.



July25. 2019 Regular Meeting Approved the resetting of the annual stockholders meeting from

August 28, 2019 to October 23, 2019, with record date October 1,

2019. Closing of the stock and transfer books shall be from October

2 to 23, 2019. Venue is the same at the Dusit Thani Hotel-Makati.

Approved the amendments to the amended By-Laws of the

following subsidiaries so as to delete the profit sharing provisions:

Basic Biofuels Corporation, Basic Diversified Industrial Holdings,

Inc., Basic Geothermal Energy Corporation. Basic Renewables. Inc.

iBasic and Southwest Resources, Inc.

August 29, 2019 Regular Meeting Approved the amendment to the amended By-Laws of the

Corporation so as to add a new section as Section 10, Article 11,

creating the position of Chairman Emeritus.



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, HARVEY LAWRENCE N. DYCHIAO, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
Unit 1108 Baron 3 Towers, A. Mabini St., San Juan City, after having been duly
sworn in accordance with law, declare that;

O

2. I

3.

1. I am a nominee for Independent Director of Basic Energy Corporation (the
Company) for the term 2019-2020 and have been the Independent
Director of the Company and its subsidiaries, since 2016;
am presently the managing Director of Bonifacio Capital and have held

such position since 2012;

I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as
an Independent Director of Basic Energy Corporation as provided for in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulations and other issuance of the Securities Exchange
Commission (SEC);

am not related to any director, officer or substantial shareholder of Basic

Energy Corporation, or any of its related companies or any of its
substantial shareholders;

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal
or administrative investigation or proceeding;
1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances; and
shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Basic Energy Corporation of any

changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its
occurrence.

4. I

6.

7. I

Executed on June 27, 2019 at Makati City.

HARVE^. RENCE N. DYCHIAO

Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ^ ̂ -it/N 2QW Affiant
exhibiting to me his BIRTIN No.211-544-787-000.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, EDUARDO V. MANALAC, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of Unit 18
B/C Phoenix Heights Condominium, Henry Javier Street, Pasig City, after having
duly sworn in accordance with law, declare that:

1. I am a nominee for Independent Director of Basic Energy Corporation
(the Company) and have been the Independent Director of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the last four (4) years;

2. 1 am presently the President of TransEnergy International Limited and
have been employed by this company since 2007;

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to
serve as an Independent Director of Basic Energy Corporation as
provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations and other issuance of the

/- Securities Exchange Commission (SEC);
^ j 4. I am not related to any director, officer or substantial shareholder of

Basic Energy Corporation, or any of its related companies or any of its
substantial shareholders;

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending
criminal or administrative investigation or proceeding;

6. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and
responsibilities as Independent Director under the Securities
Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances; and

7. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Basic Energy Corporation of
any changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days
from its occurrence.

Executed on June 27, 2019 in Makati City.

EDUARDO V. MANALAC

Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 2 8 JUN ?0i9 . affiant
exhibiting to me his BIR TIN No. 225-311-454.

Doc. No.j^
Page No._2i
Book No. MER CUN.AN

Series of 2019.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

1, OSCAR S. REYES, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of Unit 6 Kasiyahan
Homes, 58 McKinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law do hereby declare that;

1. I am a nominee identified as Independent Director of BASIC ENERGY
CORPORATION since 2007.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

Company/Organization
Position/

Relationship

Period of

Service

PLDT, Inc.

Director

Member, Advisory

Board

2001-2010

2010 - present

Bank of the Philippine Islands
Director

Member, Advisory

Council

2003-2016

2016-present

Cosco Capital Inc. Independent Director 2009 - present

Manila Water Co., Inc. Independent Director 2005 - present

Pepsi Cola Products Philippines Inc. Chairman 2007-present

Sun Life Financial Plans Inc. Independent Director 2006 - present

Sun Life Prosperity Funds Independent Director 2002 - present

Grepalife Dollar Bond Fund Corporation Independent Director 2011 - present

Grepalife Fixed Income Fund Corporation Independent Director 2011 - present

Grepalife Bond Fund Corporation Independent Director 2011 - present

PLDT Communications & Energy Ventures Inc. Director 2013- present

Petrolift Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present

Eramen Minerals Inc. Independent Director 2004 - present

Asian Eye Institute Director 2010 - present

Phil. Dealing System Holdings Corp. Independent Director April 2019

Phil. Dealing & Exchange Corporation Independent Director April 2019

Phil. Depository & Trust Corporation Independent Director April 2019

Phil. Securities Settlement Corporation Independent Director April 2019

Team Energy Corporation Independent Director June 2019

3. I possess ail the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION, as provided for in

Page 1 of2



Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations and other SEC issuances

4. I am not related to any director/officer/substantial shareholder of Basic Energy
Corporation other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the
Securities Regulation Code.

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

6. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulations Code and its implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC
issuances.

7. I shall inform the corporate secretary of BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

Done, this day of June 2019 at Makati City, Philippines.

EYES

Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, a notary public in and for the City of
_ this day of 2 8 JUN 201^19. The Affiant, whom I identified through the

following competent evidence of identity; Philippine Passport No. P5302920A expiring
on 10 December 2022, personally signed the foregoing instrument before me and
avowed under penalty of law to the whole truth of the contents of said instrument.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and at the place first
abovementioned.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

PART I. BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM EBUSINESS

(A) Description of Business

(1) Business Development

The Company was organized initially as Basic Enterprises, Inc., on September 19,
1968 and became an oil and gas exploration and development company on April 26, 1971.
A year after, it assumed a new name. Basic Petroleum and Minerals, Inc. Over the years,
the Company evolved from an operating company into a holding company under the
corporate name, Basic Consolidated, Inc. As a holding company, it held equity investments
In the following wholly owned subsidiaries: Basic Diversified Industrial Holdings, Inc., an
investment holding company, IBasic, Inc., an information technology management company
and service integrator, Basic Biofuels Corporation, which is into the development of biofuels,
Basic Renewables, Inc., which is into renewable energy exploration and development, Basic
Geothermal Energy Corporation, which is into geothermal energy exploration and
development, and Grandway Group Limited, a Hong Kong registered company, which is
into equity investments abroad, while Southwest Resources, Inc., which is owned 72.58% by
the Company, is an oil exploration company.

On the Company's oil and gas business, the Company is a party, together with other
oil exploration companies, in the exploration, development and production of natural gas in
certain areas under Service Contract 53, in onshore Mindoro. The Company, through its
subsidiary. Southwest Resources, Inc., used to be involved in Service Contract 41
(Sandakan Basin) but in July, 2010, the consortium decided to withdraw from this service
contract. The Company was likewise a party, together with other oil exploration companies,
in Service Contract 47 in offshore Mindoro, however, this service contract was likewise
relinquished to the Department of Energy.

The Company has been awarded by the Department of Energy (DOE) a total of five
(5) service contracts for the exploration and development of geothermal energy, namely:
GSC No. 8 at Mabini, Batangas, which was awarded in 2007, and GSC No. 2013-02-042 at
Mariveles, Bataan, GSC No. 2013-02-041 at East Mankayan, Benguet, Mountain Province
and Ifugao, GSC No. 2013-02-043 at Iriga, Camarines Sur and Albay and GSC No. 2013 -
11-048 at West Bulusan, Sorsogon, which were awarded in 2013.



The consortium for GSC No. 8, after the completion of drilling works on an

exploratory well last February. 2017, has decided to drill a stratigraphic, follow-up well within
the contract service area, and preparatory works for this work program were done in 2018.

As for the work program and budget for 2019, the same is pending evaluation by the DOE.

The service contracts for the East Mankayan project and the West Bulusan project
have been terminated. The DOE has not acted upon the Company's request for suspension

of obligations in the service contract for the Mariveles project, while in the Iriga project,
where the Company has a twenty percent (20%) participating interest, Desco, Inc. is the

operator, which is undertaking permitting and preparatory works for the drilling of an
exploratory well.

In 2013, the Company entered into a joint venture arrangement with Petrosolve Sdn
Bhd, a company registered in Malaysia, which is into the business of developing oil fields
and holds a technology for enhanced chemical oil recovery. The joint venture established
Grandway Group Limited (Grandway), a joint venture company in Hong Kong, as the
corporate vehicle of the joint venture in entering into business relationships in connection
with the management and operation of oil wells. Grandway was initially 70% owned by the
Company and 30% owned by Petrosolve Sdn Bhd until 2017, when the latter transferred its

shares to the Company, such that Grandway is now owned 100% by the Company. The joint
venture then established PT Basic Energi Solusi (PT BES), as its operating arm in Indonesia
for the management and operation of oil wells located in the Dadangilo and Wonocolo areas.
In 2015, after having drilled five (5) wells, PT BES placed the project on hold until the
organizational structure of local cooperatives and/or local miners which will handle the
management and operation of oil wells in said areas and with whom PT BES shall enter into

new cooperation agreements, have been established.

In 2014, the Company was awarded by the Department of Energy four (4) hydro-
power service contracts, namely: HSC No. 2014-01-383 at Puntian 1 River, HSC No. 2014-

01-384 at Puntian 2 River, HSC No. 2014-01-385 at Malogo 2 River and HSC No. 2014-01-
386 at Talabaan River, all located in Negros Occidental. The Company has withdrawn from
these service contracts, to enable the Company to focus on its other energy projects.

In 2017, the Company looked for business opportunities abroad for the development
of renewable energy resources, such as solar and biomass energy. After the due diligence
work on these projects, the Company decided not to pursue with these projects.

In the same year, the Company decided to invest in Vintage EPC Co. Ltd. (VEPC)
and Vintage International Construction Co. Ltd. (VINTER), which are limited companies
registered in Thailand. VEPC and VINTER are the first counter-parties of GEP (Myanmar)
Co. Limited, the owner-developer of the 220 MW solar power plant located in the Minbu
District, Magway region, Myanmar, for the supply and construction service requirements of
the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) subcontractor engaged for the said
project. After the required due diligence work on said companies and its contracts, in 2018,
the Company acquired 15% of the equities of the said companies.

The Company continues to look for business opportunities, in the country and
abroad, for the development of other renewable energy resources such as but not limited to
solar energy and wind power.



{2) Business of the Company and its Subsidiaries

Oil and Gas Operations

The Company is involved in oil and gas exploration and development activities. The
Company is presently a party together W\ih other oil exploration companies (the consortium),
in Service Contract 53 for the exploration, development and exploitation of natural gas in
certain areas in onshore Mindoro. This service contract was awarded by the Department of
Energy, which prescribes the periods and programs for exploration, development and

commercial production, pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 87.

Service Contract(SC) 53 (Onshore Mindoro)

SC 53 was awarded by the Department of Energy on July 8, 2005, for a ten years
exploration period. It covers 6,600 sq. km. of the onshore areas of Mindoro Island which is
within the North Palawan Micro-Continental Block. Past exploration efforts in SC 53
included the acquisition of 2,000 kilometers of 2D seismic data and the drilling of 4
exploration wells. Three of the 4 wells encountered oil and gas but were considered non
commercial at the time of drilling.

The consortium entered into a Farm-In Agreement with Pitkin Petroleum Ltd. (Pitkin)
which was approved by the Department of Energy on June 11, 2008. Under the Farm-In
Agreement, Pitkin completed a magneto-telluric survey in onshore Mindoro and acquired in
May, 2010, over 200 kilometers of 2D seismic designed to delineate and assess the
hydrocarbon potential of the Progreso-1X in San Jose, Mindoro Occidental and the
Sablayan, Mindoro Occidental.

On July 11, 2011, Resource Management Associates Ry Limited of Australia signed
a Farm In Agreement with Pitkin Petroleum to acquire 35% from its 70% participating
interest. In November 11, 2011, Pitkin Petroleum reported that Sub-Phase 1, which was to
end March 6, 2012, was fulfilled with the completion of the 200 kilometers of seismic data.
Sub-Phase 2 which carried a minimum work obligation of two (2) wells and a financial
commitment of US$2.0 million, have been extended up to the resolution of the complaint
filed by Famatodi, Inc., an organization of indigenous peoples in Mindoro and the issuance
of the Certificate of Precondition by the National Commission of Indigenous Peoples.

The consortium agreed to drill Progreso-2 to fulfil one of its two (2) well obligations
under Sub Phase 2 of the project. For Sub-Phase 2, the approved firm budget amounted to
US$ 8.42 million and the contingent budget amounted to US$ 1.906 million. The project was
placed under moratorium, however, in May, 2012, pending resolution of the aforementioned
case filed by Famatodi, Inc. and clearance by the NCIP.

In 2016, the DOE approved the agreement between Pitkin Petroleum and Mindoro
Palawan Oil and Gas, Inc. (MPOGI) for the transfer of Pitkin Petroleum's participating
interest and operatorship to MPOGI. In February, 2018, the aforementioned Famatodi case
was dismissed and thus triggered the said operator's obligation to secure the Certificate of
Pre-Condition from the NCIP. In early 2019, the DOE terminated this service contract, to
which termination the non-operator members of the consortium sought reconsideration from



the DOE. The Company awaits the action of the DOE on the said request for
reconsideration.

The Company has a 3% participation in this service contract.

Indonesia Oi l Project

This project involved the management and operation of old oil wells by PT Basic
Energi Solusi {FT BES), the company registered in Indonesia, as the operating arm of
Grandway Group Ltd., the joint venture between the Company and Petrosolve Bhd Sdn.

In 2013, PT BES entered into a cooperation agreement with PT Ekamaro for the
management and operation of ten (10) oil wells located in the Dadangilo and Wonocolo
areas in East Java, Indonesia. These wells are part of the wells covered by cooperation
agreements between PT Ekamaro and KUD Sumber Pangan and KUD Usaha Jaya
Bersama, both of which had production agreements with EP Pertamina, the entity vested by
the Indonesian Government with the authority to manage old oil wells in Indonesia.

PT BES drilled five (5) of the aforementioned ten (10) wells. However, production
was low compared to projections at the start of the project, while the buying price of EP
Pertamina steadily dropped, from IDR4,160/liter (or USD73.50/barrel) at the start of the
project, to IDR2,718/liter (or USD 34.57/barrel) by the 1®' quarter of 2015. During this time,
the local miners moved for upward adjustments in their revenue sharing from oil produced
and sold to EP Pertamina, which entailed negotiations with PT Ekamaro Sakti, the KUDs,
and the local miners concerned. Before negotiations could be finalized, EP Pertamina
instituted changes in the organizational framework for the operation of old oil wells and
eventually suspended the operations of the KUDs.

By the middle of 2015, the project was placed on hold until EP Pertamina has
finalized the organizational structure of local cooperatives or local miners in said areas.
These miners are slated to handle the management and operation of oil wells in said areas
and with whom PT BES and/or PT Ekamaro Sakti shall enter into new co-operation
agreements.

In view thereof, the deferred exploration costs pertaining to this project amounting to
Php147.93 million as at December 31, 2016, was fully provided an allowance for impairment.

Geothermal Energy Operations

The Company is involved in the exploration, development and production of
geothermal energy. It has been awarded sen/ice contracts for various areas by the
Department of Energy (DOE), which prescribes the periods and programs for these service
contracts pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 87, for the Mabini Geothermal Service

Contract and pursuant to R.A. 9513 ( Renewable Energy Act of 2008) for the other
geothermal service contracts.

Mabini, Batangas Geothermal Service Contract

The Mabini, Batangas Geothermal Service Contract was awarded to the Company
on July 10, 2008. The contract area is approximately 32.5 square kilometers and covers the
Calumpan Peninsula. The contract period for exploration is 5 years, and was extended up to
2018.



The Company has secured the commitments of the local government units which

indicated support to the project. The Certificate of Non Coverage was issued by the

Environmental Management Bureau on March 25, 2009 and the Certificate of Non Overlap
from the National Commission on Indigenous People was issued on April 15, 2009.

The first stage of the exploration program consisted of geophysical and geological
surveys covering 3,481 hectares in the Calumpan Peninsula, Mabini, Batangas. A Controlled

Source Magneto-Telluric Survey covering the area had been conducted and completed on

March 8, 2010.The data obtained from the survey had been processed by a Japanese

consultant, with the objective of establishing the geothermal resource and the exploration
drilling site in the area.

The Company completed due diligence studies and preliminary technical data
collection, collation and re-evaluation as part of its commitment in the work program
committed with the DOE. Initial assessments disclosed that the area has a good potential for

a 20-megawatts capacity and could be developed considering the existence of adequate
infrastructure, adjacency to transmission lines and a strong power demand in the area.

In 2015, Trans-Asia Oil and Energy Development Corporation (now Phinma Energy
Corporation) has agreed to a 25% participating interest in this project, which was confirmed
upon completion of the gravity survey which it conducted in 2014. The DOE approved the

farm-in agreement of the Company with Phinma Energy Corporation on September 15, 2015.
In July, 2018, Phinma Energy signified its intention to withdraw from the project. Upon
execution of the transfer documents in favor of the Company, the withdrawal of Phinma
Energy Corporation from the project has been submitted to the DOE for approval, which to
date, is still pending with the DOE.

For this service contract, the work program committed to the DOE involved the
drilling of one (1) exploratory well by July, 2017. The drilling of the well was undertaken by
Diamond Drilling Corporation of the Philippines and on February 6, 2017, target depth was
reached at 1,679 meters. After various tests were conducted to determine the geothermal
resource in the area, the consortium decided to drill a follow-up well in Barangay Solo, within
the service contract area as part of its Contract Years 10 and 11 work program. Estimated
costs for this work program is Php 50.710 Million.

Frontier Geothermal Service Contracts

The Company was also awarded the service contracts from the Department of
Energy (DOE), covering four (4) geothermal projects, namely: Iriga Geothermal Power
Project, Mariveles Geothermal Power Project , the East Mankayan Geothermal Power
Project and the West Bulusan Geothermal Power Project, all carrying a maximum
exploration period of five (5) years.

The East Mankayan Geothermal Power Project lies immediately east of the
Cervantes, llocos Sur geothermal block of Pan Pacific Power Phils, Inc. and south of the
Bontoc-Sadanga block which is operated by Magma Energy Resources. Immediately south
is the Daklan block operated by Clean Rock Energy. The area actually covers the 3
provinces of Benguet, Mountain Province and Ifugao. The proposed area is surrounded by
lots of known thermal manifestations, e.g. hot springs and thermally altered grounds.



The Mariveles Geothermal Power Project, in Bataan is situated along the West
Luzon Volcanic Arc which starts from Mt. Pinatubo in the north and extends farther south

across the Manila Bay towards Batangas and northeastern Mindoro.

The Iriga Geothermal Power Project in Camarines Sur is bounded to the north by
Isarog geothermal block of PNOC-RC and to the east by the highly productive Tiwi
geothermal service contract area of formerly Chevron, now AP Renewables Inc. The areal
landscape is dominated by Iriga or Asog Volcano, a relatively in stratovolcano immediately
southwest of Lake Buhi in southern Luzon.

The West Bulusan Geothermal Power Project is situated in the municipalities of
Juban, Magallanes, irosin, Bulan, Matnog, Santa Magdatena, and Bulusan, in the province
of Sorsogon. It is bounded on the northeast by the geothermal contract area of SKI
Construction Group, Inc. and is in close vicinity to Mount Bulusan, an active volcano and a
declared Natural Park by virtue of Proclamation No. 421 on 27 November 2000. The
Department of Energy (DOE) estimates the project site to have a potential installed capacity
of 50 MW. The area has previously been explored by the PNOC Energy Development
Corporation (PNOC EDC) in the 1980's. Data gathered from this study is the take-off point
for the feasibility study undertaken by the Company.

In 2016, Desco, Inc. entered into a Farm-in Agreement with the Company acquiring
an eighty percent (80%) participating interest in and the operatorship of the Iriga Geothermal
Project. The farm-in agreement and transfer of operatorship of the project to Desco. Inc. was
approved by the DOE in a letter received by the Company on November 8, 2016. Desco, Inc.
recently received DOE's approval for the extension of its work program up to 2020. which
involved securing the permitting requirements for the project, NCIP certification and well site
preparations for the drilling of an exploratory well. The Company has a 20% interest in this
project.

In 2016, the Company requested the DOE for a moratorium on the West Bulusan
Geothermal Project, in view of the concerns raised by the indigenous people in the area and
the local government units in the area against the project, which prevented the Company to
conduct the necessary permitting works. The Company received the notice from the DOE
terminating the service contract effective 2017.

In 2017, Desco, Inc. entered into a Farm-in Agreement with the Company covering
the acquisition of a twenty-five percent (25%) participating interest in the Mariveles
Geothermal Project, which has already been submitted to the DOE. To date, however, the
DOE has not acted on the said farm-in agreement with Desco, Inc. for this project.

The Company has requested the DOE for a suspension of obligations in the East
Mankayan and Mariveles projects, due to difficulties encountered in securing the required
LGU permit and other clearances. For the East Mankayan project, the DOE has terminated
the service contract, which the Company has accepted, while to date, the DOE has not acted
on the request for suspension of obligations in the Mariveles project.

Hydro-Power Energy

The Company was awarded service contracts for the development of hydro-power
resources by the Department of Energy, which prescribes the periods and programs for



these service contracts, pursuant to R.A. 9513 ( Renewable Energy Act of 2008), in
February, 2014. The Malogo 2 Hydropower Project is situated in Cadiz City and Victorias
City in Negros Occidental, while the Puntian I and II Hydropower Projects are situated along
Puntian River in the municipality of Murcia, Negros Occidental. The Talabaan Hydropower
Project is situated in Cadiz City, Negros Occidental.

The Company already advised the Department of Energy (DOE) of its intent to
withdraw from these service contracts, to enable the Company to focus on its geothermal
energy projects, of which GSC No. 8 is already in the advanced stages, The Company has
been recently advised by DOE of its acceptance of the Company's withdrawal from these
service contracts, subject to fulfillment of its financial commitments as of date of withdrawal
of said service contracts.

Risk Management

In the Oil and Gas and Geothermal Energy business, the Company is faced with the
following risks, in order of importance:

(a) Probability of Exploration and Development Success. Oil and gas exploration
and geothermal energy projects are inherently high-risk undertakings. There can be
no assurance that the Company's activities will be successful in discovering
commercially viable oil and gas reservoirs and/or a viable geothermal resource.
Even if an apparently feasible resource is determined, there is no guarantee that it
can be economically exploited. Despite the Company's reliance on advanced
technology such as 3-D seismic data to improve the probability of success of
discovery, oil and gas exploration and geothermal and hydropower operations are
speculative businesses. Advanced technology, even with the correct interpretation,
only assist geologists in identifying subsurface structures and does not ensure the
certainty of the presence of resources if drilled. Moreover, 3-D seismic data and
other advanced technology require higher investments that may result in higher
losses, should the drilling prove unsuccessful.

Risk of heavy financial losses if prospects would prove unsuccessful could be
mitigated through:

Farming-Out of Interest. A Farm-Out Agreement is a contract whereby a third party
agrees to acquire from a licensee an interest in a production license and the
corresponding operating agreement for a consideration normally comprising of an
undertaking to perform a specified work obligation in the drilling of one or more wells.
Farming out is usually undertaken by the seller of interest as a source for funding or
as part of the rationalization of a licensee's interests. The seller may want to dispose
of areas or interests which are peripheral to its main operations or in which it has
small equity holdings but would take up as much management time as a larger
holding.

Spreading Exploration Risks through Joint Ventures in Several Exploration Blocks.
Forming alliances and jointly bidding for the development of a range of opportunities
in oil and gas exploration and geothermal projects, mitigates exploration risks of a
corporation as there is risk-sharing - the cost and responsibilities of drilling and
production are spread over a number of entities. Joint ventures also enable
companies to free up funds otherwise tied up in a single drilling project and enable
these companies to build a portfolio of projects.



Exploring in Geologies! Proven Petroleum Areas. The Company has been making
investments in these areas and will continue to invest in geologically identified
provinces potentially rich in petroleum and geothermal resources.

(b) Operating Hazards of Exploratory Drilling Activities and Environmental Risks.
Drilling operations may be delayed, curtailed or subjected to operating and technical
difficulties. Unexpected drilling conditions, adverse weather conditions, unanticipated
pressure or formations, equipment breakdowns, industrial and environmental
accidents and other such events may occur which may have adverse effects on the
Company's operations and correspondingly on its financial performance and
condition. Oil and gas and geothermal and hydropower exploration, development and
drilling activities will be subject to Philippine environmental laws and regulations.
Normal exploration and drilling operations involve certain operating hazards such as
explosions, craterings, well blowouts, uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas or well
fluids, releases of toxic gas, accidental leakages, formations with abnormal
pressures, fires, pollution and other environmental perils and risks, any of which may
subject the Company to extensive liability or loss of assets.

Operating risks in the exploration and development drilling and production phases
are generally directly driven by standards in design, procurement and installation,
operating procedures and contingency planning. The Company, in its investment
evaluation process, considers the presence and implementation of the following
measures and strategies to mitigate risk exposures: (i) hiring of technically competent
staff that are adept in utilizing state-of-the-art technology and could conduct effective
evaluation work; and (ii) ensuring adherence to the various environmental laws and
regulations, taking into account not only local but international expectations as well.

(c) Volatility of Oil and Gas Prices and Exchange Rate Risks. Revenues derived
from successful exploration and drilling activities depend on the world price of oil.
The price of oil is sensitive to minor changes in the global supply and demand
conditions, quality of oil, forward selling activities, domestic and foreign government
regulations, environmental trends, overall global economic condition and other
macroeconomic and political factors that are beyond the Company's control.
Furthermore, revenues from drilling activities are pegged to the US dollar, hence, the
Company is exposed to exchange rate risks given the volatility of the rate of
exchange between the US dollar and Philippine peso.

(d) Government Regulations and Approvals. Government action such as changes in
regulations may affect the Company's business and eventual operating and financial
performance. Government may limit access to prospective development areas,
implement stricter environmental laws to protect human health and the environment,
impose higher taxes and royalties, all of which may adversely affect the Company's
financial performance.

For the risks mentioned in items (c) and (d) above, these risks could be mitigated
through early identification systems of risk exposures to external threats such as
changes in government regulations and changes in the geo-political environment of
operating locations. At the appropriate time, the Company will negotiate oil/power
price agreements with inputs from experts. The Company, as a member of a



consortium, adheres to Its policy of involving competent technical professionals in the
preparation and negotiations of oil price agreements. The Company will also
continue to involve competent technical professionals in the preparation and
negotiations of power purchase agreements for its geothermal projects.

(3) Employees

The Company has twenty (20) officers and employees, of which seven (7) are
executive officers, one (1) technical manager, eight (8) are assigned as technical,
project, accounting, administrative, IT and operations support staff and four (4) are
assigned for utility and service staff. The Company expects to hire additional officers
and other personnel and/or engage the services of consultants or project employees
in 2019 as may be needed, as additional technical and project staff for its on-going
projects. When the Company will pursue additional renewable energy projects,
project managers and engineering, technical and other support personnel may be
required for its projects.

(B) Description of Properties

The Company owns one floor (7"^ Floor) of the Basic Petroleum Building located at
104 C. Palanca, Jr. St., Legaspi Village, Makati City, consisting of 461 square
meters, which the Company uses as its office premises.

The Company and its subsidiaries own several parcels of land located in Bolinao,
Pangasinan, containing an area of approximately 41 hectares. The property is
located about 4.3 kilometers southwest from the Bolinao-Bani Provincial Road and is

best suited for agro-industrial land development.

The Company, through a subsidiary, also owns parcels of land located at Tanay,
Rizal with a total area of approximately 3.5 hectares, near the town proper with good
roads and is suitable for residential housing development or for an agricultural farm
project.

The Company, through another subsidiary, owns a parcel of land located at Gutalac,
Zamboanga del Norte with an area of approximately 22 hectares, suitable for
agricultural farm development.

The Company used to own a major interest in a real estate property (land) located at
Barangay Bolasi, San Fabian, Pangasinan with an aggregate gross area of 186,665
square meters, beside the San Fabian PTA Beach Resort managed by the Philippine
Tourism Authority. The beachfront is suitable for beach resort development while a
portion of it is suitable for a residential development. This property has been sold in
2018 and the Company has received its proportionate share in the net proceeds of
the sale of said property.

For 2019, the Company or its subsidiaries do not have any plan to own additional
lands for its various projects.



(C) Legal Proceedings

The Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates are not involved in any pending legal
proceeding/s relative to its properties or property interests of the Company, in the last
five (5) years.

Management's Discussions and Analysis and Plan of Operation for 2019

Oi l and Gas Operations

For 2019, the Company will continue with its business commitments, as a party,
together with other oil exploration companies, in Service Contract 53, a service
contract for the exploration, development and exploitation of natural gas in certain
areas situated in offshore Mindoro.

The consortium for Service Contract 53 has agreed to drill Progreso-2 to fulfil one of
the two (2) well obligations under the Sub-Phase 2 program of the project. The term
for this phase has been suspended since 2012, and will start upon resolution of
pending issues with the NCIP and the Famatodi, Inc., the association of indigenous
peoples in the project area. The Famatodi, Inc. case has been dismissed in 2018, but
the issues with the NCIP have not been resolved by the operator, Mindoro-Palawan
Oil and Gas, Inc. The Department of Energy (DOE), in early 2019, terminated this
service contract and the non-operator members of the consortium have requested the
DOE for a reconsideration of said termination. To date, the DOE has not acted on said

request for reconsideration. The Company has a 3% participation in this service
contract.

The Company's cash requirements for Service Contract 53, for the whole year of 2019
is budgeted at a total of Php 13.214 Million, which will be adequately funded by its
cash and short-term investments. There will be a need for the Company to raise
additional funds and increase manpower should there be new developments to
pursue this project in 2019.

Geothermal Energy Operations

For the Mabini Geothermal Project ( GSC No. 8), the Company has recently submitted
to the Department of Energy (DOE) its proposed work program for Contract Year 10,
which covers the completion of a follow-up well in Barangay Solo, Mabini, Batangas,
within the service contract area. The plan entails securing all permits and finalizing all
contracts and bringing in of the necessary personnel for the completion of the said
well. To date, the Company awaits the action of the DOE on the said work program for
this project.

For the Mariveles Geothermal Project, the Company shall decide on the next steps for
this project after it has received the decision of the DOE on the requested suspension
of obligations in the service contract. The service contract for the West Bulusan

project has already been terminated by the DOE. . For the Iriga Geothermal Project,
the Company will continue to monitor developments on the work program for this
project as approved by the DOE and as implemented by its operator, Desco, Inc.
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The Company shall continue discussions with other companies interested in the
exploration and development of geothermal resources in these service contracts.

The Company's cash requirements for 2019 for GSC No. 8, assuming the drilling of
the follow-up well. Is budgeted at about Php 50.71 Million, which will be adequately
funded by its cash and short-term investments. There may be a need for the
Company to raise additional funds to further develop its geothermal energy projects.
There are plans to increase its present manpower staff or engage the services of
consultants when needed for the technical requirements and acquire additional
computer equipment for these projects.

Hydro-Power Energy Operations

To enable the Company to focus on its geothermal and other renewable energy
projects, the Company has advised the Department of Energy (DOE) of its intentions
to withdraw and return the service contracts for the exploration and development of
hydro-power resources awarded to the Company. The DOE has accepted said
withdrawals, subject to resolution of alleged pending financial commitments of the
Company on these projects.

Business Development

The Company continues to pursue business opportunities for the development of
renewable energy resources whether in the Philippines or abroad.

The Company has decided to invest in Vintage EPC Company Limited ( Thailand) and
VTE International Construction Company Limited (Thailand) up to fifteen per cent
(15%) of the outstanding capital of said companies, after satisfactory due diligence on
the said companies and its projects.

Vintage EPC Company Limited and VTE International Construction Company Limited
are the EPC Contractors for the 220MW Solar Power Project located in Minbu
District, Magway Region, Myanmar, who were engaged by Green Earth Power
(Myanmar) as the owner-developer of the project and the holder of the Power
Purchase Agreement with the Myanmar Government's energy and power ministry.
The design and construction of the project commenced in 2016, and was planned to
be completed in four (4) phases of 50 MW for Phases 1, 2 and 3 and 70 MW for
Phase 4. Phase 1 has been recently completed and is awaiting approval from the
Myanmar Government of certain tests procedures prior to full commercial operation.
As planned, the subsequent phases shall be pursued after completion of the previous
phases, to achieve full completion of the four (4) phases by 2022.

The equity investment is part of the Company's plans to be a major renewable
energy and power company. With this objective, SEC was tasked to develop a robust
portfolio of renewable energy projects such as solar, wind and biomass energy
projects, in the Philippines and abroad, that will provide the Company with a
continuing stream of revenues in the short and mid-terms.

The Company's cash requirements for the business development of renewable
energy projects, is budgeted at about Php 5.0 million, which will be adequately
funded by its cash and short-term investments. There may be a need for the
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Company to raise additional funds for renewable projects which may be invested by
the Company In 2019. There are plans to increase present manpower staff or
engage the services of consultants when needed for the technical requirements and
acquire additional computer equipment for these projects.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for 2018

(a) Full Fiscal Years (Three Years)

2018

For 2018, the Company's total assets stood at Php788.34 million, an increase of
Php36.09 million from its previous year balance of Php752.25 million. Current assets
with a 2018 balance of Php198.54 million decreased by Php62.47 million from the
balance of Php261.01 million in 2017. The decrease in current assets is primarily
attributable to the reclassification of refundable earnest money deposits amounting to
Phpl33.28 million to investment in associates and which was offset with the recognition
of a receivable amounting to Php124.69 million in relation to the sale of an investment
property. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents of Php32.94 million is primarily
attributable to general and administrative expenses for the year amounting to Php56.42
million which was partially offset by the return of the refundable deposit made for the
Saga (Japan) Solar Power project amounting to Php22.82 million. Non-current assets,
however, increased by Php98.56 million from Php491.24 million in 2017 to Php589.8
million in 2018 primarily due to the recognition of investment in associate for the
investment made on two Thailand-based EPC companies for Php217.14 million and the
sale of an investment property amounting to Phpl 14.66 million.

Total liabilities in 2018 closed at Php82.97 million, an increase of Php3.26 million from
the balance of Php79.71 million in 2017. Current liabilities amounting to Php60.10 million
decreased by Php4.45 million from the balance of Php64.55 million in 2017. This was
primarily due to the reclassification of advances from stockholders amounting Php6.67
million to additional paid-in capital and increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses for provisions amounting to Php2.01 million. Non-current liabilities amounting
to Php22.87 million increased by Php7.72 million from the balance of Php15.16 million in
2017. This was due to the increases in deferred income tax liabilities of Php2.91 million
and in accrued retirement benefits of Php4.81 million.

Total equity recorded in 2018 was Php705.36 million, an increase of Php32.82 million
from the balance of Php672.54 million in 2017. This was primarily due to the increases in
capital stock of Php26.72 million for additional subscriptions, additional paid-in capital of
6.40 million, and share in cumulative translation adjustments of associates amounting to
Php27.54 million. The aforementioned increases were offset by the decrease in retained
earnings of Php23.57 million due to the losses incurred for the year.

For 2018, revenue generated amounted to Php60.29 million. Revenue for the year came
from the gain on bargain purchase of Php24.18 million, fair value adjustment on
investment properties of Php21.39 million, realized foreign exchange gains of Php7.59
million, management fees of Php2.97 million, and interest income of Php2.07 million.
Compared to 2017, revenue in 2018 increased by Php52.92 million mainly because of
the gain on bargain purchase, fair value adjustment on investment properties, and
management fees recognized during the year.
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Cost and expenses for 2018 amounted Php82.35 million. Php56.42 million of which are
general and administrative expenses, Php10.73 million are loss on sale of investment
properties, Php5.08 million are share in net loss of associates and Php3.42 million are
interest expenses. Compared to 2017, cost and expenses in 2018 increased by
Php26.25 million primarily because of the loss on the sale of investment properties of
Php10.73 million, share in net loss of associates of Php5.08 million, impairment loss of
goodwill of Php3.76 million, provisions for impairment on deferred costs of Php2.95
million, and interest expense of Php3.42 million.

For the year 2018, the Company recorded a consolidated operating loss of Php25.77
million, Php25.12 million of which is attributable to equity holders of the parent company
and PhpO.65 million to non-controlling interest. Deducting net comprehensive income of
Php25.47 million, total comprehensive loss for the year amounted to PhpO.3 million,
PhpO.3 million of which is attributable to equity holders of the parent company, and
comprehensive income of Php 0.65 million to non-controlling interest.

The aforementioned losses in 2018 were attributable to the absence of a steady flow of
revenues from projects and investments of the Company. For 2018, the revenues
generated from gain on bargain purchase, fair value adjustment on investment
properties, realized foreign exchange gains, management fees, and interest income
were partially offset by the loss on sale of investment properties and share in net loss of
associate. The revenues recognized during the year were not enough to cover the
general and administrative expenses incurred for the year. The geothermal projects of
the Company have long gestation periods and as of the end of 2018, these projects are
still in various exploration stages, where revenues are not expected in the near term and
until these projects progress to commercial operations.

In June 2018, the Company invested for a 15% stake in two Thailand-based EPC
companies which have secured the EPC contracts for the 220MWp Solar Power Project
in Minbu, Myanmar The investment in the aforementioned EPC companies is expected
to contribute positively to the Company's financial position in 2019. The Company also
has participation in the project management of the EPC contracts which entitles the
Company for management fees.

In 2018, the Company continued to explore opportunities for investments in various
energy projects which are shovel-ready or about to commence commercial operations or
otherwise have shorter gestation periods, within the country and abroad. In 2019, the
Company is in discussions with project proponents for wind projects in the Philippines, in
addition to a solar power project located in the Philippines, which has been identified and
which could possibly bring in revenues in the near future. The Company has been in
discussions with the project owners for participation in the aforementioned power
projects.

2017

For 2017, total assets of the Company stood at Php752.25 million, an increase of
Php31.21 million from the balance of Php721.04 million in 2016. Current assets
amounting to Php261.01 million increased by Php90.92 million from the balance of
Php170.09 million in 2016. This was primarily due to the booking of refundable earnest
money deposits amounting to Php171.43 million paid for due diligence audits on various
projects which the Company's intends to invest in subject to favorable results of these
audits. This accounted for the decrease in cash and cash equivalents of Php84.60
million. Non-current assets, however, decreased by Php59.70 million from Php550.95
million in 2016 to Php491.24 million in 2017 primarily due to the decrease in available for
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sale financial assets of Php89.47 million due to sale. This was partially offset by an
increase in deferred exploration costs of Php29.87 million, which booked the costs and
expenses for the existing projects of the Company.

Total liabilities in 2017 closed at Php79.71 million, an increase of Php57,88 million from
the balance of Php21.83 million in 2016. Current liabilities amounting to Php64.55
million increased by Php56.44 million from the balance of Php8.11 million in 20lk This
was primarily due to the availment of a short-term loan from an existing credit line
amounting to Php50 million and the booking of advances from a stockholder of Php6.67
million. Non-current liabilities amounting to Php15.16 million increased by Php1.44
million from the balance of Php13.72 million in 2016. This was due to the increase in
deferred income tax liabilities of Php11.79 million which was partially offset by a
decrease in accrued retirement benefits of Php10.35 million.

Total equity recorded in 2017 was Php672.54 million, a decrease of Php26.67 million
from the balance of Php699.21 million in 2016. This was primarily due to the decreases
in retained earnings of Php 56.56 million due to the losses booked for the year,
revaluation increment in office condominium due to depreciation of Php1.55 million and
net unrealized gains on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets of Php2.74 million.
These decreases, however were partially offset by increases in capital stock and
additional paid-in capital due to additional subscriptions totaling Php40.01 million net of
deposit for future subscriptions of Php13.94 million, remeasurement gain on accrued
retirement benefits of Php6.86 million and translation adjustment of PhpO.86 million.

For 2017, revenue generated amounted to Php7.37 million. Revenue for the year mostly
came from interest and dividend income totaling Php6.92 million and gain on sale of
financial assets of Php1.68 million, net of foreign exchange losses of Php1.38 million.
Compared to 2016, revenue in 2017 decreased by Php90.48 million mainly because in
2016, the Company generated revenue from fair value adjustments on investment
properties amounting to Php71.96 million and unrealized foreign exchange gain of
Php16.41 million.

Cost and expenses for 2017 amounted Php56.10 million, Php55.66 million of which are
in general and administrative expenses and PhpO.45 million in interest expenses.
Compared to 2016, cost and expenses in 2017 decreased by Php162.57 million primarily
because in 2016, the Company recorded provisions for impairment on deferred costs
amounting to Php166.71 million.

For the year 2017, the Company recorded a consolidated operating loss of Php58.24
million, Php58.10 million of which was attributable to equity holders of the parent
company and Php0.14 million to non-controlling interest. Deducting a net
comprehensive income of PhpS.IO million, total comprehensive loss for the year
amounted to Php53.15 million, of which Php53.11 million of which was attributable to
equity holders of the parent company, and Php0.04 million to non-controlling interest.

The aforementioned losses in 2017 were attributable to the absence of a steady flow of
revenues from projects and investments of the Company. For 2017, the revenues were
generated only from interest and dividend income on financial assets of the Company,
which were not sufficient to cover the general and administrative expenses incurred for
the year. The geothermal projects of the Company have long gestation periods and as of
end of 2017, these projects were all still in various pre-development stages, where
revenues were not expected in the near term and until these projects progress to
commercial operations.
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Thus, in 2017, the Company began to explore opportunities for investments in solar and
other energy projects which are shovel-ready or about to commence commercial
operations or otherwise have shorter gestation periods, within the country and abroad.

Among several energy projects considered, three (3) projects abroad were identified in
2017, which could bring in revenues in the near future. The Company has placed
refundable deposits with the project owners to enable the Company to conduct due
diligence work on these projects and secure exclusivity in the negotiations on the
proposed equity investments of the Company in these projects. Due diligence work on
one of these projects have been completed and negotiations are on-going on the terms
and conditions of the Company's equity investments in the project companies. The
relevant agreements are expected to be closed before the end of 2018, which will trigger
the entitlement of the Company to revenues from earnings of the project companies in
2019.

2016

For 2016, total assets of the Company stood at Php721.04 million, a decrease of
Phpl 06.20 million from the balance of Php827.24 million in 2015. Current assets
amounting to Phpl70.09 million decreased by Php37.58 million from the balance of
Php207.67 in 2015. This was primarily due to the decrease in cash and cash
equivalents disbursed for costs and expenses during the year. Non-current assets,
totaling Php550.95 million decreased by Php68.62 million from the balance of Php619.57
million. This was primarily due to the decrease in deferred exploration costs of
Phpl 35.67 due to the provisions for impairment losses booked for the year amounting to
Phpl 66.71 million and the decrease in available for sale (APS) financial assets of
Php24.89 million due to redemption. These decreases, however, were partially offset by
increases in investment properties and property and equipment totaling Php80.87 million
due to revaluation and Phpl 7.30 due to acquisitions.

Total liabilities closed at Php21.83 million, an increase of Phpl.48 million from the
balance of Php20.35 million in 2015. This was primarily due to the increase of Php2.57
million in payables and accrued expenses, partially offset by the decrease in income tax
payable amounting to Phpl. 11 million.

Total equity recorded was Php699.21 million, a decrease of Phpl 07.68 million compared
to the balance of Php806.89 million in 2015. The decrease was primarily due to the
decreases in retained earnings amounting to Php74.13 million due to the losses for the
year, non-controlling interests of Php49.25 million and translation adjustment of Php4.25
million. These decreases were, however, partially offset by deposit on future
subscriptions of Phpl 3.94 million and an increase in revaluation increment of Php6.04
million.

Total revenue generated for the year amounted to Php97.85 million, an increase of
Php47.38 million from the revenue in 2015 of Php50.47 million. Revenues for the year
were mostly from fair value adjustments on investment properties amounting to
Php71.96 million, unrealized foreign exchange gains of Phpl 6.41 million and interests
and dividends totaling Php9.45 million.

Costs and expenses were from general and administrative expenses amounting to Php
51.955 million and provisions for impairment losses on deferred exploration costs of Php
166.713 million. Provisions for impairment losses of Php 147.933 were booked on
deferred costs for the Indonesia oil project as the project was placed on hold by the
middle of 2015 until Pertamina is able to finalize the organizational structure of local
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miners who will handle the management and operation of oil well in said areas and with
whom the Company shall enter into new cooperation agreements.

In addition, Php 16.224 million provisions for impairment losses were booked on
deferred costs for SO 47 as the Department of Energy (DOE) had already approved the
rellnquishment of the service contract by the consortium, which includes the Company,
and Php 2.556 million on deferred costs for hydropower service contracts as the
Company advised the DOE of its intentions to withdraw and return the hydropower
service contracts awarded to the Company.

For the year 2016, the Company recorded a consolidated operating loss of Php124.46
million, Php75.65 million of which was attributable to equity holders of the parent
company and Php48.81 million to non-controlling interests. Deducting a net
comprehensive income of Php2.84 million, total comprehensive loss amounted to
Php121.62 million, Php72.36 million of which was attributable to equity holders of the
parent company, and Php49.25 million to non-controlling interests.

The losses in 2016 were primarily due to the provisions for impairment losses on
deferred exploration costs of Php166.71 million in projects which were placed on hold
and thus were no longer pursued by the Company and on projects which have already
been relinquished to the Department of Energy. On the other hand, revenues in this year
came from fair value adjustments on investment properties, unrealized foreign exchange
gains and interests and dividends on deposits and placements of the Company.

To conserve the cash resources of the Company, the Company decided to farm-out 80%
of its interest in the Iriga Geothermal project to Desco, Inc., which became then the
operator of the said project. The Company likewise farmed out to Desco, Inc. 25% of its
interest in the Mariveles Geothermal project.

With the Mabini Geothermal project still in the exploration phase with the drilling of an
exploratory well, the Company recognized the need to embark on projects which will
generate income for the Company, sooner than the forecasted development and
commercial phases of the said geothermal projects. Various energy projects were looked
into, however, the due diligence studies on these projects were not favorable and will not
achieve the objective of having immediate revenue-generating projects. The Company
continued to aggressively look into other energy projects, and began to search for
investment opportunities in projects abroad.

(b) Interim Period - 1®* Quarter, 2019 (Unaudited as of March 31, 2019)

For the quarter ending March 31, 2019, total assets stood at Php759.35 million, total
liabilities at Php64.29 million and stockholders' equity at Php704.29 million, with minority
interest comprising Php9.23 million.

Total revenues recorded as of March 31, 2019 was Php3.73 million, while total costs and
expenses amounted to Php12.17 million, resulting to a net loss of Php8.44 million with
minority interest recorded at Php0.13 million and for a net loss after minority interest of
Php8.57 million. Revenue for the period was mostly from interest income amounting to
PhpO.78 million, and unrealized foreign exchange gain amounting to Php2.93 million.
Costs and expenses for the period were for general administrative expenses amounting
to Php11.49 and interest expense of PhpO.68 million.
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(c) Interim Period - 2"^ Quarter, 2019 (Unaudited as of June 30, 2019)

For the quarter ending June 30, 2019, total assets stood at Php706.34 million, total
liabilities at Php10.65 million and stockholders' equity at Php679.39 million, with minority
interest comprising Php9.19 million.

Total revenues recorded as of June 30, 2019 was Php10.99 million, while total costs and
expenses amounted to Php43.93 million, resulting to a net loss of Php32.93 million with
minority interest recorded at Php0.17 million and for a net loss after minority interest of
Php33.1 million. Revenue for the period was mostly from interest income amounting to
Php1.76, management service fees amounting to Php5.84 million, and unrealized foreign
exchange gain amounting to Php3.38 million. Costs and expenses for the period were for
general administrative expenses amounting to Php26.34, interest expense of PhpO.89
million, provision for impairment loss of Php12.58 million, and share in net loss of
associate amounting to Php4.12 million.

(d) Key Performance Indicators

The following table shows the top Key Performance indicators of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the past three (3) years;

Key Performance
Indicators

2018 2017 2016

Return on investment -3.74% -8.49% -16.53%

Net profit margin -42.75% -790.56% -127.20%

20.41% 36.61% 38.19%

Investment in wells and other

facilities
15.61% 15.24% 12.18%

Current ratio 3.30:1 4.04:1 20.97:1

Asset turnover 7.65% 1.00% 12.64%

Solvency ratios:

Debt to equity ratio 11.76% 11.85% 3.12%

Asset to equity ratio 111.76% 111.85% 103.12%

Interest coverage ratio -745.91% -11.056.42% na

Return on investment ("ROI") measures the profitability of stockholders' investment.
Profit Margin measures the net income produced by each peso of revenue. Investment in
Projects as a % of total assets, measures how much the Company invested in its
committed work programs. Current ratio measures the short-term debt paying ability of
the Company. Asset turnover measures how efficiently assets are used to produce profit.

ROI was -3.74% in 2018, -8.49% in 2017, and -16.53% in 2016. All three years showed
negative rates because the Company booked losses for these years.

Profit margin was -42.75 in 2018, -790.56% in 2017, and -127.20% in 2016. All three
years showed negative rates because the Company booked net losses for these years
as mentioned in the previous paragraph.
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Investment in non-petroleum projects as a % of total assets was 20.41% in 2018,
36.61% in 2017, and 38.19% in 2016. The decrease in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due

to the decrease in investments while total assets Increased. The decrease in ratio from

2016 to 2017 was due to the increase in total assets while investments remained the

same.

Investment in wells and other facilities as a % of total assets was 15.61% in 2018.

15.24% in 2017, and 12.18% in 2016. The increases in ratio from 2017 to 2018 and 2016

to 2017 were due to the increases in both investments and total assets.

Current ratio was 3.30:1 in 2018, 4.04:1 in 2017, and 20.97:1 in 2016. The decrease in

ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the decrease in current assets. The decrease in ratio

from 2016 to 2017 was due to the increases in both current assets and current liabilities.

Asset Turnover was 7.65% In 2018, 1.00% in 2017, and 12.64% in 2016. The increase in

ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increase in revenue. The decrease in ratio from

2016 to 2017 was due to the decreases in both revenue and average total assets.

Debt to Equity Ratio was 11.76% in 2018, 11.85% in 2017, and 3.12% in 2016. The
decrease in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increase in equity. The increase in
ratio from 2016 to 2017 was due to the increase in liabilities while equity decreased.

Asset to Equity Ratio was 111.76% in 2018, 111.85% in 2017, and 103.12% in 2016.
The decrease in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increase in equity. The increase
in ratio from 2016 to 2017 was due to the increase in total assets while equity decreased.

Interest coverage ratio was -745.91% in 2018, -11,056.42% in 2017, and none in 2016.
The increase in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increase in both interest expense
and EBIT during 2018. The Company did not have any interest expense during 2016.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors

There are no events subsequent to the end of the reporting period that have not been
reflected in the financial statements for the period.

There are no changes in the composition of the company during the period, including
business conditions, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments,
restructurings, and discontinuing operations.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on
the liquidity of the Company.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that are
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations,
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There are no known significant elements of revenues/income or loss from continuing
operations.
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The causes for any material changes (5% of the relevant accounts or such lower
amount, which the Company deems material on the basis of other factors) from period to
period which include vertical and horizontal analysis of any material item, have been
presented in this report.

There are no seasonal aspects that have a material effect on the financial conditions or
results of operations of the Company,

(e) Comparative Analysis

First Quarter of 2019 (Interim Unaudited) vs Fiscal Year 2018 Results of Operations

For the quarter ending March 31, 2019, the company booked total revenues of Php3.73
million with total cost and expenses of Php12.17 million resulting to a net loss of Php8.44
million with minority interest recorded at Php0.13 million for a net loss net of minority
interests of Php8.57 million.

Total revenue for the 1st quarter of 2019 of Php3.73 million was mostly from interest
income amounting to PhpO.78 million and unrealized foreign exchange gain of Php2.93
million.

Total cost and expenses for the 1st quarter of 2019 totaling to Php12.17 million was from
general and administrative expenses amounting to Php11.49 million, and interest
expense amounting to Php0,68 million.

Total assets as of March 31, 2019 stood at Php759.35 million, a decrease of Php28.99
million from Php788.34 million as of December 31, 2018. Current assets amounting to
Php167.51 million decreased by Php31.03 million from the balance of Php198.54 million
as of December 31, 2018.

The decrease in current assets was primarily due to the cash used for operations,
requirements of the existing projects, and partial settlement of the bank loan. Non-
current assets increased by Php2.04 million, primarily due to the increases in investment
in associates of Php1.8 million and financial assets at FVOCI of Php1.12 million.

Total liabilities decreased by Php18.68 million from Php82.97 million as of December 31,
2018 to Php64.29 million as of March 31, 2019 due to the partial settlement of the loan
payable for Php20 million.

Total stockholders' equity as of March 31, 2019 stood at Php704.29 million, a decrease
of Php10.44 million from Php714.73 million as of December 31, 2018. This was due to
the net loss booked for the 1st quarter of 2019 of Php8.57 million and cumulative
translation adjustment of Php2.99 million.

First Quarter, 2019 (interim Unaudited) vs. First Quarter, 2018 Results of Operations

The Company recorded total revenues of Php3.73 million for the 1st quarter ending
March 2019, an increase of Php3.16 million from the balance as of the same quarter in
2018 of PhpO.57 million.

The increase in revenues during the 1st quarter of 2019 as compared to the same
quarter in 2018 was primarily from the unrealized foreign exchange gain amounting to
Php2.93 million recorded in the 1st quarter of 2019.
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Costs and expenses for the 1st quarter of 2019 amounted Php12.17 million, a decrease
of Php4.04 million from the balance of Php16.21 million for the same quarter of 2018.
The decrease was attributable to the unrealized foreign exchange loss recognized in the
1st quarter of 2018 and the decreased in general and administrative expenses of
Php2.93 million.

For the 1st quarter of 2019, the Company booked a net loss on a consolidated basis
after minority interest of Php8.57 million as compared to the net loss booked during the
1st quarter of 2018 amounting to Php15.49 million.

Total assets as of March 31, 2019 stood at Php759.35 million a decrease of Php19.44
million from Php739.91 million as of March 31, 2018. Current assets decreased by
Php76.84 million primarily due to the decrease in refundable deposits of Php131.82
million which was offset by the increases in cash and cash equivalents of Php27.96
million and receivables of Php27.1 million. The decrease in refundable deposits is
primarily due to the reciassification to investment in associates of the portion attributable
to the investment of the Company in the two Thailand based EPC companies. Non-
current assets increased by Php96.28 million primarily due to the recognition of the
investment in associates amounting to Php218.94 million which was partially offset by
the decreased in investment properties amounting to Php114.5 million.

Total liabilities closed at Php64.29 mlltion as of March 31, 2019, a decrease of Php11.17
million from the balance of Php75,46 million as of March 31, 2018. The decrease is
primarily attributable to the partial settlement of the loan payable for Php20 million and
was partially offset because of the increases in accrued retirement benefits payable of
Php4.32 million and deferred income tax liabilities of Php2.91 million.

Total stockholders' equity as of March 31, 2019 stood at Php704.29 million, an increase
of Php30.67 million from Php673.61 million as of March 31, 2018. The increase was
primarily due to additional subscriptions amounting to Php 26.72 million and share in
cumulative translation adjustment of associates amounting to Php27.54 million. The
increases were partially offset by the decreases in retained earnings amounting to
Php16.65 million and cumulative translation adjustments amounting to Php4,65 million.

Second Quarter of 2019 (Interim Unaudited) vs Fiscal Year 2018 Results of Operations

For the quarter ending June 30, 2019, the company booked total revenues of Php2.47
million with total cost and expenses of Php33.88 million resulting to a net loss of
Php31.41 million with minority interest recorded at PhpO.42 million for a net loss net of
minority interests of Php31.46 million.

Total revenue for the 2nd quarter of 2019 of Php2.47 million was mostly from interest
income amounting to PhpO.78 million, management service fees of Php1.03 million and
unrealized foreign exchange gain of PhpO.46 million.

Total cost and expenses for the 2nd quarter of 2019 totaling to Php33.88 million was
from general and administrative expenses amounting to Php14.85 million, provision for
impairment loss of Php12.58 million, share in net loss of associate of Php6.24 million
and interest expense amounting to Php0.21 million.

Total assets as of June 30, 2019 stood at Php706.34 million, a decrease of Php82
million from Php788.34 million as of December 31, 2018. Current assets amounting to
Php131.84 million decreased by Php66.7 million from the balance of Phpl98.54 million
as of December 31, 2018.
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The decrease in current assets was primarily due to the cash used for operations,
requirements of the existing projects, and settlement of the bank loan. Non-current
assets decreased by Php15.29 million, primarily due to the decreases in investment in
associates of Php2.32 million, property and equipment of Php2.57 million and provision
for impairment of deferred charges of Php12.39 million.

Total liabilities decreased by Php49.45 million from Php60.1 million as of December 31,
2018 to Php10.65 million as of June 30, 2019 due to the settlement of the PhpSO million
loan payable.

Total stockholders' equity as of June 30, 2019 stood at Php679.39 million, a decrease of
Php35.34 million from Php714.73 million as of Decemljer 31, 2018. This was due to the
net loss booked for the period ended June 30, 2019 of Php33.1 million and cumulative
translation adjustment of Php3.66 million.

Second Quarter, 2019 (Interim Unaudited) vs. Second Quarter, 2018 Results of
Operations

The Company recorded total revenues of Php2.47 million for the 2nd quarter ending
June 30, 2019, an increase of Php2.08 million from the balance as of the same quarter in
2018 of PhpO.38 million.

The increase in revenues during the 2nd quarter of 2019 as compared to the same
quarter in 2018 was primarily from the increase in interest income of PhpO.63 million
management service fees amounting to Php1.03 million and unrealized foreign
exchange gain amounting to PhpO.46 million recorded in the 2nd quarter of 2019,

Costs and expenses for the 2nd quarter of 2019 amounted Php33.88 million, an increase
of Php6.39 million from the balance of Php27.49 million for the same quarter of 2018.
The increase was attributable to the provision for impairment losses amounting to
Php12.58 million and share in net loss of associates amounting to Php6.24 million
recognized in the 2nd quarter of 2019. The increases in cost and expenses for the 2nd
quarter of 2019 were partially offset by the decreases in general and administrative
expenses of Php4.38 million, unrealized foreign exchange loss of Php7.48 million and
interest expense of PhpO.57 million.

For the 2nd quarter of 2019, the Company booked a net loss on a consolidated basis
after minority interest of Php31.46 million as compared to the net loss booked during the
2nd quarter of 2018 amounting to Php26.37 million.

Total assets as of June 30, 2019 stood at Php706.34 million a decrease of Php16.58
million from Php722.92 million as of June 30, 2018. Current assets decreased by
Php93.57 million primarily due to the decrease in refundable deposits of Php131.82
million which was offset by the increases in cash and cash equivalents of Php5 million
and receivables of Php32.96 million. The decrease in refundable deposits is primarily
due to the reclassification to investment in associates of the portion attributable to the
investment of the Company in the two Thailand based EPC companies. Non-current
assets increased by Php76.99 million primarily due to the recognition of the investment
in associates amounting to Php214.82 million which was partially offset by the decreased
in investment properties amounting to Phpl 14.5 million.

Total liabilities closed at Php10.65 million as of June 30, 2019, a decrease of Php54.84
million from the balance of Php65.48 million as of June 30, 2018, The decrease is
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primarily attributable to the settlement of the Php50 million loan payable and
reclassification of the advances from shareholders of Php6.67 million to equity.

Total stockholders' equity as of June 30, 2019 stood at Php679.39 million, an increase of
Php31.41 million from Php647.98 million as of June 30, 2018. The increase was
primarily due to additional subscriptions amounting to Php 26.72 million, increase in
additional paid-in capital of 6.4 million and share in cumulative translation adjustment of
associates amounting to Php27.54 million. The increases were partially offset by the
decreases in retained earnings amounting to Php14.51 million and cumulative translation
adjustments amounting to Php13.22 million.

2018 vs 2017 Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded total revenue of
Php60.29 million an increase of Php52.92 million compared to the revenue booked as of
the year ended December 31, 2017 of Php7.37 million. The increase was mainly due to
the gain on bargain purchased amounting to Php24.18 million, fair value adjustment on
investment properties amounting to Php21.39 million and the realized foreign exchange
gains amounting to Php7.59 million.

Costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to Php82.35
million, an increase of Php26.26 million from costs and expenses booked for the year
ended December 31, 2017 of Php56.1 million. The increase was mainly due to the loss
on sale of investment properties amounting to Php10.73 million, share in net loss of
associate recognized for the year amounting to Php5.08 million, impairment loss of
goodwill recognized for 2018 amounting to Php3.76 million, provisions for impairment
losses on deferred exploration costs that were booked in 2018 in the amount of Php2.95
million, and increase in interest expense for 2018 by Php2.97 million.

The Company recorded a net operating loss on a consolidated basis of Php25.77 million
and a total comprehensive loss of PhpO.3 million for the year ended 2018 as compared
to a net operating loss of Php58.24 million and total comprehensive loss of Php53.15
million for the year ended 2017.

2017 vs. 2016 Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded total revenue of
Php7.37 million a decrease of Php90.48 million compared to the revenue booked as of
the year ended December 31, 2016 of Php97.85 million. The decrease was mainly due
to the fair value adjustment on investment properties recognized in 2016 amounting to
Php71.96 million and the decrease in unrealized foreign exchange gains of Php17.8
million.

Costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to Php56.1
million, a decrease of Phpl 62.57 million from costs and expenses booked for the year
ended December 31, 2016 of Php218.67 million. The decrease was mainly due to the
provisions for impairment losses on deferred costs that was booked in 2016 in the total
amount of Php166.71 million.

The Company recorded a net operating loss on a consolidated basis of Php58.24 million
and a total comprehensive loss of Php53.14 million for the year ended 2017 as
compared to a net operating loss of Php124.46 million and total comprehensive loss of
Php121.62 million for the year ended 2016.
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2016 vs. 2015 Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31. 2016, the Company recorded total revenue of
Php97.85 million an increase of Php47.38 million compared to the revenue booked as of
the year ended December 31, 2015 of Php50.47 million. The increase was mainly due
to the fair value adjustment on investment properties booked for the year amounting to
Php71.96 million and the increase in unrealized foreign exchange gains amounting to
Php22.41 million. These increases, however, were partially offset by decreases in gain
on sale of APS financial asset of Php45 million, dividend and interest income of Php2.16
million.

Costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 amounted to Php218.67
million, an increase of Php170.19 million from costs and expenses booked for the year
ended December 31, 2015 of Php48.48 million. The increase was mainly due to the
provisions for impairment losses on deferred costs that were booked in 2016 in the total
amount of Php166.71 million.

The Company recorded a net operating loss on a consolidated basis of Phpl 24,46
million and a total comprehensive loss of Php121.62 million for the year ended 2016 as
compared to a net operating loss of Phpl.19 million and total comprehensive loss of
Php30.33 million for the year ended 2015.

(e) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosures

There were no disagreements with the Company's external auditors on any accounting
and financial disclosures in the 2018 audited financial statements of the Company.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial
reporting year, except for the following revised and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine
Interpretations, based on the International Financial Reporting Committee
Interpretations, which the Company adopted as of January 1, 2018, namely:

I. Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions. Adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements;

ii. Adoption of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. PFRS reflects all phases of the financial
instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The Corporation has provided
the required information in the Notes to the 2018 consolidated financial statements;
and

iii. Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4. The
amendments were not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the
Group have activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or Issue
Insurance contracts.

Iv. Adoption of PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. PFRS 15
supersedes PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related
Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers,
unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. Adoption of the standard
did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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V. Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part
of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle). The adoption of these
amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

vi. Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property. The
Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of
these amendments did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

vii. Adoption of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration. The Group's current practice was in line with the
clarifications issued, the adoption of these interpretations did not have any significant
effect on its consolidated financial statements.

The abovementioned amendments were applied retrospectively. However, their
application has no effect on the Corporation's financial position and performance as the
Corporation has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of
the amendments.

The above changes were disclosed in the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of
the Company as of December 31, 2018.

PART II. SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

(A) Market Price and Dividends Information

(1) Market Information

The shares of stock of the Company are traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange.
The Company's high and low closing prices for each quarter of years 2017 and 2018,
and the first two (2) quarters of 2019, are as follows:

HIGH LOW

2017 2018 2019 2017 2018 2019

1®'Quarter PhpO.415 PhpO.224 PhpO.249 PhpO.187 PhpO.216 Php 0.241

2"^ Quarter 0.32 0.235 0.268 0.235 0.226 0.256

3^ Quarter 0.30 0.241 0.241 0,231

4'^ Quarter 0.24 0.234 0.208 0.224

The last trading price of shares of the Company at close of trading as of August 30, 2019
was PhpO.2490 per share. Further, the high and low sales prices of shares of the
Company, as of August 30, 2019 were Php0,2550 and PhpO.2410 per share,

respectively.
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HOLDERS

Top 20 Stockholders as of August 31, 2019:

NAME OUTSTANDING SHARES PERCENTAGE

PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 2,229,624,408 79.19%

PCD Nominee Corporation (Foreign) 146,277,805 5.20%

Vintage Engineering Public Co. Ltd. 106892,000 3.80%

Christodel Phils, Inc. 25,736,744 0.91%

Isidore 0. Tan 24,822,276 0.88%

Phases Realtors, Inc. 20,989,439 0.75%

Northwest Traders Corporation 20,745,757 0.74%

Jose C. De Venecia, Jr. 10,013,225 0.36%

Samuel Uy 10,000,000 0.36%

Northwest Investors, Inc. 8,708,890 0.31%

Mark Anthony L. De Venecia 8,363,333 0.30%

JLV Holdings, Inc. 7,200,000 0.26%

MDV Holdings, Inc 5,070,000 0.18%

Horacio Rodriguez 4,408,523 0.16%

Northwest Securities, Inc. 3,998,109 0.14%

Christine Chua 3,149,221 0.11%

East West Commodities, Inc. 3,019,498 0.11%

Renato Castaneda 2,500,000 0.09%

Vicky Chua 2,500,000 0.09%

Archivald Po 2,500,000 0.09%

The Company is In compliance with the minimum public ownership requirement
prescribed under existing regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Philippine Stock Exchange. The Company's level of public float as of August
31, 2019 is 86.62 % of total issued and outstanding shares.

3) DIVIDENDS

a) No cash/stock dividends have been declared in 2017 and 2018.
b) There are no restrictions that limit the payment of dividend on common

shares

4) RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED OR EXEMPT SECURITIES

a. SOP Shares

The subscription and issuance of shares under the Company's Stock Option Plan
(SOP), are covered by a Certificate of Exemption from the registration requirements
of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 8, 2011. The exemption was pursuant to Section 10.2 of
the SRC, in view of the fact that the issuance of said SOP shares is limited in

character in that the right/option to purchase the shares of stock are limited to the 33

directors, members of the Advisory Board, officers and employees of the Company.

As at the expiry of the SOP option on July 11, 2013, a total of 500,000,000 common
shares of the Company were subscribed for cash and at the price of PhpO.25 per
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share, which Is the par value of the said shares. There were no underwriting

discounts or commissions given or paid by the Company.
«

A total of seventeen (17) directors, members of the Advisory Board, officers and

employees of the Company, exercised option rights under the Company's SOP:

Subscribers Shares Subscribed Date of Subscription
Directors

Oscar C. De Venecia. 30,000,000 4.27.12

5,500,000 4.27.12

16,500,000 7.03.13

Francis C. Chua 30,000,000 ■4.27.12

5,500,000 4.27.12

16,500,000 7.03.13

Ramon L. Mapa 30,000,000 4.27.12

Oscar L. De Venecia, Jr. 28,500,000 4.27.12

3,025,000 7.03.13

18,975,000 7.03.13

Jaime J. Martirez 30,000,000 4.26.12

30,100,000 7.03.13

Ma. Fiorina M. Chan 30,000,000 4.26.12 ■

22,000,000 7.03.13

Eduardo V. Manalac 30,000,000 4.27.12

Gabriei R. Singson, Jr. 30,000,000 4.27.12

Isidoro 0. Tan 30,000,000 4.26.12

22,000,000 7.03.13

. Oscar S. Reyes 30,000,000 9.26.12

22,000,000 7.03.13

Dennis D. Decena 4,000,000 •9.26.12

Advisory Board
Jose 0. De Venecia, Jr. 5,000,000 4.26.12

12,000,000 7.03.13

Leonardo R. Arguelles, Jr. 8,100,000 7.03.13

Officers

Emelinda 1. Dizon 10,000,000 . 7.03.13

Corazon M. Bejasa 100,000 9.26.12

Aiberto P. Morillo 100,000 9.26.12

Marietta V. Villafuerte 100,000 9.26.12-

Totai 500,000,000

b. Issuance of Shares to Vintage Engineering Public Company of Thailand

Vintage Engineering Public Company, a publicly listed company registered in
Thailand, subscribed to 43,565,870 shares on February 24, 2017. The issuance of
said shares was confirmed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
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March 21, 2017 as an exempt transaction under Section 10.1 (k) of the Securities
Regulation Code, where the total number of subscribers is not more than nineteen
(19). Additional shares of 104,816,332 shares and 106,892,000 were issued as of
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, respectively, which share issuances
was confirmed by the Securities and Exchange Commission as exempt transactions
under said Section 10.1 (k) of the Securities Regulation Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

New Corporate Governance Manual

Pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance for Publlcly Listed Companies embodied in

SEC Memorandum Circular No. 19, series of 2016, the Company adopted its new Manual

on Corporate Governance which was submitted to the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 31, 2017. The Manual contains the following main provisions;

1. The Board's Governance Responsibilities
2. Disclosure and Transparency
3. Internal Control System and Risk Management Framework
4. Cultivating a Synergic Relationship with Shareholders, and
5. Duties to Stakeholders

Corporate Governance Committee

The Board of Directors has established a Corporate Governance Committee since 2009.
The Committee assists and guides the Board in the performance of its corporate governance
responsibilities, and is thus responsible for maintaining and ensuring good governance of the
Company, and compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and following to the extent
possible, best business practices on corporate governance, applicable to publicly listed
companies in the energy development sector.

The Committee is presently composed of seven (7) members, three (3) of whom are
independent directors and the Chairman being an independent director, as follows:

Harvey L. N. Dychiao - Chairman
Eduardo V. Manalac • Member

Oscar S. Reyes - Member
Ma. Fiorina M. Chan - Member

Francis C. Chua - Member

Jaime J. Martirez - Member

Isidore O. Tan - Member

Evaluation Process for Assessing Compliance with the Manual on Corporate
Governance

The Corporate Governance Committee has adopted a Performance Evaluation Self Rating
Form to evaluate the level of compliance by the Board, the Board Committees and the

individual members of the Board, with the Company's Manual on Corporate Governance and
the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies. The performance
evaluation was conducted last May, 2019, the over-all rating of which is Mostly
Satisfactory/Exceeds Standards. The Corporate Governance Committee shall monitor the
evaluation process which shall be undertaken on a periodic basis, at least annually, to
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ensure a reasonable level of compliance by the Board, the members thereof and the Board

Committees. Every three (3) years, an external facilitator may be engaged to assist the

Board in the evaluation process to achieve objectivity of the assessment.

Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Company has submitted its 2018 Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report {I-

ACGR) to the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange, on

May 30, 2019 and is posted in the Company's website.

Internal Control

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company's system of internal financial control.

This system is designed to promote reasonable assurance against any material

misstatement, risks or loss. It aims to ensure that the assets of the Company are

safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained and that the financial information
used within the business and for publication is reliable.

The Company has its Internal Audit Manual, setting the internal audit policies, internal

control systems and procedures and reporting of internal audit results to the Audit

Committee and to the Board of Directors.

Anti-Money Laundering Manual

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted its Anti-Money Laundering Manual,
The Company is in compliance with the provisions of its Anti-Money Laundering Manual.

REQUEST FOR 2017 ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17-A

The Corporation will provide without charge each person solicited, on the written
request of any such person, a copy of the Corporation's Annual Report for 2018 (SEC
Form 17-A). Such written request should be directed to the:

Corporate Secretary
Basic Energy Corporation
7*^ Floor, Basic Petroleum BIdg.
104 Carlos Palanca, Jr. St., Legaspl Village
MakatI City

At the discretion of Management, a charge may be made for exhibits, provided the
charge is limited to reasonable expenses incurred by the Corporation In furnishing
the exhibits.

September 3. 2019, MakatI City.

OSCAR L. DE VENECIA, JR.

President & CEO
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BASIC ENERGY
o® CORPORAT I ON

SECORITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Building, PICC Complex
Manila

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY

FOR nNANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Basic Energy Corpofaiion and Subsidiaries, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements including tiie schedules attached tlicreln, for the years ended Decemb^31,2018 and 2017, in accordance
with the prescribed financial rq)orting framework indicated frierein, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that arc free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abili^ to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applic^Ie mat^ related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intent^ to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sc..

The Board ofDirectors is re^xmsible for overseeing the Company's financial rqx>rting process.

The Boani of DirectOTS reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, and submits the
same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has ̂ djted the financial statements of
flje company inySccordance with Pbtlippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to fie Stockholders or members, has
expressed its the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

OSCAR C/DE VENECIA

Chairman of the Board

OSCAR L. DE ̂NECIA, JR.
President &Chief^xecutive Officer

ALAIN^rPANGAN

Vice President- Finance

Signed this 28th day of March, 2019.

APR 11 ?ni9
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mc this day of
as follows:

,2019 affiants having cxhibHed to me their TIN #

Name

Oscar C. De Venecia

Oscar L. De Venecia,Jr.
Alain S. Pangan

Doc. No. ̂ 7
Page No.
Book No.2^(
Series of 2019.

TIN Number

130-704-840-000

149-709-049-000

215-611-246-000

Notary Public
MA.

7F Basic Petroieum Buddng, 104 Carlos Palanca, Jr. Street Lagaspi Village,

(632) 8178536 or 9B f (632)6170191

ER CU NAN
ubUc

31.
No. 20 No
Of VImp

No aWTMCLad Oiy
lep

MMuUiCtW
www,faasic«neray.pn



o

COVER SHEET
for

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC ReflislTBtion Numbflt

COMPANY NAME

B A S I C E N £ R G Y C 0 R P 0 R A T I O N A N D s

U B S I D I A R 1 E S

PRINCIPAL OFFICE f No. /Street/Barangey/Cfty/Tom/Provincej

7 I t h F 0 0 r • B a s i c P e t r 0 1 e u m 6 U i

1 d i n e » C
•

P a 1 a n c a J r s t r e e t y

L e g a s P i V i 1 1 a g e ) M a k a t i C i t y

fonm r)rpe ^epartmenl reqirttlno the report Seccodarylkjensfl Type tfApoiicsth

I 7 - A C R M D N / A

COMPANY INFORMATION

basic@basiceiiei^,ph

uornpanjri teepnone Number

(632) 817-8596 & 98

Mobne Number

N/A

No. of Stockholders Annuel Meettnp (Month / Oav) Fisctf Year (Month/Day]

6,587 6/27 12/31

CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION

Name oi Coniact Person

Aleio S. Pacgan

The desfgnated conacl person m/ST be an Officer of the Corporstkn

EmaJ Address Telephone Numbeifs

• aspangan@b8sicenergy.ph
MobSe Number

817-8596 0999-227-8352

CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS

709 Coronsdo St, Hulo, Mandaluyong City

thkty pOJ "tendar days from the occu/reoc© thereof sflft tofomwfion and conpfeie conlaa dsteiSs of (he new coidact person (tesbnet«f.
fifed-wp. FalhJie to do so shall cause the delay In updating the corpemtkm i records irth (he Commsswandrbf non^ceipt of NotKe of Oefcwdw. Furlfrer. non-fecelpt of Notice of Defickncies shaS not excuse the co/porelbo ftom SabBdy for ts de/k/encies.



0700 Ayalfl Avonno Fflx (032)010087? OclObOf 4. 2018, valid unlit Auoust 24, 2021

n iMi ka** 1226 Mflkail City oycom/ph SdC Aci;rodllj»(ion No 0012 (»( 5 (Gfoup A)
PH'lippines Novombar 8 2018 valid uniil Novembcf 5, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Basic Energy Corporation and Subsidiaries
7th Floor, Basic Petroleum Building
C. Palanca Jr. Street, Legaspi Village
Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Basic Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes In equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the co^olidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated '
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each oftlie three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit
ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the eth ical requirements that arc relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to this matter.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. TTie results of our audit
procedures including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Accounting for Investments fn Associates

On July 2, 2018, the Group acquired Interests in Vintage KPC Co. Ltd. (VEPC) and VTIi Intcrnaiional
Construction Co. Ltd. (VrNTER) fora total consideration of PM5.05 million. TTie Group has detcmiincd
that it exercises significant influence over VEPC and VINTER, hence, accounts for these investments as
associates using the equity method. As of December 31, 2018, the carrying value of these investments in
associates amounted to P2I7.14 million, while the equit>' in net losses ofthese associates for the period
from July 2,2018 to December 31,2018 amounted to P5.08 million. We consider the accounting for this
acquisition as a key audit matter due to the transaction's financial significance to the Group and the
significant management judgment involved in the determination of the existence of significant influence.
The equity accounting for these investments was considered a matter of most significance to our audit due
to the manual nature of the calculations supporting equity accounting.

The relevant disclosures are presented in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audil response

^  We obtained an understanding of the transaction through discussions with management and our review of
the Share Purchase Agreement. We also reviewed management's accounting for tlie business acquisition,
including the purchase price allocation, and the assessment of significant influence in accordance with
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 28, fnvestmenls in Associates and Joint Ventures. We involved
our internal specialist in the review of the methodology and assumptions used in tJie purchase price
allocation. We evaluated management's assessment of the acquisition date and performed procedures to
check the results of operations commencing from the acquisition date. We also evaluated the presentation
and the disclosure of the transaction in the consolidated financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of the Group's process in recognizing its equip' in net losses of its
associates, including the understanding of the associates* business transactions. We recalculated the
Group's equity in net losses of associates based on the associates' audited financial statements. In
addition, our audit procedures included, among others, coordinating and instructing the statutory auditors
of the associates to perform an audit on the relevant financial information of VEPC and VINTER for the
purpose of the Group's consolidated financial statements. Wc considered the risk assessment, audit
strategy of the statutory auditors, as well as any significant developments about the associates. Wc
further evaluated management's considerations regarding the impairment indicators of the investments in

^  . associates by reviewing the associates' results of operations as well as the associates' ability to declare
dividends.

Valuation of Investment Properties at Fair Vahie
The Group accounts for its investment properties, which consist of parcels of land, using the fair value
model. The Group engaged an appraiser in 2018 to estimate the fair values of the investment properties
as at December 31, 2018. The determination of the fair values of these investment properties involves
significant management judgment and consideration of various inputs to the estimation. The valuation
also requires the assistance of professionally qualified external appraiser whose calculations also depend
on certain assumptions such as sales and listing of comparable properties registered within the vicinity
and adjustments to sales price based on internal and external factors. Furthermore, the investment
properties represented 21 % of the consolidated total assets as at December 31, 2018. Accordingly, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter.

The Group's disclosures about investment properties are presented in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Audit response

We considered the competence, objectivity, capabilities of the external appraiser given its qualifications,,
experience and reporting responsibilities. We involved our internal specialist in the review of the
methodology and assumptions used in the valuation of the investment properties. We assessed the
methodology adopted by referencing to common valuation models, and evaluated key inputs used in the
valuation, specifically size, characteristics of lot, location and quality as well as listings of comparable
properties by reference to historical data and comparable properties. We inquired from the external
appraiser the basis of adjustments made to the sales price. We also reviewed the disclosures relating to
investment properties.

Recoverabi'litv of Deferred Exploration Costs

Under PFRS 6, Explorationfor and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, the Group's deferred exploration
costs shall be assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts
exceed the recoverable amounts. The ability of the Group to recover its deferred exploration costs
depends on the success of exploration for and evaluation of geothermal and other renewable resources in

/ ^ the specific area. Deferred exploration costs amounted to ?123.04 million as at December 31, 2018,
which pertains to the Group's participating interests in geothermal and other renewable resources service
contracts. TTie Group recogjiized additional allowance for impairment of deferred exploration costs
amounting to P2.98 million in 2018. We considered this as a key audit matter in view of the materiality
of this account and the significant management judgment required when performing an impairment
assessment.

Information about the Group's deferred exploration costs are presented in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit response

We obtained management's assessment on whether there is any indication that deferred exploration costs
may be impaired. We obtained and reviewed the summary of the status of each exploration project as at
December 31, 2016, as certified by the Group's drilling and logistics manager, and compared it with the
disclosures submitted to the regulatory agency. We also inspected service contracts and the relevant joint
operations agreement for each of the exploration projects to detennine that the period for which the
Group has the right to explore in the specific area has not expired or is not expiring in the near future. We

(  ) also read the minutes of the meetings of the Group's Board of Directors for the discussion of management
plans and significant developments on the service contracts or of any concession areas chat are expected
to be abandoned or any exploration activities that are planned to be discontinued in those areas.

Other Information
s

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form I7-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31,2018, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS, SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our iTisponsibility is to read ilic
other infonnation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so. consider whether tlie other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

RespoDsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance witli PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements. ..

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

•  Obtain an underetanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on tlie
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
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report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures ore
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the oudil evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in.a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fmancial Information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
.  and timing of the audit and significant audh findings, including any si^iflcant deficiencies in internal
r ) control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Leovina Mae V. Chu.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Leovina Mae V. Chu

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 99910

SEC Accreditation No. I712-A (Group A),
October 18.2018, valid until October 17,2021

Tax Identification No. 209-316-911
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-96-2018,

February 2. 2018, valid until February 1, 2021
PTR No. 7332629, January 3, 2019, Makati City

March 28. 2019
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ASSETS

:)i 7

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Receivables (Notes 7 and 12)
Refundable deposits (Note 8)
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 9)
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Financial assets at FVOCJ (Note 10)
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets (Note 10)
Investments in associates (Note II)
Investment properties (Note 12)
Deferred exploration costs (Note 13)
Property and equipment (Note 14)

At revalued amount
At cost

Other noncurrent assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

P42,093,952
127,372,857
16,183,711
12,888,673

44,336,517

217,136,156
160,879.000
123,042,519

23,302327
17,730.064
3372320

P75,029,384
2,687,022

171,429,108
11,864.021

198,539,193 261.009,535

46,051,128

275,380,505
.  114,658.256

25,593,527
20,479,445
9,080,247

589,798,903 491.243.108

^788338,096 P752,252.643

LUBILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilitin r

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 15)
Loan payable (Note 16)
Dividends payable
Income tax payable
Advances from stockholder (Note 19)

1^8,994,164
50,000,000

888,714
216,908

P6.979.960
50.000,000

888,714
11,800

6,670.782
Total Current Liabilities 60.099.786 64,551,256

Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities - net (Note 22)
Accrued retirement benefits (Note 21) 15,006350

7.867346
12,099,296
3.059 130

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 22,873.696 15,158 426
Total Liabilities 82.973,482 79.709,682

(Forward)
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December 3J

2018

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Common stock (Note 17) P703348,178
Additional paid-in capital (Note 17) 42,021,503
Equity reserve on acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 17) (53,945,929)
Odier comprehensive income:

Revaluation increment in olfice condominium (Note 14) 15,747,863
Net unrealized gains on changes in fair value of financial assets

at FVOCI and AFS financial assets (Note 10) 1,183,379
Remeasurement gains on accrued retirement

benefits (Note 21) 1,751,984
Cumulative translation adjustment (CTA) (4^74,615)
Share in cumulative translation adjustments of

associates (Note 11) 27,544,449

2017

P677.I25.I78

35.6)7.951

(53,945,929)

17,296,833

2,897,990

2,163,118

(4,423,295)

Equity Attributable to Equity Holdera of the Parent Company
Equity Attributable to Non-controlllne Interests (Note 17)

717,966,060

(9,361,446)

684,493.747

(8.710.786)

Treasury stock - at cost (Note 17)
708,604,614

(3,240.000)
675.782,961
(3,240.000)

Total Equity 705364,614 672,542.961

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P788J38,096 P752,252.643

See accompanying Holes to Consolidated Financial Staiemenis
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2015

( )

o

INCOME

Excess in net assets acquired over cost of associate (Note 11) P24,184,059 P-
Fair value adjustment on investment properties (Note 12) 21,394,000
Realized foreign exchange gains ■ net 7,589,474 144,186
Management fee (Note 19) 2,967,471
Interest income (Note 18) 2,071,143 3,292,064
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - net 1,488,509 '
Reversal of allowance for impairment on receivables (Note 7) 590,941
Dividend income (Note 10) 1^180 3,625,953
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets (Note 10) - 1,680,256
Gain on sale of property and equipment

71,955,696

24,243

4,633,256
16,414,280

4,820,629

60,286,877 8,742,459 97,849,715

E?CPENSES (CHARGES)
General and administrative expenses (Note 20)
Loss on sale of investment properties (Note 12)
Share in net loss of associates (Note 11)
Goodwill impairment loss
Interest expense (Note 16)
Provision fbr impairment of deferred exploration costs

(Note 13)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net

56,423,495
10,728,788
5,077,498
3,757,602

3,415,799

2,946,624

55,655,931

444,792

■  1,375,008

51,954,997

166,713,571

82,349,806 57.475.731 218.668,568

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 22,062,929 48,733.272 120,818,853

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 22)
Final

Current

Deferred

409,192
216,908

3,083,254

648,738
11,800

8,850.560

922,634
7,424

2,711,401

3.709.354 9,511.098 3.641.459

NET LOSS P25J72.283 P58,244.370 P124,460.312

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TOj

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests (Note 17)

P25,121,623
650,660

P58,I04,275
140,095

P75,648,092
48,812.220

P25,772,283 P58,244.370 P124.460,312

LOSS PER SHARE (Note 23)
Basic/Diluted PO.0.09 P0.022 P0.030

See accompanying Noies lo Consotidate'd FimnciplStaitemenis,



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPHEIIENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

(( )

2018 2017 2016

NET LOSS F25,772.283 P58.244.370 P124.460.312

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Unrealized loss on changes in fair value of:

Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 10)
AFS financial assets (Note 10)

Share in cumulative translation adjustments of
associates (Note 11)

Movement in cumulative translation adjustments

(2^14,611)

27,544,449
48,680

(2,740,758)

974.805

111.396

(4,693.215)

25,378.518 (1.765,953) (4.581,819)
Other comprehensive income Ooss) not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits

liability (Note 21)
Income tax effect

(587334)
176J00

9,805,648
(2.941.694)

(194,960)
58.488

(411,134) 6,863.954 (136.472)
Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of financial

assets at FVOCI (Note 10) 500,000
Revaluation increment in office condominium (Note 14)
Income tax effect

-
- 10.802,318

(3.240.695)

7,561.623
88,866 6.863.954 7,425.151

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 25,467384 5.098.001 2,843.332

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS P304399 P53,146.369 PI21.6I6,98D

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS aNCOME)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Equity hold«s of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interest

(P345,761)
650,660

PS3,)05,8S3
40.486

P72,364,304

49,252,676

P304,899 P53.146.369 P[21.616,980

See accompa/^ng Notes to ConsolidatedFinancial Statements.



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMRER 31,2018,2017 AND 2016
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

201R 20J7 201<i

(  )

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax

Adjustments for;
Excess of net assets acquired over cost of associate (Note 11)
Fair value adjusimcni on invcslrncm properties (Mote 12)
Loss on sale of investment propenics (Note 12)
Depreciation and amortization (Note 14)
Share in net loss of associates (Note 11)
Retirement expense (Note 21)
Goodwill impairment loss
Interest expense (Note 16)
Provision for impairment of deferred exploration costs
(Note 13)

Interest income (Note 18}
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net
Reversal of impairment loss on receivable (Note 7)
Dividend income (Note 10)
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets (Note 10)
Gain on sale of property and equipment (Note 14)

Operating loss before working capital changes
increase in:

Receivables

Prepayments and other currcnl assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Cash used in operations
Contributions to the retirement fund (Note 21)
Interest received

Income taxes paid

(F22,062,929) (P48,733,272) (P120.818.833)

(24.184,059)

Net cash flows used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investments in associates (Notes 8 and 11)
Receipt (payment) of refundable deposits (Note 8)
Additions to:

Deferred exploration costs (Note 13)
Property and equipment (Note 14)

Dividends received

Proceeds from sale of;

investment properties
AFS financial assets

Property and equipment
Increase in other noncmrent assets

(21.394.000) - (71.955.696)
10,728,788 -

5,242,050 5,421,968 3.586,931
5,077,498 - _

4,220,882 6,452,891 6,022.191
3,757.602 -

-

3.415.799 444,792

2,946.624 _ 166,713.571
(2.071,143) (3392.064) (4.633,256)
(1,439,829) 1.375,008 (16,414,280)
(590,941) -

-

(1.280) (3,625,953) (4.820.629)
(L680.256)

(3,208,671)
(1.024.652)
2,014.204

(38.574,057)

2,227.454

(420.992)

(761,717)
(3.896.401)
(236^261)

(48,531,265)
(7.000,000)
3,079,342
(656.162)

(32,235,151)
22,819,500

(11,330,887)
(179,098)

1,280

4,124.183

(171,712,161)

(29,873,551)
(3,249,645)
4.414,206

88,2] 0,256

Net cash flows used in investing activities
(3,037,566) (1.865.043)

(193

(1.611)

P6,354,938) (43.636,886) (42.321.632)

(40.046)
(3.771.971)
2.566.861

(43,566.788)
(6,500.000)
4.633.256

(2,042.065)

(36.767395) (53,108.085) (47.475.597)

37.739) (114.075.938)

(29,933,862)
(180,029)
4,820,629

25.000,000
10,780

(467.714)

(75Q.I96)

(Forward)
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Years Knded DcccmljcrJI

o

2018 2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from:

Issuance of capital stodt (Note 17)
Loan Evailment (Note 16)
Advances from stockholder (Note 19)
Deposit for future stock subscription (Note 17)

Interest paid (Note 16)

F26,455,770

(3,415,799)

P26.()73.063

50,000,000
6,670,782

(444.792)

P-

13.941,078

Net cash flows from financinB activities 23,039.971 82.299,053 13.941.078

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (33,565363) (84,884,970) (34,284,715)

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 629,931 288,473 (7,104.470)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 75,029384 ,  159.625.881 201.015.066

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P42,093.952 P7S.029.384 P159,625,881

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AN!) SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(■>

I. Corporate Informalion and Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Corporate Informatiop
Basic Energy Corporation (tJie Parent Company), a publicly listed corporation, and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the Group) were Incorporated in the Philippines on September 19, 1968.
On August 10, 2007. the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the
amendment of the Pwent Company's primary and secondary purposes, transforming the Parent
Company into a holding company with diversified business Interests In the difierent fields of renewable
devebpmfnf pureuing its core business in oil and gas exploration and

Philippine SlMk Exchange (PSE) has issued a memorandum staling the sector and subsectorreclassification of the P^ent Company. From Oil subsector of the Mining and Oil Sector it has been
PSE'freview'^^^^^^^^ result of®  ̂ prospects, and in consideration of the Parent
Octob^H mT activity. The reclassification took effect on
In April 10, 2018, SEC approved the amendment of Article Four of the Parent Company's Amended^iclcs oflncorporation for the extension of its corporate life for 50 years from and after September 19,

Building, C. PaUnc,

Authorization for die Issuance of the Con..;nliHa,rH Financial .StatPm.n,,

SLmter 3^ 201 sTo 31. 2018 and 2017 and for the years endedMarch ̂ 2019 ^016, were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on

Basis of Preparation, Basb of Consolidation and Statement of Compliance
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated fir^cial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis exccDt for ouoted
in^cjal «scts at feir vdue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and investment proDerties

at Fair value and office condominium that has been measured at revalu^
founts. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P) which is the

Basis of Consolidatinn

DeLnXr 3? of the Group as atDecember 31.2018 and 2017. and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.
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Subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are enliiies over which ihc Parent Company has control.

The Parent Company controls an inveslcc if, and only if, the Parent Company has:

•  Power over the investee (i.e.. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
actjvitjes of the investee);

•  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
•  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When Parent Comply has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: ^

•  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
•  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
•  The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

to rê assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and cireumstances indicateto there are chmges to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
^gms when the Parent Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent

subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses ofa subsidiaiy acquired
or disused of dunng the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Parent Company gams control until the date the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiaiy.

ir "isoiidaled statement of compreiiensive income
this ISe Sing a^t btlar■ P-l'-g mtost (NC.) even if

lo iV^ « M1o!^° subsidiaries as at December 3 i. 2018 and

Subsidiaries
Basic Diversified Industrial

Holdings, Inc. (BDIHI)
iSasic, Inc. (IBasic)
Basic Renewables, Inc. (BRI)

Basic Biofuels Corporation
(BBC)

Basic GcothcnnaJ Energy
Corporation (BGEC)

Grandway Group Limited
(Grandway)

PT Basic Encrgi Solusi
(PT EES)

Southwest Resources, Inc. (SRI)

NCI, NCI represents interest in
Company.

ofOwncrshio
County of
Incorporation Nature of Business

100.00 Philippines Investment holding

100.00

100.00

100.00

Philippijics
Philippines

Philippines

Information technology
Exploration, development and

utilization of renewable energy
resources

Development of biofuels

100.00

100.00

Philippines

Hong Kong

Exploration and development of
gcoth«Tna! energy resources

Investment holding

95.00 Indonesia Oil exploration

72.58 Philippines Oil exploration and investment
holding

a subsidiary that is not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent
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NCI represents the portion of profit or loss and (he net assets not held by the Group. Transactions wiHi
NCI are accounted for using the entity concept method whereby the difference betAveen the
consideration and the book value of the share in net assets is recognized as on equity transaction.

NCI represents the 27.42% direct equity interest in the net assets of SRJ and 5.00% indirect equity
interestinthenetassetsofPTBESasatDecember31,2018and20I7. ,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, wiUiout a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

•  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwil]) and liabilities of the subsidiary
•  Derecognizes the carrying amount of any NCI
•  Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recognized in equity
•  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received
•  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained
•  Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
•  Reclassifies the Parent Company's share of components previously recognized in other

comprehensive income (OCI) to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

AN mtra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses, and profits and Josses resulting from intra-
group transactions that are recognized in assets are eliminated in full.

Statement of Compliance
^e consolidated fin^cial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). runippmc

3. Changes in Accounting Policies and DiscJosurcs

The Group applied for the first time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual periods
beginmngonorafler January 1,2018.

•  Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

ISlXmlTT of vesting conditions on the
, cash-^ed shm-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-basedpayinent transition with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the accounting

fi 7 " ? ,7""' conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes itsclassification from cash settled to equity settled.

required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
rcfros^cive application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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•  PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for ciassificalion and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. Retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospcctivciy, with some
limited exceptions.

The adoption of PFRS 9 from January 1, 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies,
particularly on the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39's
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach, but did not
have a materiai impact on the consolidated financial statements. Also, liie Group's financial assets
previously classified as loans and receivables under PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at
amortized cost under PFRS 9, while the investments in debt securities and equity securities
previously classified as available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets under PAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at FVOCI under PFRS 9. TTie adoption of PFRS 9 did not result to changes in the
classificatiori and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group has provided other required
information in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. ^

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial instruments under
PFRS 9 and PAS 39 at the date of initial application.

Orifilnal Measurement Origiaal Carrying New Measurement NewCarrylnn

^ and cash cquivalenU Loans and receivables a75.029.384 Financial assets at amortized cost 575 029 384'
Realties Uans and receivables 2.687,022 Financial assets at amortiTcd cost 2 687023

Loans and receivables 171.429.108 Financial assets al amortized cost I7l.429!l08

^bt securities AFS financial assets 39.839,205 Financial asset at FVOCI with rtcycling 39 839J05
Eqmty secunlics AFS financial assets 6.211.923 Financial asset at FVOCI without recycling 6.211.923

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 wj^ PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments stand^ before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments
m^oduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1,2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first

approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on transition
to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting the overlay approach if, and only
If, the entity restates comparative information when applying PFRS 9.

The ̂ cn^ents were not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PF^ 15 esUblishes a new five-step model that applies to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer



-5-

7he principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach lo meosurinR and recocnizini'
revenue. ^

PFRS 15 supersedes PAS ]\,Construclion Conlraas, PAS 18. Revenue and relaied Interpretations
and It applies to ail revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in ihc
sco^ of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is rccogniaxjd at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring Roods
orsemces to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration a I of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to
contacts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtmning a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. The Group adopted
PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption.

The Group undertook an analysis of the impact of the new revenue standard based on a review of
the contractual terms of its management services agreement and assessed that the amount and timing
of revenue recognized under PFRS 15 is the same as that under PAS 18.

Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle)

The amendments citify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investmcnt-by-invcstment basis, to measure its
mves^ents in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture
Itlup rr.y.tT'T" elect to retain the fairva ue measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint ventuie to the investment
entity associate s or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on tvhich (a) the investment

~ "ImeT^
Thfam^^r t associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted.

f \ adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial
\  / sutcrncnts.

i

•  Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

The ̂ endmente clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
^a^ in ° s " <"• Old of investment property. The amendments state that a
nro3J f P^P^-dy ot ceases to meet, the definition of Investment

r  ° '='■"80 management's intentions for
loofied °f«<=''"80 ■" "SC. The amendments should beSofin S rT' occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting

clarifications issued, the adoption of theseamendments did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.
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•  Philippine Interpretation IFRJC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance ('nnsideralion

Tlie interpretation clarifies that, in detennining the spot exchange rate to use on initiiU recognition ol
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the dcrccognition of a nonmonciary asset or
nonmonetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on
which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. Entities
may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the
interpretation prospcctively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of these
interpretations did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.

,  ̂ Standards Issued but not vet EfTective
^  Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
)  "pt expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its

consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they
become effective.

Effective Beginning on or a/ier January I, 20J9

•  Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt Instruments with negative compensation prepayment
feamres to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An
entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or af^er January I,
2019. Earlier application is permitted.

pie amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no debt
instrument with negative compensation prepayment feature.

^  ̂ • PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to
the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Uases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases
(i.e leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will
be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of
the remeasuremcnt of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accouniitig under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classiflcQtion principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS W.

Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard's transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

TTie Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shal J
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2019. Earlier
application is permitted.

. J 'S currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial
statements.

•  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23. Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The inteipretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty Aat affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
O  credits and tax rates '

*  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances
V  • ' _

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty should be followed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.
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•  Annual Improvements lo PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Combinaliom. and Pl-RS W.JoiniArrangemeni.',. Previously
Held Interest in b Joint Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is ajoinl
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages including
remeasunng previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair
value in doing so. the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the loini
operation. •'

A pany (hat p^icipates in. but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a

i^Tn',":nr, held i« in thatjoint operation are-not remeasurcd.

on '0 h"siness combinations for which the acquisition date is
j  ■' ""Which It ohtainsjoim control on or after the beginnannual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early application permitted

cutrently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future

CtesmTd Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments

t^oM "il' consequences of dividends are linked more directly
^  distributable proftts than to distributions to ownersIVmnrVh^; rooogmzes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other

transactns or evenT " P^«
""""I "^porting periods beginning on or after-V GZi7J;i?i, T i 'Phese amendments are not relevant to the

Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of genera] borrowings any borrowing
prep^fL7^serf^T'°'l'' ""f "'hen substantially all of the activities necessaiy toprepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginnine of the
amendments An ̂

early aTp'cafion pe^rd" '■ 20,9. with

J^JalifyiTO? "" hon-owings intended to develop a
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Elective Begmning on or after January 1. 2020

•  Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business

1 he amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant's ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition
of output. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is subsiatiiivc
and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which perm its
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler
January 1,2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments will apply to future business combinations of tlie'Group.

•  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

)  P'® amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used acrossPFRSs and other pronouncements. They arc intended to improve the understanding of the existing
requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity's materiality judgements.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1,2020, with earlier application permitted.

Ejfective Beginning on or after January 1, 2021

•  PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4. This
new stendard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts
(i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insuranceX regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instnrments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model Vor insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which arc
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies. PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of
PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by;

■  A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features
(the variable fee approach)

*  A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January I, 2021, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

(  )
f  '■

4
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Deferred Effectivity

» Amendments to PI-RS ID, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
con^l of a subsidiaiy (hat Is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent
of unrelated Investors' interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13,2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original cfreclive date
of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board
completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates
and joint ventures.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements
The Group has elated to present ell items of recognized income and expense in two statements; a
statement displaying components of profit or loss (consolidated statement of income) and a second
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other comprehensive income
(OCI; consolidated statement of comprehensive income).

Current versus Noncurrent Classificatinn
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
•  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•  Expected to be ruHzed within 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period; or

^  . • Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
)  least 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:
•  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
•  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the financial reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the financial reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncuirent.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures fmancial assets at FVOCI, AFS financial assets and investment properties, at fair
value at each end of the reporting period.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to .sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the. asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

•  in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the.most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of an
Mset or a hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account.a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstences and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets mid liabilM^for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized withmae fmr value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the feir value measurement as a whole:

Level I - Quotpd (una^i^tisted^ market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
♦  Level 2 - Valuation techoi w the lowest Iev6l Input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is' directly or indirectly observable
♦  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

Tf are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis.
St? " t f occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
whtrT on the lowest level.input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole) at the end of each reporting period.

O  value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets isdetemrned by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business at the end of the financial
reporting penod.

For financial in^mmen^ where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
nrtSlvS STS— comparison to similar investments for which market observableprices exist and discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis or other valuation models.

disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

III
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Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks caiTi interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents arc short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and arc subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

Financial Instruments (Prior to Adontinn nf PFR s O]

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contraclual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (1 e
the date that the Parent Company commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Imtml Recognition andMec^itrement. The Group detennines the classification of financial instniments
at imtial recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-cvaluates this designation at every end of
the financial reporting pcnod.

Financial instranients are recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and financial liabilities, except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

•  Financial Assets. Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified into the following
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments,and avatlable-for-sale (AFS) financial assets or as derivatives designated as hedging Instruments in

an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired and whether they arc quoted in an active market.

f Also under PAS 39, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
desi^ated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, or as other financial

liabilities. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropnate, re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date.

Fm^cial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual a^ccmcnt Intere^ dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component th^s a financial liability, are reported as expenses or income. Distributions to holders

lu benefit' classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income

™

^ans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivalive financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities tfiat are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
tnZlZfJli ,'Tr subsequently measured in the
meXn f Statement of financial position at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)P°t intpainment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account anvdiscount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The losses
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arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidulcd slalemenl of income when the loans nnd
receivables are derecognizcd or impaired, as well as through the nmortization process.

Loans and recei vables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
financial reporting date or within the Parent Company's operating cycle. Otherwise, these arc
classified as noncurrent assets.

•  AFS Financial Assets. .APS financial assets include investments in equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as APS financial assets are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated at FVPL. Debt securities in tltis category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, APS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
T^ict unrealized gain on changes in fair value of APS financial assets" account until the investment
is derecognized, at which time the cumulative pin or loss is recognized in the consolidated

O  statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified
to consolidated statement of income and removed from OCI.

J
The Group evaluated its AFS financial assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management's intention to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable
future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.

Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity. Reclassification to the HTM categoiy is permitted only when
the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the AFS financial assets category, any previous gain or loss
on th^ asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to the consolidated statement of income
over the rcmajning life of the investment using the EIR method. Any difference between the new
arnortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset

( \ "^'^8 asset is subsequenUy determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
-  equity is reclassified to consolidated statement of income.

•  Other Financial Liabilities, Issued financial instruments or their components which are not
designated as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the
contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
fmanciai asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as a whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of Issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. Other financial liabilities are
classified as current liabilities when it is expected to be settled within 12 months from the end of the
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reporting period or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer sciilcmctd of the
liabilities for at least 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization shall be included in
"Other income (charges) - net" in the consolidated statement of income.

Other financial liabilities are Included in current liabilities if settlement is to be made within 12
months from the financial reporting date. Otiierwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

Jmoairment of Financial Assets rPrior to Adoption of PFRS 91
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events tliat has occurred
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event'), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors era group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there
^ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate whh defaults.

Loans and Receivables, For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impainnent exists for individually assessed financial
assets, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to
pay ail amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are
individi^ly asse^ed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized
are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between file asset's carrying amount and

■ \.) pi^ent value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial assets* original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
fiows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
Interest income" in the consolidated statement of income.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairrnent loss was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduc^ by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss IS recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
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Jn relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence {such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) Uiat the Group will not be
able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of
the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired receivables are
derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

^FS Financ/aUsse/s For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each roporling date whether there
IS objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equi^ investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination of what is
signilicarit^ or prolonged" requires judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more and
prolonged as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. Where there is evidence of

impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference bcnvcen the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, l«s any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is removed from OCI and recognized in consolidated statement of
inC0D16.

'{ ' '""Sfmenls are not reversed through consolidated statement of income'ncreases in the fair value after impairment arc recognized directly in equity,

r' irep-innent is assessed based on thes^e cntena as financial «sets earned at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original

■ W t carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as a component of
debt consolidated statement of income. If. subsequently, the fair value of aebt mstrumem increases and the mcrease can be objectively related to an event occuning after the
irrnnJTrr "1 consolidated statement of Income, the impairment loss is reversedthrough consolidated statement of income.

Financial Instruments (Upon Adoption nf PFRS 91
A ftn^ciai instament is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Instruments: Financial Assets

*  ' fnh'"' Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, assubsequently measured at amortized cost. FVOCI. and fair value through profit or iL.

o" the financial asset's eontmctuaicash flow characteristics and the Group 5 business model for managing them.

In 01-der for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cbst or FVOCI. it needs to give
° ̂ Payments of principal and intetest (SPPI)' on the principal amountoutstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrui^nt level.

The Group's business rnodel for managing fmancial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
conlfrina baamess model determines whether cash flows will result fromcollecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

reauS or f™"" established by
hrdatrthm thrcro, ■" 1 recognized on the trade date, i.e.,the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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"'" mcasurcnicnl, frnanci«l assds are classined ii,

■  Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
•  Financial assets at i^OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assete designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

■  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

h  n"" The Group measures financial assets atamortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

f  ' business model with the objective to hold financial assets in orderto collect contractual cash flowsi and
Tmancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of pnncipa! and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

r 1 8" subsequently measured using the effective intetest (EIR) method

^fer,^utiSul'^o?. The Group measures debt instrumenuat lair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met;

^ n' " held wi^in a business model with the objective of both holding to coilectcontractual cash flows and selling; and

mvmp„"fs^f to cash flows that are solelypayments of pnncipaJ and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

srnLtm'Tftrnme Wh^f 7°'"° u®'' i" the consolidated
r«oTiLd tn^hcT^^ t-H ifpcirmcnt losses or reversals are
for '""P^hensive income and computed in the same manner as

loss '"'recognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or
■I^^up-s debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt

'r^'rumems). Upon initial recognition, the Group
Arou^Zl wh^thT^ 'a ^ '""'Stments as equity instruments designated at fair value

r H «i"'> ""der PAS 32, Financial iKstrumems:
instrument basis ^ " trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized
, M JT"" 'onsolidaled statement of income when the right of payment has beenestablished, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a lecoveiy of part of the cost of the
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va"ir^o^^rnrr'''°'' '" ■^''"''5' '"='^"'"^"'5 designated at fairvalue through OCI are not subject to inipaimicnt assessment.

Mtego™'' itrevocably its investments in unquoted equity securities under this
'''"Snizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)

the com "■? t""'? n " u" ^ ""= differencebetween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
wiirsrelh fln'r^fr ''""""'f at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flowstte contacraauet^l^^^^ ' of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
ECLs are reco^ized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a signiflcam
mcre^e in credit nsk smce initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
Ir Wl^ rl! h" T ^ d'"" oredit exposures
mmd rd f "i'-fi ^ a'gnificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is_ r' ' tL' deftuhXilTEc"^ '™'"8
Financial Instruments: Financial Liabilities

7?eco£n///on and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, asfinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and borrowings, payables or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

^  « fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings andpayables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

liabilities include "Accounts payable and accrued expenses". "Loan payable"Dividends payable and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered
by other accounting standards).

Subsetjuent Measurement^ - Loans and Borrowings. This is the category most relevant to the Group.
/' \ fh and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized(  cost using the EIR method. Gams and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortiz^ cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an i ntegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs under the
Interest expense m the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dergcognition pf Financial As.sets and financial Liabilities (Prior to Adcmtion ofPFRS 9)

fimiUr Wlicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group ofsimilar financial assete) is derecognized when.'

■  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
!h!m i! assumed an obligation to paythem in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; or
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the Group has transftrrcd iLs rights to receive cash Hows from lite asset or has assumed an
obhgatton to pay the reec.ved cash Tows in full without material delay to a third party undcra
pass-through atrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substanLlly a U e r s^a
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has ̂ sferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
=11 <l"t risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the^set, the asset is recogniMd to the extent of the Group's continuing invdiventent in the asset,

lower of I'h involveinent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
GrTn /o M rl!®'" "T'"® ofConsideration that theoroup could be required to repay.

l^ere continuing involvemenl takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing

IS the amount of tfic transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case
l  ̂ (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fairvalue the extent of the Group s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Fmancia/ LMUjes A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability arc substantially modified, such an exchange or

tre^ed as a derecognidon of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

Offsetting of Financial lnstnimenr<
Financial assets and fmancUl liabilities are offset and the net amount rejwited in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

rnv^ amounts and ̂ re is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle thegenerally the case with master netting agreements, and the relatedj  - assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(. Investments in Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to partcipate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The considerations m^c in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method.

^der the equity method, investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
^ociate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included In the carrying
amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.
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'T"f Pf'=P'^='l for Uro same reporting period as Uie Group,ary, a justments are made to brmg the accounting policies in iine with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether It is necessanr to recoenir, »r.

Upon loss of significant innuence over the associate, the Group measures and recoEnizcs anv retainp^

r ■* siSTnt'"fl" n """"^rence between the cairying amount of the associate ui^n loss of

Prepayments and Other Current Attcpi^

^e/7qyme«rj. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before they arc utilizedTh\s account comprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid Items The prepaid
avlnT'dThZd r,b Ste period covered by 1Premvme r m ? appropriate accounts in consolidated statement of income when incurredPrepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than 12 months after the reporting perbTl

classified as current assets otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.

recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
gooi or (°"'P'" VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases offinmcia Xn v2^' ppypwp i" consolidated statement ofV ATfrom c I r y "" ®'°"' P""=hP«a of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
smlerntZf financT'°v^™'P".;^^^'' ^ consolidatedStatement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.
Investment Properfifi|y
Inve^ent properties, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Greup, are measured initially at cost
"ate w^iZren r "^^PSnition. investmem properties t tted a faithtfthZ L of X ' 'PPP'^e "P'P- losses ansing from changes in

properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
Xos'2' P'™°" V S"" ̂ ■P'" "" P"'' "P 'PP"p Pconomic benefit is expected from itsfXl H 'fprocognition of an investment property are recognized inconsolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal. rocognizea
Property and Eouiprnf^nt

dtpSitZ'dZTZf" "r PPndomlnium, are carried a. cost less accumulatedaepreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.
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h  and any impairment in value
^31 Mh^T , r"" °! Valuations are pcrfomied frequently enough toensure that the fatr value ofrcvnlued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

t7 "'"IT"' " T'""' '""<=-"="1 in omce condominium" account ittthe equt^ section of the consolidated statement of financial position, net of the related deferred incotne
tax Iiabiltty. An Mnual transfer from the "Revaluation increment in otince condominium" account to
retarned earritngs ts made for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrving
raount of the asset and the depreciation based on the assefs original cost. Additionally, accumulated
deprectatiirn at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount IS restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation increment
relating to the particular asset sold is transferred to retained earnings.

The initi^ costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
costs, are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year in which costs are incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
^ture economic b^efits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its ongmally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional
cost of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major overhaul costs that arc capitalized as
part of property and equipment arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
usetui lives, typically the period until the next major maintenance or inspection.

Depreci^ion and amortization is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the related assets'
cost to theu- estimated useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation for each category are based on the
tollowing useful lives of related assets:

Number of Years
Machinery and equipment 10
Transportation equipment 5
Building and building improvements i j 5
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3
Office condominium ] 5

The assete' csUi^tcd useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that these
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

Depreciation of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for use, i.e.. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. ^

An Item of prope^ Md equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

T. I i®!^!f of the asset Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ofthe asset (calculated ̂  the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
Item) IS included m the consolidated statement of income in the year the Item is derecognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.
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JeferredExDloration

T, <^"nncction with the panicipation ofthe Grottp in Ihte
frfZha / H 'Te assessment of commercial viability of an identincd resource
"ervTce Co^acTfSn u " "" •!>' b^^is of each
and^ri T ̂ Survey and lixpioration Contract], These costs include materialsand fuel used, surveying costs, dnlling costs and pnyments made to contractors.

Srahmhnnl^e e'® h r 'IS'''"!,' been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration and
elsl f t. amortized at die slati of commercial operations. All such capitalized
taoaiment a'tTca« «view, as well as review for indicators ofimpaiiment at least once a year. This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otlierwisc extract

cosa^ZZln-^Tsc' " if abandoned, all related capitalized exploration
r , V r a considcrcd permanently abandoned if the SCs have expired and/or if thereare no definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

fmpainnent of Nonfinancial Assets

'bere is an indicationftat Its defemd exploration costs and project development costs may be impaired. If any indication
met ™P®"™"' '"""8 for such items is required, the Group makes an estimate ofheir recoverable ainount An asset s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value

lenemrt e h n ^ individuaytem, unless such item does not
rr,T \frff 1 ^ '"<'«P«'"'ent of those from other assets or group of assets or
rtt „ "j canning amount exceeds its recoverable amount, such item is considered impairedmd IS written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows

Itfle f" discounted to their present value using a pie-tax discount rate thatreflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or

Inv^lmenl Properties, Property and Equipment and Other Noncurrem Assets. The Group assesses at
each repotting penod whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
mdiMtion exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
cash generabng unit (OTU) are wntten down to their estimated recoverable amounts. The estimated
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use The fair

less thcTostTird" the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's-length transaction
irLke fro if °f«stitn»ted future cash flows expectedto arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of Its useful life In
jessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

s^lfift^ "'"'be time value of money and the risks
r^r^ve^M Z ■ n' 'bat docs not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimatedrecoverable amount is detemimed for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense
categories consistent with the function ofthe impaired asset.

T  reporting date whether there is any indication that previously
reco«^?e V " ""by b®v« decreased. If such indication exists, the
eur^nr^ T r Previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credit tocurrent operatioru (unl^s the asset is cairied af a revalued amount in which case the reversal ofthe

resSTl^reftn revaluation increment ofthe same asset) to the extent that it does notstate the asset to a canymg amount in excess of what would have been determined (net ofany
accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior yeais Such
reversal ,s recoet.zed m consolidated statement of income unTess the asset is carried mX^ed
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'P)  Equity

amouni. tn which cose the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such reversal the
amortJiMtion charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount. \css any
residual value, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets. The Group provides provision for iinpaimienl losses on
nonfinancial prepayments and other current assets when they can no longer be realized. The amounts
^d timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or
utilized different estimates. An increase m provision for impairment losses would increase recorded
expenses and decrease prepayments and other current assets.

Recovery of impaiiment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the
impairment osses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decre^ed. The recovery is recorded
in the consolidated ̂ tcment of income. However, the increased canying amount of an asset due to a
recovery of ̂  impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been
recognized for that asset in prior years.

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the
Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and
number of shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Paid-in Capital: When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds
and the par value is credited to the "Additional paid-in capital" account. When shares are issued for a
consideration other th^ cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received.
In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle the liability of the Group, the shares shall be
measured cither at the fair value of the shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is
more reliably determmable. Incremental costs that arc directly attributable to the issuance of new shares
are charged to this account.

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription. This pertains to the amount of cash and advances from
stockholders as payment for future issuance of stocks. The Group classifies a deposit for future stock
subscnption as an equity instrument If it satisfies all of the following elements;

^e unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is Insufficient to cover the amount of shares
indicated in the contract;

•  there is BOD approval on tiie proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation);

•  there is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase; and
the application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

elements are not present, the deposit for future stock subscription shall be
recognized as a liabili^.

income comprises items of income and expense

mrnl iled Planted under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are notrecognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS.
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RetamedEarnings. The amount included in retained earnings includes cumulative pront or loss
attributable to the Parent Company's stockholders and reduced by dividends. Dividends are rccogn i7cd
ff. 8 ana deducted from equity when they are approved by the Parent Company's BODDividends for ^nod that are approved after the end of the financial reporting date are dealt with as
an event after the financial reporting period. Retained earnings may also include llic elTcct ofchanffcs
in accounting policy as may be required by the accounting standard's transitional provLsions.

Basic/Diluted Loss per Share

Basic^ssper ̂ re. Basic loss per share amounts arc calculated by dividing the net loss attributable
to equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits
during the year. ^

Diluted Jasper Share. Diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss
at^ibutable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by (he weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for any stock dividends declared during the year plus weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive ordinary
snares into ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares.

Revenue RecopniHnn
The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies an identified performance obligation by transferring a
promised gwd or service to a customer. A good or service is considered to be transferred when the
customer obtains control. The Group determines, at contract inception, iJvhcther it will transfer control
of a promis^ good of service over time. If the Group does not satisfy a performance obligation over
time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in lime when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Prior to 2018, revenue is recognized to the extent that
It IS probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. '

The Group awesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is actine
as a pnncipal or an agent ®

Interest Income. Interest income from bank deposits is recognized as it accrues using the efTective
interest rate method.

tetlwi^ed^^^ Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is
Other Income. Other income, which normally includes sale of property and equipment, is recognized as
revenue when earned and received. rr / r

Expenses

Expenses are in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
occurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to
equity participants. Expenses are generally recognized when the services are used or the expense arises
while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial reporting date.

Retirement Benefits

net retirement benefits liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the retirement
benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling
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"""""""'"°""" "■=

pro^rdirjss.'^ •"=
Retirement benefit costs comprise the following;
•  Service cost
•  Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset
•  Remeasurcments of net retirement benefit liability or asset

settlemente are recognized as expense m the consolidated statement of income. Past service costs are
."S„r,uTl£ " P-'riodically by
Net interest on net retirement benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net_  reticent benefit liability or asset that arises finm the passage of time which is determined by applying

10 the net retirement benefit liability or asset Netfnteresf
s~ oT™ - ineomercoriidar'"'^'

f  refm on pl»n assets and any change in the
d !t 1 " ■"! (excluding net interest on retirement benefit liability) are recogniLdmmediately in OCI m the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not leclassified to profit or

TsTrSrXl ini.ial" o/L^sedfull settlVtnSS!^"' " i" OCI until
''y ° 'ong-*e™ employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance^hcies. P an ̂ sets are not available to the creditors of the Gtoup, nor can Icy paid dlu v ,o the

avSle t^e'tovl^'^f "" Whenn'omXtpZtd^etm me tta I^fl^ ■'""'""'"g fihute cash flows using adiscount me that reflects both the nsk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or exoected
re SblTAfimsrirtTe^^^^^ ifthey have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of therenlfft oh S r u, ™ "" P«a»"l value of the retirementbenefit obligation. Ac measurement of the resulUng retirement benefit asset is limited to the 0^^
ooitributZrAe^rtf
i!!!f m°hr'' ^ reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure requited to settle a retirementv^cSr wS teimbrmtt is
Income Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and nrior oeriods aremeasured at the ̂ ount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities The tax rates
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Cun-ent income lax relating to items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity IS recognized m equity and not in the consolidated statement of income. Management

fpl'ir ̂  T' in which applicable taxregulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

''''''' "^ing the balance sheet liability method, on allmporary differences at the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

forill^hf for ̂ anc.al reporting purposes. Deferred income lax liabilities arc recognizedfor all taxable temporary differences, except: vut,uiiLca

*  recognition of goodwill or of an assetor liability m a t^acUon that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss;
inspect oftax^le temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates

IT fT ''"""8 differences can be0 trolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Defemd income t« assets.are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused ci^its from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular
urXTliTT 1 "T®'' "" '=«fy-over (NOLCO). to the extent that it is
dlffe^TTiT against which the deductible temporarydifferences and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized
cXCcpi* *

•  where the defemd income lax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
miti^ reco^ition of an asset or liability m a transaction that is not a business combination and at
the time of fte transaction, affects neither the accounting income not taxable income or loss;
in respect of d^uctible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
^^lams md mte^ in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporaiy differences can be utilized.

is reviewed at each financial reporting date and
tTlow Si o^'TfSe J' f "°x Pr°fi« "Ti" 1« availableto allow all or part of the defied income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax

SThrtT . T "'I'f' '®P°"'"8 <la«« and are recognized to the extent that it has become
bSreMve d available to allow the deferred income tax assets to

Md liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the

teen en^o^ TL" "1 ^ bas"! On the tax rate and tax laws that havebeen enacted or substantively enacted at the financial reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enfoit:eable right exists to set off

entTTtte^sIle^'^ ̂ T ^ 'iabiliUes and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxableentity and the same taxation authority.

Related Partv Transacti'"^"''
Trmsactions w^ related p^ies are accounted for based on the nature and substance of the agreement

financial effects are mcluded m the appropriate asset, liability, income and expense accounts.



-26-

Segment Informan'on

The Group consider? invcslmcnl holding and gcothcnnal energy projects as its primary activities. 1 he
Group has no geographicnl segmentation as the Group's operating business segments are neither
organized nor managed by geograpliical segment.

Foreign Currency Transactinp*;
TrMsa^ions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in tlie functional currency rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monet^ assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rate of exchange rulmg at the end of the financial reporting period. Nonmonetary
iterns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc translated using the
exchange rales prevailing as at the date of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at the
air value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
deteirnmed. All differences are taken to "Other income - net" in the consolidated statement of income
under Unrealized foreign exchange gain (Joss) - net" account.

Provisions

Provisions are recopi^d when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
'f.'® P5°^able that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

( ) obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed in
the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting penod (adjusting events) are reflected in the Group's consolidated financiaJ statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material. "

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

(^) preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the

consolidated financiaJ statements. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial
statement are based ui^n management's evaluation of r^evant facts an^l circumstances as of the date of
the consolidate finecial statements. Future events may occur which cm cause the assumptions used
m amvmg at thoM judpents and estimates to change. The effects of the changes will be reflected in
the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Accoimting judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on historical
expenence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Judgments

^ the process of gJpIymg the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgment^ ap^ from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements;
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Determmalion of the Groups Functional Currency. Based on ihe economic substance oftlic underlyiuR
pITo nTm," ■■ ™"' °™"P: fPnclional currency has been determined to be llie PhilippinePeso. It IS the currency that mainly influences the operations of the Group.

VEPc"™d'vn^H^"'^"h' The Group has 15% interest each in
U " significant infiuence is presumed underS28 The Group considers its 15% investments each in VEPC and VINTER as investments in

^socmtes as it concluded that it has significant influence over the operating and financial policies of its
investments in associates due to the following:

•  representation in the BOD;

ofer SbuZsItT''"®
•  material transactions between the investor and investee.

aossiftcolion o/Jnvesrmenl Property. The Group classifies its land as inveslmenl property or
ca^aUnnr^- '' "" inlootions whcrc it will be used. When the land is held for

C  • - still undecided as to its future use. it is classified asy  investment property. The land which is held for rent are classified as investment property.

S's w^eSfleco™^^ j'-'ig™"' of management is applied when
ftrn I « reMgndion requirements for exploration and evaluation assets relating to theGroup s exploration projects have been met. Capitalization ofthese costs is based, to a certain extent

soeSfcTo";^ ome degree to which the expenditure may he associaud with ̂ 1"^specific geotherma! reserve. This is necessary as the economic success of the exploration is uncertain

kfornMi^ av rif 'f hnical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments art based on theinformation available at end of each reporting period.

fo (Applicable upon adoption ofPFRS 9). Beginning January 12018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms to identify whether the '
instrument is consistent with the concept of SPPI. i

financial asset at initial

nXS "fy l^ange over the life of the financial asaet (for example, if there are repayments ofprincipal or amortization of the prcraium/discount).
C)

S'thTtte^Sf f " A-"' r" m" ' '""'""8 are typically the consideration
and r.^n.T I To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment
period for whicT atTinX°sM Tel' 'he
In OOTtrast, contiactual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatilitv in the

cTh fits thS a eT? f '="<""8 '''y^S^onfdoTot gtv^^se rirn^
tlm finZial a! oTP"n"pnl and interest on the amount outstanding. In such casesthe financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL. *

PF^T"bL1ZiZ1 (Applicable upon adoption of
rCfl^ra ho f ® I. 2018, the Group determines its business model at the level that best
bus"l^^JlurnTae^°Z' ^"hiovc its business objective. The Group's
nortfollL a "" ̂  mstniment-hy-instrument basis, hut at a higher level of aLegatedportfolios and is based on observable factois such as: aggregated
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-x:)

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

•  The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets Jield within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks arc managed; and

•  The expected frequency, value and liming of sales are also important aspects of the (Iroup's
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case'
or stress case scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is
different from the Group's original expectations, the Group docs not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Estimates and Assumr^tions

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates ̂  recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only riml
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
asset and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Eslimation of Allowance for Impairment of Receivables. The Group reviews its receivables at each
reporting date to ass^s the adequacy of the allowance for impairment. In particular, judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on factors such as, but not
limited to, the length of the Group's relationship with the customer, customer's payment behavior and
other known market factors.

Estimation of Provisionfor Expected Credit Losses (Upon Adoption ofPFRS 9). The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
each counterparty.

The provision mahix is initially b^ed on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjiist the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historicaJ observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of fore<^ economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the
future. The information about the ECL on the Group's receivables is disclosed in Note 27.

receivables amounted to P127.37 million and P2.69 million as at December 31.
' ^spcctively, net of allowance for impairment loss amounting to P2.14 million andP2.73 million as at December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7).

Jmpairme?u of AFS Financial Assets. The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there has
been a significant or pr^onged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" requires judgment.
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T he Group ireals -si^ificant" as 20% or more of the cos( and "prolonged" as grealcr Ihan 12 months for
quoted equity secunUes.

Allow^ce for impairment on quoted investment in shares of stock amounted to P3.55 million as at
Uecember 31, 2017 (see Note 10).

impairment indicators on its financial

^ ̂ AC -n- 1^ canymg value of the Group's financial assets at FVOCI amounted toP46.05 million as at December 31, 2017 (sec Note 10).

Revaluation ofOffice Condominium and Investment Properties. The Group carries its investment
properties at fai^alue with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income
and c^es lU office condominium at revalued amount with changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group engaged an external appraiser to assess the fair
value of Its investment properties as at December 31, 2018.

For inve^ent properfiM, a valuation methodology based on market approach was used, which is a
comp^tivc approach that considers the sales ofsimilar or substitute assets and related market data and
establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison. In addition, it measures the ofnce
condominium at revaJu^ amount, with changes in fair value being recognized in OCI. The market
approach "scd for the office condominium, which provides an indication of value by comparing the
subject Mset with identical or similar assets for which price information is available The key
assumptions used to determine the fair value of the properties arc provided in Note 26.

Revaluation increase on office condominium recognized under OCI in 2016 amounted to

P23 3o'"rIi condominium amounted tot'23.30 million and l»25-59 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 14).

^r ^8''' value adjustment on its investment properties amounting to
ir"' value of investment properties amounted to F160.88 million andF275.38 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 12).

f  ̂̂ uipment. The Group assesses impairment on property and equipmentrecorded at cost whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these
.  may no. be recoye^je. The ftctom that the Group eonaiders impormm oouM mter aL
L ) impairment review include the following: trigger an

.  significant undeiperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results:
«^ificant changes m the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overaJI business;

•  significant negative industry or economic trends.

^  the Group assessed that there were no impairment indicators on its
property md equipment. The caitymg value of property and equipment, net of accumulated

isp™;CZe 14). ' ^ December 31,2018 and 2017,
/mpn,™™/ oflmMments In .tssoctoe. The Group determines whether there is objective evidence that

" ""P®'""'- "■ such evidence, the Group calculates the amount ofTen r«oli? ih ""e recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value andthen recognizes the loss in the consolidated statement of income.
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(

-f C«/.. The Group assesses irnpainocnl on deferredpioranon costs when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may

commercial viabilily, deferred charges need not be assessed for impairment.

^  in PFRS 6.

substantive expcnditare on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither-budgeted nor planned; resources in the
exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discoverv

such a"™:;;;:'';!; re sSl" °
•  sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to orooeed

costs, impairment is recocnized when ii <sP u/hAr.. r* u .. .

assets reSed to the^r^r i'm~ Ss^^rn^^ ^



■ J

IJe Group s dcfcrred tncorne tax assets amounted lo nil and P3.39 million as at December 31. 2018 and
2017, respectively. Deductible temporary differences and MCIT for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognized as at December 31. 2018 and 2017 arc presented in Note 22.

Determmaiion of Fair Value ofInvesiment Properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices
m an active market for similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such information, the Group
determines amount withm a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment the
Group considers information from variety of sources including;

.  current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

•  recent pnces of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any chanRes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

•  discounted cash flow (DCF) projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition and using

_  discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty In the amount and timing of
the cash flows. ®

^  adjustment on its investment properties amounting to P21.39 millionin 2018 which was based on the latest appraisal reports in 2018 for the parcels of land in Bolinao
Pangasman, Tanay, Rizal, and Gutalac, Zamboanga del Norte. The canying value of the Group's
mvestment properties amounted toP!60.88 million and P275.38 million as at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively (see Note 12).

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents

2018

P30,811,958
11,281.994

20)7

PH.180,736
63,848,648

P42,093.952 P75,029.384

.  Cash in banks cash equivalents earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equii
{  ) short-term investments made for varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the

immediate cash requirements of the Group.

Group's cash in bank and cash equivalents amounted to P0.52 million.
PI.09 million and PI,62 million in 2018,2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 18).

7. Receivables

Accounts receivable (see Note 12)
Interest receivable

Advances to officers and employees

2018

P129,263,232
200,262
51369

2017

P4.7I3,731
356,573
349 665

Less allowance for credit/impairment losses
129,514,863

2.142.006

5,419.969
2,732,947

P127372,857 P2,687.022
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■ O

s«l)ed™on ITo Jav «rm ■"""'";=«-«;b=aring receivables from third parties and are gcnc-rali>.in deb.rnrife' 'l^iv-lcnts and investment/
Advances to ofncers and employees pertains to Uie advances made by the Group to its ofikers and
S": ̂d^:^ areUlfd t:;""
The following table shows the movement in the allowance for impaiimenl losses:

At January I ^ m -n/nlf Z®12_
Reversal ■

-SlmCir

S. Refundable Deposits

c°0mpalt" crr/l'tTT planned^/nvestments on variottswill form pan of the Parent OimJmy'sTnv/slmincTfe "" '"vestees which
of its due diligence audits. tnvestments m these eompantes subject to the satisfactory result

Innocent Biomass PowerGK (IBP) ;;
Vintage EPC Co. Ltd. (VEPC) and VTE International PI5.325,I33Construction Co. Ltd (VINTER)Solmax Power Limited (Solmnv) ~ ^^s'gfp'soo

Hd,183,711 P17L429.108

b.

ililifpSiS-SH;
S=-SSHSSeSSE.
/ngoLg"™'^' ̂ »"<iu«ted by the Parent Company is still

Law^f^&S',i"eS"' -derrxvTCTA.% , , wholly owned and controlled by Meta Com Puhlir rr^ t m
META is lo™Ter mto a °P"le Parent Company and
15% each of the total equity of VEPC and VOTEr" whh Company invested
20%. ^ ^ VINTER, wtth an optton to increase the interest up to
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c.

(9

VEPC and Vmter arc ihc first cuunlcr-panies uf Green Eart], Power (GHP) Myann.ar for the supply
and construction service requirements of the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (PPC
sub-contractor engaged for Ihc 220MW solar power plant of GEP Myanmar.

On June 27,2018. tlic Parent Company entered into a SPA with META to acquire 15%
shareholding each in VEPC and VINTER for a total consideration of PH5.05 million.
Consequently, the Parent Company applied the refundable deposit amounting to P133.28 million as
partial payment to the acquisition cost (sec Note 11).

10% equity investrnent in Sohnax, a limited company formed and existing under the laws of Hone
Kong - Solmax initially identified two (2) solar power projects in Jdpan, namely; (J) 8MWdc
IbaraJci Project and (2) 7MWdc Shimane Project, among other projects. The intention of the Parent
Comply Solniax is to enter into a binding investment agreement (lA) upon satisfactory result
of the due diligence audit.

On September 28, 2018, (he Parent Company, upon mutual agreement with Solmax, withdrew the
planned equity investment. In line with this, Solmax returned in full the refundable deposil to the
Parent Company in December 2018.

9. Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2018 2017^putVAT FU,583,024 Fl 1.215.298
Prepaid expenses 305.649 648.723

—  P12,888,673 Fl 1.864.021

Input VAT represents VAT paid on domestic purchases of goods and services. Prepaid expenses mainly
consist of prepayments of the Group on rent, membership dues, life and non-life insurance and
communication expenses.

i 0. Financial Assets at FVOa and AFS Financial Assets

2018 2017
.( ) Financial Assets at FVOCI
[  Quoted debt securities F37,624,594 F-

Quoted shares of stock ^'711 073
AFS Financial Assets '
Quoted debt securities _ 39 839 205
Quoted shares ofstock-net of allowance for ' '

impainment losses amounting to F3.S5 million ^ 6,211,923
F44,336337 F46.D51.I28

Quoted instruments are carried at fair market value as at the end of reporting period.
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The movemenis in lliiancial assels al FVOCI and AFS financial assets are as follows;

20J8
At January I
Disposal
Unrealized losses

2017

At December 31

l»46,051,128

(1.714,611)

P135.321.886

(86,530,000)

(2.740.758)
P44,336.517 P46,051.I28

The Group's investment In equity securities amounting to P86.53 million was sold In 2017.

Annual interest rates in 2018 and 2017 on these debt securities ranged from 4.50%-d 84% Interest
income earned on these securities amounted to PI .55 million, P2.20 million and P3.0I million in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 18).

The movements in "Net unrealized gains on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and AFS
linancia! assets presented as a separate component of equity follow:

At January 1

Unrealized valuation loss for the year
Realized gain on sale of AFS financial assets
At December 31

2018 2017

W,897,990
(1,714,611)

Pl.183,379

P5,638,748
(4,421.014)
1,680,256

P2,897,990

Dividend income ̂ ed from quoted equity shares amounted to PI,280, P3.63 million and
P4.82 million in 2018,2017 and 2016, respectively.

11. Investments in Associates

O

Acquisition cost:
At July 2,2018
Addition

At December 31,2018

Accumulated equity in net earnings
and OCX:

Share in net loss for the period
from July 2, 2018 to
December 31,2018

Excess In net assets acquired over cost
Cumulative translation adjustments

VEPC VrNTER

P131,137,160 PI3,914,930
25.433.056

(4.114.968)
24,184.059
21.025.356

(962,530)

6.519,093

Total

PI45,052.090
25.433,056

131,137.160 39.347.986 170.485.146

(5.077,498)
24,184,059
27,544,449

P172,231.607 P44.904.549 P2I7.136.156

July 2 2018. the Group acquired a 15% interest each in VEPC and VINTER, companies
ofThailand, which are engaged in the engineering, procurement and

construction services. The investments arc accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

MTnTN^S^^^^ o^usLfis located atT28Muang Nonthabun 10, Tambon Bangkasor, Amphur Muang Nonthaburi, Nonthaburi, 11000, Thailand.
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The following table shows the summarized financial information of VEPC and VINTHR as at
December 31, 2018 and for period from July 2, 20J8 to December 31, 2018;

Current assets

Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities

E^u^

Revenue

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses
Finance cost

Income tax benefit

Net loss

Share in net Joss of associates

VEPC VINTER

P3.762,412,64a P868,579.457
79,293,500 -

2.933.613.619 615.459.830
P908.092.521 P223. II 9.627

P458.228,533 P84,647,229
424,518.328' 83,798,925
34,656.762 6,526,735
32,237.915 738.433
5,751,350 -

27.433,122 6.416.864
4.114,968 962,530

(") associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as of December 31, 2018. As at
(~< undistributed earnings of the associates in the Group's retained earnings are noi

available for distnbution to the shareholders unless declared by the associates

12. Inv^tment Properties

At January I
Disposal
Fair value adjustment

2018

P275380,505
(135^95,505)
2U94,000

2017

P275,380,505

At December 31
P160,879.000 P275.380.505

The Group engaged an independent firm of appraisers to determine the fair values of the followinc
properties in 2018 and 2017:

JiaSS! „.App.,..,V.I„.
,us„Zl mom

T^y.Ri^ 33,4S5 B«..b.r 13.30U J„«24.2016 10,0462100 5,023.000

210,093 D4«„b.rl9,2010 Aog^l 14,2016 5,4322,00 5,234,000
S'oF.bi.o.P.nip.l,^, 102,901 .

P160j79.000 P275JgO.SOj

The fair values were estimated through the market approach that considers the sales of similar or
substitute assets and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving

of recent sales and offerings of similar land are analyzed and comparison made
for such factors as size, charactenstics of the lot, location, quality and prospective use.

PI 2S 27 invwuncnt property located at San Fabian. Pangasinan for a consideration of
° ' f. of which IS still outstanding as at December 31. 2018 which is lodged underReceivables in the consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).
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Direcl operating expenses related to (he inveslnicnl properties include real property taxes paid in 20i 8
and 2017 amounting to P0.28 million and P0.26 million, respectively.

The Group has no restriction on the realizabilily of its investment properties and no contractual
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
enhancement.

13. Deferred Exploration Costs

2011

Geothermal
SC 8 - Mabini

Other

Geolherraal

SCi

ladonnla

Oil Prolect

SC53

Onshore

Al Jantiaiy 1
Additions

P7J,1SO,1JO
9,482.608

P23.038477
1.848.279

PI47,933,B84 P80.426,093 P324,558.684

Less allowance for imDairment loss
82.642.738 24,886,856

2.946.624
147.933,884
147.933.884

80,4263)93
6I.966J44

335i89471
212.847.052

P-

2017

P18.459.549 P123.042.SI9

Ceothermal

SC 8-Mabini

Other

Geothermal
SCs

Indonesia
OH Prolect

SC 53

Oti$h<He

At January 1
Addilions

N5.961.93l
27.198.199

P20463.225
2.675.152

PU7.933.884 P80.426.093 P294.685.133
29 873 551

Less allowance for

imDairment loss

At December}!

73.160.130

P73.160.I30

23.038.377

P23.038.577

147.933.884 '

147.933.884

N

80.426.093

61,966,544
PI8.459.549

324.558.684

209.900,428

Pn4.6S8.256

The full recovery of the deferred exploration costs amounting to PI23.04 million and 14.66 million as
at Dewmber 31,2018 and 2017, respectively, incurred in connection with the Parent Company's
participation m the acquisition, exploration and development of geothermal energy and natural gas
resources is dependent upon the discovery of steam and natural gas and other renewable resources in
commercial quantities from the respective contract areas and the success of future developments thereof.

The accumulated costs incurred in connection with the exploration contracts arc shown under "Deferred
exploration costs^ account m the consolidated statement of financial position. The fiill recovery of these
deferred exploration costs is dependent upon the determination of technical feasibility and commercial
quantity of an identifiable resource.

In 2018, the Group recognized allowance for impairment amounting to P2.95 million for West Bulusan

frf recognized in full allowance for impairment amountingto PI 6.22 mi lion, P2.56 million andP147.93 million for deferred costs pertaining to SC 47, HSCs and
Indonesia Oil Project, respectively.

Details of the projects are discussed below.

Oil and Gas Service Contracts rsn.^;)
The Parent Company is a party, together with other companies and the Philippine Government throueh

«nlnr?r^r (collectively "the consortium"), to SC 53 (Onshore Mindoro) for theexploration, development and exploitation of the contract area situated in onshore Mindoro.
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SC 53 (Onshore Mindoro). Contract Status SC 53 was awarded by the DOE on July 8, 2005, for a ten-
year exploration period. It covers 6,600 sq. km. of the onshore areas ofMindoro Island which is within
the Northwest Palawan region. Past exploration efforts in the area prior to issuance of SC 53 included
the acquisition of 2,000 kilometers of2D land seismic data and the drilling of four exploration wells.
Hydrocarbons zones were reported but were of non-commercial quantity.

Under SC 53 Sub-Phase 1 was carried out by Pitkin Petroleum Ltd. (Pitkin) under a Farm-In Agreement
approved by DOE on June 11, 2008. Magnetotelluric (MT) survey was acquired in May 2010 and over
200 kilometers of 20 land seismic data. The exploration works was designed to delineate and assess the
hydrocarbon potential of the Progrcso-lX in San Jose, Mindoro Occidental and the Sablayan, Mindoro
Occidental. Sub-Phase 1, which was to end March 6,2012 was fulfilled with the completion of the 200
kilometers of seismic data. Sub-Phase 2 commitment involve two (2) wells and a financial commitment
of US$2,000,000. The consortium agreed to drill Progreso-2 to fulfill oni of the 2 well obligations and
the planned geology and geophysical works will be negotiated as fulfilment of the second well. The
consortium approved a finn budget of US$8,4000,000 and the contingent budget amounts to
US$6,140,000.

On October 24,2016, the DOE approved the transfer of 70% interest and Operatorship of Pitkin
Petroleum to Mindoro Palawan Oil and Gas Inc. under a purchase agreement.

project was placed under a moratorium since May 29, 2012 with effectivity on March 6. 2012 when
DOE approved the consortium's notice to enter Sub-Phase 2 in May 9,2012. Sub-Phase 2 will start
only upon the resolution of the Indigenous People (FAMATODl) case and the issuance of the
Certificate of Pre-Condition by the National Commission on Indigenous Peoples (NCIP). The
FAMATODl case was dismissed in December 2018. As of December 31,2018, the NCIP is yet to issue
the Certificate of Pre-Condition to the Parent Company.

Deferred exploration costs pertaining to SC 53 amounted to PI 8.46 million as at December 31 2018
and 2017.

Indo^ia Oil Project. In 2013, the Group embarked on the Indonesia Oil Project, as it had passed all
the financid criteria for a project as set by the BOD, upon recommendation of Management, and had the
potential of generating immediate cash flow in less than a year after drilling. The Group entered into a
joint venture arrangement with Petrosolve Sdn Bhd (Petrosolve). a company registered in Malaysia,
which was en^ged in the business of developing oil fields and held a technology for enhanced chemical
oil recovery. The joint venture established Grandway Group Limited in Hong Kong, which is 70%
owned by the Parent Company and 30% owned by Petrosolve, as the corporate vehicle of the joint
venture for the management and operation of oil wells. The joint venture then established PT Basic
Energi Solusi (PT BBS) as its operating arm in Indonesia with a 95% ownership interest. In 2017,
Grandway became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company (see Note 17).

PT EES, as a sub-contrMtor, entered into a cooperation agreement with PT Ekamaro for the
management and operation often (10) oil wells located in the Dadangilo and Wonocolo areas in East
Java, Indonesia. These wells are part of the wells covered by cooperation agreements between PT
Ekamaro and KUD Sumber Pangan and KUD Usaha Jaya Bersama. both of which had production
agreements with Pertamina. the entity vested by the Indonesian Government with the authority to
manage old oil wells in Indonesia.

PT EES drilled five (5) of the aforementioned ten (10) wells. However, production was low at only an
estimated total of 20.772 barrels compared to projections at the start of the project of 269,346 barrels,
while the buying pnce of Pertamina steadily dropped, from IDR4,160/liter (or USD73.50/barreI) at the
start oftheproject. to lDR2.718/litcr(or USD 34.57/barreI) by the 1st quanerof 2015. Calculated
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project internal rate of return (IRR), which was at 85.88% at tlic start of the project, had become
neptive. During this lime, some miners moved for upward adjustments In (heir revenue sharing wliich
entailed negotiations with PT Ekamaro. the KUDs, and the miners conccnicd. Before negotiations
could be finalized, Pertamina instituted changes in the framework for the operation of old oil wells and
eventually suspended its contracts with the KUDs and designated a new temporary body the
Paguyuban, to handlclogistics.

By the middle of 2015, the project was placed on hold until Pertamina is able to fmalizc the
organizational structure of local miners in said areas. These miners are slated to handle the manaccmcni
and operation of oil wells in said areas and with whom PT BBS and/or PT Ekamaro shall enter into new
co-operation agreements. Since 2015, Pertamina has not yet designated a new organization of local
cooperatives or miners groups to supervise the oil operations from old oil wells in the area.

Deferred exploration costs pertaining to the Indonesia Oil Project amounted to PM7.93 million as at
December 31,2018 and 2017, which was fully provided with allowance for impairment.

Geothennal Service Contracts

{ ) Parent Company is likewise involved in the exploration, development and production of geotherraal
{  ■ ener^. It has been awarded service contracts for various areas by the DOE, which prescribes the

periods and programs for these service contracts, pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 87 for the Mabini
GSC and pursuant to Republic Act (RA) No. 9513 (Renewable Energy Act of 2008) for the subsequent

Mabini, Batangas GSC, was awarded to thq Parent Company on July 10,
2008. The contract wea is approximately 32.5 square kilometers and covers the Calumpan Peninsula.

exp'oration is five (5) years, and was extended up to 2015, subdivided in three
(3) Phases. In September 2015, DOE confirmed a one (I) year extension for its exploration.

^ June 2017, the Parent Company submitted its Contract Year (CY) 10 proposal to DOE. The primary
focus ̂ d objective of the work program for CY 10 is to resolve the cease and desist order issued by the
Local Government Unit (LGU) of Mabini, Batangas to GSC 8 by conducting a comprehensive
Information. Education and Communication (lEC) campaign together with DOE representatives.

Company carried out its lEC campaign on five (5) Barangays that were
)  aftected by the series of earthquakes that hit the Municipality of Mabini in April 2017. The lEC was

w V Lakb^-Aral in the Makiling-Banahaw Geothermal Fields which provided informationgeothermal energy. The lEC campaign was completed on May 5
2018 and the cease and desist order was lifted on June 7,2018.

Other GSCs, The Parent Company was also awarded the service contracts from the DOE in February
2013 covering four (4) geothermal projects, namely: Iriga GcothennaJ Power Project. Mariveles
Geotherma Power ̂ject, the East Mankayan Geothermal Power Project and the West Bulusan
Geothermal Power Project, all carrying a maximum exploration period of five (5) years These projects
are undergoing permitting and coordination with the local government units involved and evaluation of
data denved from recently conducted Controlled Source Magnetotelluric surveys
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The East Mankayan Geolhcmial Power Project lies i.nmedialely east of the Cervantes llocos Sur
Bowoc-Sadanga block which is

ELritv The arfaTei^ Rtsoitrces. Immediately south is the Daklan block operated by Clean Rockrgy n^e area actually covers the 3 provuiccs of Bcnguel, Mountain Province and IfuEao The

a7e^°d groTndr « hot^pri::^'^rerti;,;
The MarivelM Geothermal Power Project, in Bataan is situated along the West Luzon Volcanic Are

M=,r£r.ti

th"eVa?em CoXTati^rt^DeslX^^^^ Wga'priJiTcf'^e'
S"c' HowTo^^J^f'Sflri/a projLT""' ' ^■
MT sl^r;r^rthl"warBl!S'''^r' '"^ofXTated m Taiwan, to conduct a MagnetoM l buivey in tte Inp BlMk, The interpretation works idenbfied resistivity anomaly in the area
^oraly" Arato^tntf^^ "f tho MT for refmement of the possible drillingestaS'the aeo^^a^ • T'"""™ " <1^" one (1) exploration well toongoiig ft thTdX p"S" -
^e West BuIumo Geoaerma] Power Project is situated in the municipalities of Juban Macallanes
rt 'rfb « Magdalena, and Bulusan, in Ae province of 8X00 It'ifbouXono^e^ by ae geoaermal contract area of SKI Construction Group, Inc. and is in close vicinitv to

sn m^awan Tb ^ Mtimates the project site to have a potenrial mstalled capacity of,  ' .nttl^m'D?tIta'^r''T'^''T"P'°'''"^'^'™°'^-^""BVDovelopmet Corporationthe Paint romnat -t^ r^ ' Point for ae feasibility sady unde^en by

In I^cember 2017, the DOE tenninated ae West Bulusan Geoaermal service conPact Accordinalv

2XT».7„7".K;S.r' — i^-n—-..
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14. Property and Equipment

At Cost

2018

Machinery and Transportation
E

Building and
Onice

Equipment,

Cost

At January 1
Additions
At PecembCT 3 i

Accumulated Depreciation
At January I
Depreciation (see Note 20)
At December 31

Net Book Values

At Revalued Amount

2017

Machinery and
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Building and
Building

Improvements

Ofllcc

Equipment,
Fumiture

and Fixtures

PI 8,825.539 P5.04U40
2.975.600

P5.283.338 P9,727.068
274.045

313,759
1.882.554

2.196.313

4,882.578
704.189

P16.629.226
5.586.767

4.011.793
210.505

P2,430.073
4,222,298

9,308.787
333.220

PI.061.040
9.642.007

P3 59.106

quinment Equipment Improvements
Cost

At January 1
Additions

A: December 31

F18,825.S39

18 81$ $39

F8,016.840 F5.283.33S
62.098

F10.00I.1]3
117,000

F42.I26.6J0
179.098

Accumulated Depreciation
At January 1
Depreciation ̂ see Note 203
At December 31

Net Book Values

2,196.313
IJ82.553

4.078.866

•  P14.746.673

5,586,767
595.120

6.181.887

F],834.953

5J45.436

4.222,298

220.855

4.443.153

10.118.113

9,642,007

229.951

9,871.958

42J05.928

21,647.385

2,928.479

24.575^164

Total

P38.877.185
3.249.64518,825,539 8.016.840 5.283.338 . 10.00M13 42!l26!83r

18.316.917

3.130.468

21.647.385

P20.479.44 5

Revalued Amount
At January 1 and December 31

Accumulated Depreciation
At January 1
Depreciation fsee Note'20)
At December 31
Net Book Value

Office Condominium

2018 2017

R28>649.000 P28.649^Q00

3,055,473
2,291,200

5,346,673

763,973
2.291.500

3,055.473
P23302,327 P25.593.527

Group engaged an independent fmn of appraisers, todetermine the feir value of its office condominium as at August 25.2016. The fair value is determined
using the generally accepted market approach. The date of the appraisal was Se»r 5, 20,6

Pmrmrnion^'^d December 31, 2018 and 2017amounted to
in nffi.,. H n "" "■ which is presented under the "Revaluation increment
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If ihe office condominium was measured using the cost model, the canying amount as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 would be as foliowsi

2018 2017
Cost

Accumulated deoreciation
PI,730.010

0,268,674)
Pl.730.0l0

(1,153,340)
P46I,336 P576.670

The cost of the Group's flilly depreciated assets still in use amounted to PI 3 96 million and
PI2.66 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

IS. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

2018 2017
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Withholding tax payables
Government payables

P6,675,075
1,944,996
305,598

68,495

P4,758.483

1,719,565
423,108
78.804

P8,994,164 P6,979.960

The Group's payablcs consists of short-term and noninterest-bearing trade payables to the Group's local
suppliers with an average credit term of 30 days.

Withholding tax payable consists of withholding tax on compensation and expanded withholding lax.
Government payablw are liabilities to various government agencies generally payable within 30 days.
Others are payables for professional fees and condominium dues.

O

16. Loan Payable

1* 2017, the Parent Company obtained an unsecured short-term loan amounting toWO.OO million from a local bank which was renewed for another three (3) months on October 3 i, 2018.
IJc loan bear^ an annual fixed interest rate ranging from 5.875®/o to 8.25% and 5.25% in 2018 and

nn a ° Interest expense on this bank loan amounted to P3.42 million and P0.44 million in2U1« and 2017, respectively.

17. Equity

The details of the capital stock are as follows:

2018 2017
No. of Shares Amount

Authorized - P0.25 par value
Unissued

Issued

10,000.000,000
t7,986.580J43^

P2,500,000,000
(1,996,645,086>

10.000,000,000
(8,093.472.343)

P2.500,000,000
(2,023.368,086)

Subscribed

Subscription receivable

1 "<0*7

2,646,848,057
(1.844.875.000

503354.914

661,712,014
(461,218,750)

1,906.527.657

2,646,848.057
(1,844.875.000)

476.631.914

661,712,014
(461.218.750)

Issued and outstandinc
801.973.057

2,815.392.714

200,493364

P703,848,178

801,973.057

2,708,500.714
200.493.264

P677,125.I78
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In 2018. the Parent Company issued 106,892,000 shares at par value of P0,25 to META fora lolal

P0"27 h " incurred related to the issuance anreundng toPU.27 million was charged againsl "Additional paid-in capital".

In 2017, the Parent tTompany issued 148,382,202 common shares at P0,25 par value to META for a

t  airi"„ff,',T'°" ' 'uTr'r ■ f- future s.«k subscript ion
Share r to PI3.94 million and remitted additional cash amounting to P26 21 milhon

Below is the Parent Company's track record of registration:

/' , ̂  listing ofjis capital Stock as of September 8 1973 t495 mlllinn fiiilv n-M

atrcfn f'tsTT'" 'r '•'""V'r'
thrMmnfs,!l?p ̂  xTl ""® ''y of Governors of both
1973 resnect^el Sawf ^"i Exchange on September 30, 1973 and September I 3,1973, respectively. Said listing was duly approved by the SEC on October 16, 1973.

PIS ■'""'f Company's authorized capitalstock from PI 5,0 million (consisting of 1.5 billion shares) to P40.0 million (eonsistinn of 4 0 billion
sh^s) at the same par valire of PO.Ol. The SEC also approved the 60% stock dividend (P9 0
million) declaration to stockholders of record as of August 15, 1974.

of record as ofNovember 15,1974 the right to^bsenbe at par of M.Ol per share to the unissued and unsubscribed portion of the inerSI^ eaoitai
Z^mTlTJrl' 1° "" ""i' -'l "• "■' of smckTfvc"'ttirce (3) shares of stock registered in the stockholders' name.

piem Comr^Mv'!-n ^ "-o listing of the addhional 2.50 billion shares of the

sr/r.sr.csr.s--'"''- -■ -
On Febru^ 4 1976, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from
^00 tT -ir" a"" -ir" ^ <0°^ Class B) to!^^lue of 4 p' with a par
record as of Ocmber f also granted pre-emptive rights to stockholders ofA  M 4^ V' subscribe at par value of PO.Ol per share trP20 0 million^12.0 million Class A #8,0 million Class B) at the ratio of one share for every two shares held
The nght was exercisable on or before January 15 1976 with a 2S% rinJn t^ T .
payable upon call by the BOD "

d.
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Sat'^Iv 'f' » "Certificate ofPcrmi. to OficrP24 0 nfi ifoi cts B) OnVebr^r ^T'ioVr^ r ° ^las-s A and

issued on '° '"Pi"' '""ease were

^ r ' P°""' Company issued 120,853,182 shares to a new investorZN Biofuels, Inc., the registration of which was exempt and confirmed as such by the SBC.

LM ̂°ihTragthaS;tf^^ Company issued 31,818,182 shaJes to Shouk Financial Servicesoio., me regismation of which was exempt and likewise confirmed as such by the SEC.

"C^ ''■ dil^S^''m'Tmtera on d °P"°" P'"" Company granting

PSE approved the listing of the remaining 473 million shares. '
Stock Options Plan fSnp)

2° "luL'sEcTppralLTe's^"'''''"''' ^OP. On September 8.
The basic terms and conditions of the SOP are as follows:

Smpmy."'""" "P""" »"<< ™Ployees of the Parent
•  agreement provides for an exercise price of P0.25 per share
•  These options will be settled in equity once exercised

"™- *• «'■—=SiS',a'S;? *•
Deposit for Future Sm^lr Subscriptif^n

a°nd met" UnL\'e MO^ «"= P^"' CompanyEarnest money^t^e l"untom?94 m 435.66 million shares of the Parent Company,remittance on OetoberTs 2016 P""="' Company through actual
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A subscription agreement was executed by the parlies on Februnry 24, 2017. which slates U.al tlic I>aicnl
Company agrees to issue to META and META agrees to subscribe to and puidiosc from tlte Parent
Company, 43.57 million common shares of the Parent Company at a value of P0.32 per share or a total
subscription price ofP13.94 million. On March 24, 2017, 43.57 million comtnon shares were issued to
META.

(P

o

Treasury Stock

Tlie treasury stock represents 18.0 million shares of the Parent Company costing P3.24 million which
are held by BGEC as at December 31,2018 and 2017.

Non-controlling Interests
In 2013, the Parent Company entered into an agreement with Petrosolve SDN BHD (Petrosolve) a
Malaysian corporation engaged in the business of oil fields services, to incorporate Grandway, iti which
the Parent Company has 70% equity interest. The Parent Company, through Grandway, incorporated
PT BBS to cany out its oil well business in Indonesia.

On May 10,2017, the Parent Company entered into a share purchase agreement with Petrosolve,
whereby Petrosolve transferred and ceded to the Parent Company its entire shareholdings in Grandway
for a consideration of HK$3,000, thereby giving the Parent Company 100% of the shares of Grandway
and 95% of the shares of PT BBS. As a result, the Parent Company recognized equity reserve on the
acquired non-controlling interest amounting to P53.95 million.

The Group owns 95% equity interest in PT BBS in 2018 and 2017, and owns 72.58% equity interest in
SRJ in 2018 and 2017.

The summarized financial information of SRI and PT BBS are provided below. This informetion Is
based on amounts before intercompany eliminations.

2018

Non-controlling interest

Financial Position
Total current assets

Total current liabilities

SRI PTBES

^tdcagitaMeficiracj^
N

27.42%

P6,067
472,438

5.00%

P6S5,673
185,321,520

on-controlling interests
P467471 P184,665,847

P128,153 P9,233,293

Financial Performance

General and administrative expenses
Other charges

P63,377

Net loss

NeHos^atfributabl^tojion^controlliiminteresto
P63,377

P980,848

11,684,784

P12,665,632

P17,378

2017

Non-controlling interests

Financial Position

Total current assets

Total current liabilities

Nomcon^iUngJnto

SRI PT BBS

27.42%

P6,067

410.061

P403.994

5.00%

P627,015
172,627,230

PI 72,000,215

P110,775 P8,600,Q1
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rP

2017
SRI VT BBS

Financial Performance
General and administrative expenses P56 593 p) 076 777

P56,593 P2.491.S48
Net loss^ttr^utable^to2]£n-£ontroliingJnteresl^^^^__^^ PI24 577

18. Interest Income

The source of the Group's interest income for the years ended December 31,2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

2018 2017 2016
Interest income on;

Financial assets at FVOCI / '
APS financial assets - debt
securities (Note 10) Pl.552.472 P2.197.I23 P3,008,473

Cash and cash equivalents

Qi2!l6j S18,67l 1,094,941 1.624.783
y2.071.143 P3.292.064 P4.633.256

19. Related Party Transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are
controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies, subsidiaries and
feBow subsidiaries, are related parties of the Group. Associates and individuals ovming, directly or
indirectly, m interest m the" voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the
enterpnse key m^ag^ent personnel, including directors and officers ofthe Group and close members
of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with these individuals also constitute
related parties. In considenng each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

C„) Advances from Stockholdpr
In 2017, in relation to the MOA executed between the Parent Company and META, the Parent
Company 1^ excess cash received from VTE amounting to P6.67 million which will be reimbursed by
the Parent Company to META or will be applied to future subscription of META subject to the terms
md conditions provided in the MOA. In 2018. the Group and META agreed that the excess cash would
form part as consideration of the shares issued in 2017 (see Note 17). Accordingly, the advances from
stockholder was closed to "Additional paid*in capital".

Transactions with Retirement Benpfit Fim/t

^  Company's retirement benefit fund is in the fbnn of a trust being maintained by a trustee

b. caiYmg Mount and fair value of the retirement benefit fund (the Fund) as at December 3:
2018 and 2017 amounted to P22.07 million and P26.23 million, respectively (see Note 21).



-46-

6^

c. pie assets and investments of the retirement benefit fund as at December 31. 2018 and 2017 arc as
follows:

2018 2017
Investments in bonds PI3,440,684 |i|2,934.896
Investment in unitinvestment trust fund 7,108,781 7817037
Investment m stocks 1,150,680 1,235,450
Special savings deposits 277,121 4 153 154
Accrued payables (19^278) '(21992)

116.793 n_5,940
P22,074.781 P26.234.485

d. In 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company contributed nil and P7.00 million, respectively, to the
retirement benefit fund (see Note 21).

Compensation of Kev Management Personnel
a. Sh^cs of stock of the Parent Company held members of the BOD aggregated to 125 807 247 as

atDeccmber31,2018and2017. . . «

b. Compensation of key management personnel consists of short-temi employee benefits and post-
employment bCTefite. Short-term employee benefits amounted to Pn.96 million. P12.21 million
and ̂ 11-40 i^Hion !n 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, while, post^mployment benefits
amounted to P3.58 million, P4.95 million and P4.73 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

consists Only of per diems for attendance at the BOD and Committee meetings,
i" , J received by the members of the BOD amounted to5 million, P2.36 million and PI.80 million, respectively. There is no existing compensatory plan or
arrangement for directors ofthe Parent Company. ^ /h u

Remuneration of existing officers of the Group are covered in their employment contracts and, except
for retirement tenefits undw the Group's retirement plan, there are no existing compensatory plans or
arrangements for officers ofthe Group. » /k «

f  ® by the stockholders onJuly 11,2007, and the excise period was extended to July 2013. The SEC issued on September 8

^  exempting the SOP from the registration requirements under the Securities Regulation
Pi -f ̂  2016, the entire 500.0 million shares were subscribed of which117.6 million shares have been paid.

Transactions with Associates

<^mpa^ entered in a Management Service Agreement (MSA) with VEPC and
VIMTPR Company would render managerial and administrative services to VEPC andtR. The Parent Company recognized income from this MSA amounting to P2.97 million in 2018
T^e related receivable amounting to P2.97 million as at December 31. 2018 is presented as part of
Accounts receivable under "Tlecei vables" account in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial
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20. General and Administrative Expenses

c

Personnel:

Salaries and wages
Retirement expense (sec Note 21)
Other employee benefits

Taxes and licenses

Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 14)

Transportation and travel
Representation and entertainment
Professional fees

Communication
Utilities

Annual stockholders meeting
Office supplies
Trainings and seminars
Association and membership dues
Repairs and maintenance
Others

2018 2017 2016

1*19,594,444
4,220.882

4,003,993
6,681,708

5,242,050

4,515,025
3,954,140
2,162,561
1,049,180

963,668
532,958

369,489
246,155
205,823

65,980

2,615.439

P19,559,371
6.452.891
5,652,864
1,132,767

5,421,968

5,336,868

4.621.892
1,604.128

1,063,243
915.944

650,719
524,234

257,376

1;87.807
195,105

2.078,754

PI 8,368,157

6.022,191
5.013.012
1,204.403

3,586,931
5.243,019

4,497,613

1,969,836
1,091,396

925,155
599,210
541,204
60,092

218.850
181,624

2,432.304
P56,423,495 P55.655.931 P51,954,997

21. Retirement Benefits

®  defined retirement benefit plan covering all qualified

lian'^TTf, ^'i "f the Board of Trustees (BOX) of theplan. The BOT is responsible for investment of the assets. It defines the investment strategy as often as
"1 «P«ially in the case of significant market developments or changes to thes^c^ of fte plan p^icipants. When defining the investment strategy, it takes account of the plans'
objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment strate^ is defined in fe fo™ of^
Invl"®" ^ 'h' taplementationXe

f^bor ofAe Phiirnni "f P^widential Decree (PD) No. 442(  bor Code of the Philippines ), requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector

rcTr^^em bencfi^tT """T' Powder, thai trempC's
rro^Tundirlhe hw 1^^° fbargaining and other agreements shall not be less than thoseprovided under the law. The law does not require minimum funding of the plan.

smteml^tTf components of retirement expense recognized in the consolidatedstatements of mcome, the remeasurement effects recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive mcome and the amounts recognized in Uie consolidated sta.ementsTfra^c^ position.
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follows"'''"'"'"'^ recogniKd in Ihc consolidated stalcmcnis of income arc as

Current service cost
2018 2017

P4,274.982 P5.87S.I45
577.746

Net interest cost (income) (54*100)
—— P4,220,882 P6.45l^

Remeasurcment gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income follow:

r-;— 2018 2017
Actuarial gam on defined benefit obligation PI,950,932 P9 604 142
Return on assets excluding amount Included in net

'"Merest cost (2,538,266) 201.506
(P587,334) P9.805.648

Accrued retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
Deccmbcr31,20l8and20I7areasfoIlows:

as at

S  :—; TT^: 2018 ^17Present value of defined benefit obligation P29,942,127 P29 293 975
Fair value of plan assets (see Note 19) (22,074.781) (26.234.845)

P7.867,346 P3.059.130

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation follow:

2018 2017

rl!^^ P29,293,975 P32.381,310Current service cost 4,274,982 5 875 145
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1,289 098 I '505*910

".Toss (gains) due to:
Changes in financial assumptions (1,940,688) (4,737,084)

\  Changes in demographic assumptions 3 194

I  '• .air'P29.942,127 P29,293.975
At December 31

Changes in the fair value of plan assets follow:

2018 2017

K6,2J4,845 PIS 969423"interest income included in net interest cost/income 1343,198 *928*164
Return on assets excluding amount included in net '

interest cost/income r? ct\£
Contribution (2338366) 201,506
Benefits paid ~ 7,000.000
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Changes in the accrued retirement benciiis recognized in the consolidntcd slnlcmctils of nnanci.il
position as at December 31 areas follows:

771 ; 2018 2017AtJanuaiyl P3,059,130 P13.4n.887
Retirement expense 4,220,882 6.452 891
Actuarial loss (gam) recognized for the year 587 334 (9 805 648)

(T.'ooo.'oooi
At December 31

P7,867,346 P3.0S9.i30

The major categories and fair values of the Group's plan assets are disclosed in Note 19.

The principal assumptions used in determining the pension liability for the Group's pension plan as at
December31 areas follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate 7,27% 5.75o/o

, .Q increase rate 6.00% 6.00%
The Group expects to contribute P5.25 million to the Fund in 2019.

"Die Mnsitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonable possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at end of the financial reporting date
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase (decrease) in the present
value of defined benefit obligation

Increase (decrease) 2018 2017
Discountrate +100 basts points (PI,099,192) (PI,556,619)

-100 basis points 1,238,424 1,792.326

Future salary increase rate +100 basis points 1,427,803 1,942,996
-100 basis points (1^96,867) (l.VlS.VoS)

(  1 Group does not expect.any changes on the other assumptions aside from the above.
The weighted average duration of the benefit payments as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
approximately 12.00 years and 16.02 years, respectively.

The average expected future service years at the end of the reporting date is seven (7) years. Shown
below IS the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 31,2018;

77 2018 mi
„  P15,6S8.24S PI 3,749,760More than one year to five years 8,962,093 7,613,679

More than five years to 10 years 12,174,226 10.670.297
More than 10 years to 15 years 25,327,576 33,741,430
More than 15 yeare to 20 years 9,682,540 17,087,248
.More than 20 years to 10 years 22,079,073 41 310 442
Total expected benefit payments P93,883,753 PI 24.172^856
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22. Income Taxes

Current income lax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 pertains to MCIT. Provision for income tax consists of:

2018 2017 2016
Current:

Final tax

Income tax
P409,192

216,908
P648,738

11.800

P922.634

7.424

Deferred
626.100

3,083.254
660,538

8.850.560
930,058

2,711.401
P3.709,354 P9,511,098 P3,64l,459

Being engaged in petroleum operations in the Philippines, the Parent Company and SRI are entitled to
certam tax incentives under PD No. 87. as amended. Under PD No. 87, contractors are exempt from all
taxes, except income taxes.

pie reconciliation of the tax computed at the statutory tax rate to the provision for income tax as shown
^  7 in the consolidated statements of income follows:

;  1018 2017 2016Inwme tax at 30% statutory rate (P6.6I8,878) (P14.619.982) (P36,245,656)
Adjustments to income tax

resulting Irom:

Nontaxable income (13,673,801) (1,087,786) (23,032,898)
Movement in unrecognized deferred

V, ^ assets 13,191,470 12,380,698 63.370.547NondcducUble expenses 7.712,435 3.584.724 16,809
Derecognidon of deferred tax assets
Expired NOLCO and MCIT
Interest income already subjected to

!:■ . C62M43) (1.491.696) (1,389.977)Final taxes paid and others 409,192 258.191 972 614
Provision for income tax pi 7no s,q <i t ad* P3 641*459

(13.673.801) (1,087,786)

13,191,470 12,380,698
7.712,435 3.584.724
2,399,858 _

910,421 10,486,949

(621,343) (1.491.696)
409,192 258.191

P3,709354 P9,511.098

/- A The conyonents of net deferred income tax liabilities recognized by the Group as at December 31, 2018(  ) and 2017 are as follows:
\  ' ■

Deferred taxes recog^iized in the consolidated
statements of income:
Deferred income tax assets on:

Accrued retirement benefits
Mcrr
Unamortized past service cost

P- PI,844,790
917,845
624.452

-  3 387 OR?
ueterred income tax liabilities on:

Revaluation increment on office condominium
Unrealized foreien exchanEc gains

6,749,084
7306,416

7.412,928
7,146,405

14,255.500 (4,559,333Deferred income tax Uabili^ related to accrued
retirement benefits recognized as OCI 750.850 927.050

R15.006.3SO PI 2.099.296
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As at December 31.2018. the Group has NOLCO and MCIT that can
future taxable income and income tax due, respectively, as follows: be utilized as deduction from

Year Incurred Exnirv Year

As at
December 31,

2017 Additions Expired

As at
December 31,

2018
NOLCO
2015
2016
2017
2018

2018
2019
2020
2021

P485.845
44,521.585
41,229,661

P-

36,647,226

P485.845 P

44,521,585
41.229,661
36,647,226

P86.237.091 P36,647.226 P485.845 PI22.398.472
MCIT
2015
2016
2017
2018

2018
2019
2020
2021

P910.421
7,424

11,800

P-

216,908

P910,421 P-
7.424

11,800
216,908

P929.645 P216,908 P910,42I P236.132

As at Dwember 31,2018 and 2017, the Group has deductible temporary differences and cany forward
ene ts for which no deferred mcome tax asset was recognized as management expects that it is not

probable ±at sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which deferred income tax asset
can be utilized. Details are as follows:

NOLCO
Allowance for impairment on:

Deferred exploration costs
Financial assets at FVOCl / AFS financial assets
Receivables

Retirement benefits
Unamortized past service cost
MCIT

2018 2017
P122^98,472 P86.237,09l

212,847,052
3,550.935
2,142,006

10370,182
1,850328

236,132

209,900,428
3.550.935
2.732.947

11,800

.( ) 23. Loss per Share

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computation:

2018 ^2017 2016Net loss attributable to shar^ldcrs of the
Parent Company (a)

Weighted average number of outstanding
common shares (bl

Basic and diluted loss
per share (a/b)

P25,I21,622 P38.104,275 P75,64g.092

2,740.079.047 2.592.792.915 2.560.118.512

P0.0Q9 P0.T)22 P0.030

pere have been no other transactions involving common shares or potential common shares between
the end of financial reporting period and the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements,
inere are no potential dilutive shares as of December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016.
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24. Segment Inforniatloo

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be divided into business segments for which the
Group s risk and rate of return are affected predominantly by difTcrcnces in the products produced. The
operating businesses are organized and managed separately through the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries according to the nature of the products provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit tliat offers different products to different markets.

As at December 31, 2018 and 20) 7, the Group has two main business segments - investment holding
and renewable energy and natural gas exploration.

The Group s operating business segments remain to be neither organized nor managed by geographical
segment.

The following table presents certain segment results, assets and liability information regarding the
Group's business segments:

2018

Investment

Holdina

Renewable

Energy and
Natural Gas

Exploration Eliminations Consotidated
Financial Performance

Income (Loss) before interest and
taxes

Interest income

Interest expense
Provision for income tax

PI 8,888398 (P39.606,67I)
2,071,143

(3,415,799)
(3.709354)

P- (P20,718373)
2,071,143

(3,415,799)
(3,709354)

Net income (loss) PI8,8S8J98 (P44,660,68n P- (P25,772383)

Financial Position

Segment assets

Investment properties
P202.482,I07

139,187.942

P885311373

21,691,058

(P460334384) P627,459,096

160,879,000
Total assets P341,670,049 P906,902,431 fP460334384) P788338,096
Total liabilities P230345,452 P267,991.780 (P415363.75D) P82.973,482
Other Segment Information

^  j Additions to;
Deferred exploration costs
Property and equipment

Depreciation and amortization

P- Pn330,887

179,098

5,242,050

P-

2017

PU330,887

179,098

5342.050

Investment

Holdine

Renewable

Energy and
Natural Gas

Exploration Eliminations Consolidated
Financial Performance

Loss before interest and taxes
Interest income

Interest expense
Provision for income tax

^570,024) (P51.0I0,520)
3,292,064
(444.792)

(9.511,098)

P- ^51,580,544)
3392.064
(444,792)

(9,511,098)
Net loss nP570.024) fP57,674.346) P- (P58.244,370)
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2017

Investment

Holdine

Renewable

Energy and
Natural Gas

Exploration Eliminations Consolidated
Financial Position

Segment assets

Investment Drouerlies
PI91,29I,5I2
119.819.824

P740,792,432

155,560,681
(P455,211,806) P476,872.138

275.380,505
Total assets P311,111.336 P896.353.U3 fP455.2n.806) P752,252.643
Total liabilities P218.616.154 P272.104.964 (P411.011,436) P79.709.682
Other Segment lofonaation
Additions to;

Deferred exploration costs
Pn^rty and equipment

Depreciation and amortization

P- P29,873.551

3.249,645

5.421,968

P-

2016

P29,873,55I

3.249,645

5,421,968

Invesimcnt

Holding

Renewable

Energy and
Natural Gas

Exploration Eliminations Consolidated
Financial Performance

Earnings (loss) before interest
and taxes

Interest income

Provision for income tax

P42,847,5I2 (PI 6839.621)
4,633.256
(3.64K459)

: P- (PI25.452.109)
4,633,256

(3.641,459)
Net income (loss) P42.847.5I2 (P167.307.824) P- (P124.460.312)
Financial Position

Segment assets
Investment properties

PI 89.419.271

119.819.824

P694,574,572

155.560.681

(P438.332.416) P445.661,427

275.380.505
Total assets P309.239.095 P850.13533 (P438,332.416) P721,041,932
Total liabilities P216,275.464 P194.I87.478 (P388.631.654) P21,831,288
Other Segment Information
Additions to:

Deferred exploration costs
Property and equipment

Depreciation and amortization

P- P29,933,862

180,029

3.586.931

P- P29.933,862

180,029

3.586.931

Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

2018

At January 1 Cash flows
Application

to APIC

At

December 31
Dividends payable
Loan payable (sec Note 17)
Advances from stockholder (sec

Note 19)

Interest payable

P888,714
50,000.000

6.670,782

P-

(3,415,799)

P-

(6.670':782)

P888,714
50,000,000

Net income floss) P57,559,496 (P3,415,799) (P6,670.782) P50.888,714
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Dividends payable
Loan payable (sec Note 17)
Advances from stockholder (sec Note 19)
Interest payable
Ne^come (loss)

2017

At January I Cash flows

P888.7M

50,000,000
6,670,782

(444.792)

At

December 31

P8«8,714

50.000.000
6.670.782

P888.7I4 P56.225.990 P57.S59.496

26. Fair Value Measurements

cO

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
M orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair values are obtained
irom quoted market prices.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments, investment properties and office condominium for which it is practicable to estimate such
value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Refundable Deposits. Accounts Payable and Accrued
Expenses, Uan Payable, Advancesfrom Stockholder and Dividends Payable, Due to the short-term
nature of these accounts, their carrying values were assessed to approximate their fair values.

Financial Assets at FVOCI/ AFS Financial Assets. Financial assets at FVOCI / AFS financial assets in
quoted equity instruments and quoted debt instruments are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value, which is determined by reference to quoted market prices at the close of
business on the reporting date.

Investment Properties ̂Office Condominium. Investment properties arc carried in the consolidated
statements of financial position at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table presents the level of hierarchy of the Group's financial assets at FVOCI debt and
equity instruments, investment properties and office condominium as at December 31,2018 and 2017:

2018

Financial assets at FVOCI:
Quoted debt securities
Quoted equity securities

Investment properties
Office condominium

PateofygluatioB

Fair Value Meaiorement Using
Quoted price* Significant Significant

in active observable uaobservable
markets inputs inputs

Total fUvell) fUvei2> fLeveU)

December 31,2018
December 31,2018

Various dates in 2018
August 25,2016

M7,624,594
6,711,923

160379,000
23302327

W7,624394
6,711.923

-  160,879,000

23302327
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2017
Fair Vaiue Measurement Using

AFS Financial assets:

Quoted debt securities

Quoted equi^ securities
Investment properties
OfTicc condominium

Date of valuation

Quoted prices Significant Significnnt
in active observable unobscrvnblc

markets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level .1)

December 31,2017 «9,839.205 f*39,839,205
December 31.2017 6,211,923 6,211,923

June 25,2016 275.380,505
August25,2016 25.593.527 25,593,527

P-

275,380.505

Fair vaJue of quoted debt and equity securities financial assets at FVCXTI is derived from quoted market
prices in active markets.

During the reporting years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between Level I
and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

There are no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Valuation Technioues Used to Derive Level 3 Fair Values
The table below presents the following for each class of the Group's Investment properties and office
condominium:

■  The fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period;

■  The level of the fair value hierarchy (e.g., Level 2 or Level 3) within which the fair value
measurements are categorized in their entirety;

■  A description of the valuation techniques applied;

•  The inputs used in the fair value measurement; and

■  For Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative information about the significant unobscrvabie
inputs used in the fair value measurement.

O
Oaga ofPropcrty

Land

Office condominium

Fair Value la at

December 31.
2018

F160,879,000

23,302,327

2018

Key Range
Valuation Unobaervable (Weighted
Techniaue Innuts Averace)

Market Price per K0-P2,000
Approach tquare meter

External factor -S% to ̂ 0%
(adjnatment to the

price per square
meter)

Location -15% to 5%
Size -20 to 5%

Market Price per PTO.OWL
Approach tquare meter FIU.OOO

Remaining 14—40 years
economic life
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Class ofPropcrtv

Land

Fair Value as ai

December 31. 2017

P275.380,505

Office candominium 25,593,527

20J7

Valuation

Technique

Market

Approach

M&rkei

Approach

Key Range
Unobservable (Weighted

Inouts AvcraRc')

Price per P20-P1.700
square meter

External factor -5%to-I0Vo
(adjustment to the

price per square
meter)

Location 10% to 20%

Size -5%

Price per P70.000-
squve meter PIM.OOO

Remaining economic 14-40 years
life

Sensitivity Analysis to Significant Changes in Unobservable Inputs within Level 3 of ihe. Hierarchy

Investment PropeNies. Significant increases (decreases) in price per square meter in isolation would resul I
m a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.

27. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, refundable
deposits, financial assete at FVQCI, accounts payables and accrued expenses, loan payable, advances
from stockholder and dividends payable. Cash and cash equivalents, refundable deposits, financial
assets at FVOCI, loan payable and advances from stockholder are used for investment purposes, while
receivables, amounts payable and accrued expenses, and dividends payable arise ftom operations. The
Group s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as at December 31,2018

2017. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on minimizing the potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance due to unpredictability of financial markets.

The Group s exposures to these risks are managed through close monitoring by the Group's key
management and BOD through the Finance and Investments Committee.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk to earnings or capita! arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial statements. Fluctuations in exchange rates can have significant effects on the Group's
reported results. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its foreign-currency-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, refundable deposits and financial assets at FVOCI accounts.
The Group's policy is to minimize economic and material transactional exposures arising from currency
movements against the Philippine Peso.

The Group s foreign-currcncy-denominated exposures comprise significantly of its exposure in its USS
Indonesian Rupiah (IDR) and Japanese Yen (JP¥) financial assets.
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The Group's significant foreign-currcncy-dcnominatcd financial assets as at December 31, 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents:

US$

IDR

Refundable deposits:
US$

JP¥

Financial Assets at FVOCI and
AFS Financial Assets

Quoted equity investments - USS

Original
Currency

US$694,876
rDR47,160.602

USS-

JP¥34,063.800

USS3J00

Peso

Equivalent
Original
Currency

P36.536.580 US$358,145
169,778 IDR36.677,892

-  US$2,621,871
16.183,711 JPy84,063,800

168.256

PS3.058.325

US$3.200

Peso

Equivalent

P17,882,180
135,518

133,284,475
38.144,633

159.776

P189.606.582

For purposes of translating the foreign-currcncy-denominated monetary assets and liabilities as of
December 31, the exchange rates applied were as follows:

USS

IDR

JP¥

201S 2017

P52.58 to US$1

P0.0036 to IDRl

P0.47S1 to JI^l-

P49.93 toUS$l

P0.0037to IDRl

P0.4538toJP¥!

The following table summarizes the impact on the consolidated financial statements of reasonable
possible changes in the exchange rates of foreign currencies against the Philippine Peso as at
December 31,2018 and 2017 until the Group's next financial reporting date:

Increase (decrease)
Change In in income before

USS rate income tax
2018

2017

Increase (decease)
Change in In income before Change in
JPVrate ioojmc tax IDR rale

+1.12%

-132%

+1.28%

-2.53%

Increase

(decrease) in

income before

income tax

P4n.094

(484.504)

Pl,936.978

(3,858.824)

+1.76%

-134%

+2.73%

-3.04%

P264333

aiM62)

Pl.048,977

(1,159,597)

+1.75%

•1.60%

+1.37%

-1.72%

P2,97I

(2,716)

P2.128

(2,331)

There is no other effect on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the consolidated loss
before income tax.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
pri^s. The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group,
which are classified on the consolidated statements of financial position as financial assets at FVOCI.
The Group employs the service of a third-party stock broker to manage its investment in shares of stock.
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The following table presents the effect on the consolidated financial statements of reasonable possib Je
changes in market prices of financial assets at FVOCI as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 until the
Group's next financial reporting date:

()

Change in
Quoted Prices of

Investments
Carried at Fair Value

2018

2017

+ 4.00%

-4.00%

+ 4.45%

-4.45%

Increase

(Decrease)
in Equity

Pi,773,461

(1,773,461)

P2.049,935

(2.049,935)

The effect on the Group's equity in relation to equity price risk already excludes the effect of the
transactions affecting profit or loss.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its counterparties failed to discharge the ir
contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by doing business only with
recognized, creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances arc monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group s exposure to bad debts is not significant The Group does not have any collateral
held as security and other credit enhancements on its financial assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Therefore, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of its financial
assets as at December 31,2018 and 2017.

It is the Group's policy to maintain the receivables at a low level except for one-time non-trade
transaction which the Group classifies as collectible or not impaired because the parties have no history
of default especially on transactions as agreed on the contract.

The following table provides information regarding the credit quality by class of financial assets
(amounts gross of allowance for credit losses) based on the Group's credit rating system!

2018

Neither

Pest Due nor Past Du^
and Impaired'Impaired Total

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivaleots*
Receivables:

P42,090W P- P42,090386

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Advances to officers and

127,121,226
200,262

2,142,006 129,263332

200.262

employees
Refundable deposits

51369
16,183,711

- 51369

16,183,711

185,646.854 2,142.006 187,788,860
Financial Assets at FVOCI
Quoted debt securities
Quoted equity investments

37,624,594
6.711.923 3,550,935

37,624,594
10362,858

44,336.517 3,550,935 47.887.452

* Excluding cadt on hand
P229.983,371 PS,692,941 P235.676.312
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2017

Neither

Past Due nor

Impaired
(HiRh Grade)

Past Due

and Impaired Total
Loans and Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents*
Receivables:

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Advances to officers and
Empioyces

Refundable deposits

P75.027,407

1,980,784
356,573

349,665
171.429.108

P-

2,732.947

P75,027.407

4.713,731
356,573

349,665
171.429.108

249.143.537 2.732.947 251.876.484
AFS Finaodal AsKts

Quoted debt securities
Quoted equity investments

39,839,205
6.211.923 3.550.935

39,839,205
9.762.858

46.051.128 3.550,935 49.602.063

P295.194,665 P6.283.882 P30I.478.547
* Excluding eaah on hand.

The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows;

Financial instruments classified as "high grade" are those cash and cash equivalents transacted with
reputable local and multi-national banks and receivables with some history of default on the agreed
terms of the contract. Financial assets at FVOCI arc considered "high grade" since these are invested in
blue chip shares of stock. The past due and impaired receivables amounted to P2.73 million as of
December 31,2017.

Concentrations of credit risk arise from financial instruments that have similar characteristics and are
affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group arising from financial assets since these are not directly affected by
changes in economic or other external conditions.

Applicable for the Year Ended December 31. 2018

The Group has the following financial assets that are subject to the ECL model:

General Approach

•  Cash and Cash Equivalents. As of December 31, 2018, the ECL relating to the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is minimal as these are deposited in reputable entities which have good
bank standing and is considered to have lower credit risk.

■  Financial Assets at FVOCI. Consisting of quoted debt and equity securities, probability of default
is expected to be lower as these are blue chip shares of stock.

•  Refundable Deposit. Refundable deposit is deposited with a third party which have good credit
standing and are considered to have lower credit risk, hence, probability of default is expected to be
less likely.
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SimplifiedApproach

■  Receivables. The Group applied the simplified approach under PPRS 9, using a 'provision mair ix',
in measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for receivables. The expected loss
rates are based on the payment profiles of revenues/sales over a period of at least 24 months before
the relevant reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers/counterparties to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the Gross Domestic Product and inflation rate to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

As of December 31,2018, the allowance for impairment losses pertain only to Individually impaired
accounts amounting to P2.14 million.

The table below shows the financial assets per stage of allocation and by credit risk rating grades as at
December 31,2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12.month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

High grade P102,610,514 P251.631 P- P102.862,145
Standard grade - 127,121,226 - 127,121,226
DeMt Z 2.142.006 2.142.006
Gross carrying amount 102,610,514 127,372,857 2,142,006 232,125.377
Loss allowance - (2.142.006) f2.142.006)
Carrying amount P102.610.514 P127,372,8S7 P- P229.983.371

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group would not be able to settle or meet its obligations on
time or at a reasonable price. Management is responsible for liquidity, funding, as well, as settlement
management. Management also ensures that the Group will maximize its gain on trading of marketable
secunties to finance future capital-intensive projects. The Group manages its liquidity risk on a
consolidated basis based on business needs, tax, capital or regulatory considerations, if applicable,
through numerous sources of finance in order to maintain flexibility.

( ̂ Group manages its liquidity profile to be able to finance its working capital requirements and
\  capital expenditures and service due and maturing debts. To cover its financing requirement, the

Group intends to use internally generated funds. The BOD closely monitors the Group's financial
position during its regular meetings.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial instruments of the Group based on
remaining contractual undiscountcd cash flows:

FiotncUl Assets

Cash and cash equivaicnts
Receivables:

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Advances to ofllcers and employees
Refundable deposits
Financial assets at FVOCI

On demand

P42,093,952

12?,I2U26

5U69
16,163,711
44J36317

229,786,775

Financial LlabiUties

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses*

i^an payable
Dividends payable 888,714

2018

More than

Leas than 3 months up
3 months to one year

More than

one year

200,262

200,262

8329,299
50343,750

888.714 58.673.049

Total

Net Financial Asicts (Uabilltles) M28398.061 1^58.472.787)
* Excludtfig HaMory UohiUfks.

P42,093,952

127,121,226

200,262

51369

16.183.711

44336.517

229,987,037

8329399

50343.750

888,714

59361.763

P170,425374

2017

On demand

More than
Less than 3 months up More than

Total
FinancUl Aasett

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

P75,029,384 P- P- P- P75,029.384

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Advances to officers and employees
Refundable deposits
AFS financial assets

1,980,784

349,664

171,429,108
46.051.128

356,573
1,980,784
356.573

349,664

171,429.108
46.051.128

294.840.068 356.573 295.196.641
Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses*

Loan payable
Advances from stockholdo'

Dividends payable
6,670,782

888,714

6,478,048
50,218,750

6,478.048
50,218.730
6,670,782

888.714
7,559.496 56,696.798 64.256.294

Net Financial Asaets (LUbllitleal P287.280.572 (P56.340.225)
* Excluding statutory liaMMes

P230.940347

28. Capital Maaagement

The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capita] ratio in
order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in ijght of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares. No changes
were made on die objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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sI'Ort-lenn decisions relating to casli and cosh equivalents

Souo is abteT "r "" k'""'"'"- 1° onsurl that the
curr^n^LtmL an"ro"p:;hng" """ ''
The table below summarizes the total capital considered by the Group:

2018 2017

^7'^ 'T.- ■ P703.848 n8 P677.125Additional paid-in capital 42 qji 502 3<; fii7 ̂ 1
Retained earnings (deftcit) (15.810jsi) 7:7til'gni

—  P730.0S8.929 P720.5Q5.030

requir^^^' 31. 2018 and 2017. the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

,o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Basic Energy Corporation
7lh Floor, Basic Petroleum Building
C. Palanca Jr. Street, Legaspi Village
Makati City

Wc have audited In accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Basic Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31.2018 and
2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2018, included in this Form 17-A
and have issued our report ftereon dated March 28.2019. Our audits were made for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
Group's management. These schedules arc presented for purposes of complying with Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic financial statements. These
schedules have been subjec^ to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, tairly state, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth
therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

SriAt if* Uuh
Leovina Mae V. Chu
Partner

CPA Certificate No. 99910
SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A (Group A),

October 18,2018, valid until October 17,2021
Tax Identification No. 209-316-911
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001-998-96-2018,

February 2, 2018, valid until February 1,2021
PTR No. 7332629. January 3,2019, Makati City

March 28.2019

A  fifm tf g/nai i CiCitMl



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Schedule I

Schedule II

Schedule III

Schedule IV

Schedule V

Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

(Part 1,4C; Annex 68-C)
Map of the relationships of the companies witliin tlie group (for invcjstmenls

houses that are part of a conglomerate; Part 1, 4H)
Schedule of all effective standards and interpretation (Part 1, 4J)
Schedule showing financial soundness indicators
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PURSUANTTO SRr* Din V £0 AC A 68-EPTTD<2TIA NTT ^ AIVINEX 61

SCHEDULE I

dSbe^3S,8 tended (2011)

Schedule A. Financifd Assets

Financial asseti ai FVOCI

Quoted equity mvestments 6;211.923 (P2.214,611) P37,624.594

P46,05 M28 :: ^QQ>000 6.711 *923
(Pl.714.6in IM4J36.617
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARrKS

SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E

dSbe^31 20lf̂  amended (2011)

Schedale B. Amounts Rece.rable from Directors, Officers. Employees, end Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)
Name and■tei^arionof B^i^ng
Advances to ^S2!« conectod ^^ittenoff Current Notcunent Rndine

Officers and '
Employees P349.664 1*1,108,031 PIs406,326 1 i^Q^  ?51,369 fL.



BASIC Er^RGV corporation AND SUBSIDlARrrs
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 6^K

SmSlf ̂ (2011)

Schedule C. A^ouuls Receivable fro™ Related Paetle, which eliu.,„a.«i during the Co„«.lldaH„„ of Financial Slalentenri
Name and

designation of
debtor

BRI

BDIHI

BBC

IBasic

BGEC

SRI

Grandway

Beginiiing
teianccs

P-

22,007,066
6,029^76
4.120,420

365,060
191446,824

Additions

P54,718
108454

98,063

142,081

4,718
62,877

12455421

Amounts

collected
Amounts'written

off Current

P54.718
22,115,320
6,127,639
4462,501

4,718

427,937
203,902.045

Not current Ending balanc<^^
P54,718

22,115,320

6,127,639
4,262,501

4,718

427,937
203,902,045



MglCENERGYCORPOR^^^ AND STm«Tn»Ao»r.^
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68 F

Schedule D. Intangible Asseb - Other Noncnrrent Assets

Description
Goodwill

Accounting software
Non-propriety club

shares

Beginning balance Additions at cnrt
P3,757,602

206,700

200.000

P-

28,000

Charged to cost and

expenses

P-

(22,371)

Charged to other
accounts

Other charges
additions

(deductions!

(P3,757.602)

Total
P4.164.302 P28.000 (P22.37n P- (^3,757.602) P412,329

Endiog balance

P-

212.329

200.000



BASIC ENERGY CORPQRATinM AND SUBSIDIARTRS
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-

Sm S.f' tended (2011)

Schedule £. Long-term Debt

-5>^v

Iit!i^ea.dtypeofobl,>t,on ^TeZot,™
Notappiicabie- ^— financial position
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIPrARTrs
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E ^

^  amended (2011)

Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Partic (Long-Term Loans fn>m Related Companies)
Name of related party ^ .Balance at beginning of perind ^

-Not applicable. —^ Balance at end of penod
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SllRSmTAPTTrg

PlTO«n under annex 68-E

Schednle G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issnera

Name of issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by theguoi mueeo oy me

G.Pu^forwh.chU,.^.cn.ent Title of Toul amcun. Amount owned by a person for
Not applicable ' wh.ch statement ,s filed Namreofa^sm-



Schedule H. Capital Stock

r

O

ASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

schedules under annex 68-E

D™ ^ amended (2011)

Title of issue

Common shares

Number of shares
issued and

outstanding as Number of shares
shown under related reserved for options.

Number of sh^ financial condition warrants, conversion
^orizcd captioD and other rights

10

No of shares held by

,000,000.000 2,708.500,714
Emplovees

2,500,000

Directors
and Officers

144,292.842
Others

2,025,000
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION (Part 1, 4C; Annex 68-C)
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Items

Unsppropriated ReUined Earnings, Beginning

Amount

Adjustments
Fair value adjustment on investment properties
Deferred income tax assets

Deficits as Adjusted, Beginning

Net Loss Based on (he Face of AFS

Less: Non-actual/Unrealtzed Income Net of Tax
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those attributable to

Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Unrealized actuarial gain
Fair value adjustment (M2M gains)
Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP-gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a

result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS
Deferred income tax assets that reduced the amount of provision for

income tax

P7,761.901

(71.955,696)
(3.387.087)

(67.580.882)

(25.772.283)

809,898

24.184,059

Add: Non-actual Losses

Depreciation on revaluation Increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss
Loss on fair value adiustment of investment property (after tax)

Net Loss Actual/Realized

Add (Less)

Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of Retained Earnings during the period
Reversals of ̂proprialions

Effects of prior period adjustments

1,548,970

(49,217.270)

TOTAL DEFICIT

(3,240,000)

(P120.038.152^
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basic energy corporation and subsidiaries
MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMPANIES
WITHIN THE GROUP (PART 1.4H)

SCHEDULE III

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION

Investments in Subsidiaries

investments in Associate
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUHSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS (PART 1, 4J)
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2018

(-P

y. - -
!

■ v>il
Philippine FInanciai Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 Firsi-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards y

PniS2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2, Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

•J

PFRS 3 Business Combinations
y ■

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
y

Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9
Financial InstrumenU With PFRS 4 Insunmce
Contracts

y

PFRSS Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations y

PFRS 6

i—

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources y

PFRS 7 Financial Instniments: Disclosures
y

PFRS 8 Operating Segments
y

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments
y

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
y

PFRS n Joint Arrangements
y

PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
y

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
y

■

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
y

PFRS 15 flevenue from Contracts with Customers
y

Philippine Accounting Standards
^

PAS 1 IPresentation of Financial Statemcntt
y

PAS 2 1nventories
y

PAS? Statcment of Cash Flows
y

PASS /

E

accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
stimates and Errors y

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
y



PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
y

PAS 17 Leases
y

PAS 19 Employee Benefits
y

PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance y

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates y

PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
y

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
y

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans 1 y

PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
y

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
y

Amenuments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate
or Jomt Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvcnients to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

y

PAS 29 Financial R^rting In Hyperinnationary
Economies y

PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentatitm
y

PAS 33 Earnings per Share
y

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
y

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets
y

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets y

PAS 38 Intangible Assets
y

PAS 39 "inancial Instruments: Recognition and
Mcasmtwnent y

PAS 40 ]nvestment Property
y

j

I

^endmcnts to PAS 40. Transfers of Investment
Property y

PAS4I /Igriculture
y

Philippine Interpretations
Philippine C
Interpretation R
IFRIC-1

hangeain Existing Decommissioning,
estoratkm and Similar Liabilities

y

Philippine V
Interpretation S
IFRJC-2

:embcrs' Shares in Co-operative Entities and
imilar Instruments

y



im

1 Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-4

Deiermining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-5

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds | y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-6

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific 1
Market—Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRlC-7

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS
29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

y

Philippine
Interpretadon
IFRIC-10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 1
y

•

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-12

Service Concession Arrangements

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-14

PAS 19—The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their y
Interaction {

Philippine
Interpretation
rFRIC-16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRJC-17

Distributions ofNon-cash Assets to Owners 1

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRIC-20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 1
Surface Mine

y

Philippine
Interpretation
IFRlC-21

Levies j
y

Philippine I
Interpretation (
IFRJC-22

"orcign Currency Transactions and Advance 1
consideration y

Philippine 1
Interpretation
SIC-7

ntroduction of the Euro

y

Philippine C
Interpretation C
SIC-10

overamcnt Assistance—No Specific Relation to 1
>pcrating Activities

y



Philippine
Interpretation
SIC-I5

Operating Leases—Incentives mmmm

j

Philippine
Interpretation
SIC-25

Income Taxes—Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders

j

Philippine
Inlerprctaiion
SIC-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Fonn of a Uasc

j

Philippine
Interpretation
SIC-29

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

y

Philippine
Interpretation
SIC.32

Intangible Assets—Web Site Costs

°'7'" Applicable" «e those standards <md Intentretations which were
Dec™d I 2^8 s'En'fiMnt covered transaction as at and for the year ended

o

SCHEDULE V
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011)
DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Profitability ratios:

Return on ass^ (0.00%) (0.00%)
Return on equity (0.00%) (0.00%)
Net profit margin

Solvency and liquidity ratios:
Current ratio 3 30.,
Debt to equity ratio 012*1 O ll-l
Quick ratio

Asset to eqiuty r^o I 12 * 1
1.11:1
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OUAUTERLY RIcrORTI^UUSUANTTOSKCTION 17 OF^jE SEClJRITrES^ „ •,>
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(a) - 17(l))(2) Tpl&UND£iLv]iil>,. omc:

I. FortJie quarterly period ended; March 31,2019
MAY i

2. Commission Idenlificalion No.: 168063

3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 000-438-702-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization; Philippines

6. Industry Classification Code: IgjigSi (SEC Use Only)

I I ' . ' < < ^11 VV « M

"Uu . • IN u rn 1.

7. Address of issuer's principal office;?"' Floor, Basic Petroleum Building, C. Palanca Street,
Legaspi Village, Makati City, Philippines

Postal Code: 1229

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code: +63 2 817 8596 to 98

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report: N/A

lO.Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common stock
outstanding and amount of debt outstanding

Common Shares 2,815,392,714

Listed with PSE 2,560,118,512

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes[X] No[ J
f

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 1 l(a)-l thereunder, and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes[X] No[ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [X] No [ ]



Item J. Financial SialciiicnLs.

"Atlnclimcnl A"

Hem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of I.inaiicial Condition and Kesults of Opci ations.

"Allaclinient A"

PART n--OTHER INFORMATION

"Attachment A"

- P-iously r^pded imrepel on SEC Form 17-C  a. If disclosure of such infomtation is made under this Part Ir irneed n^^^ reneated

rsub^Te„Trep3on f'o™ n-a ^

SIGNATURES

requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, tlie issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant: CokzLnjj^
VP & Corporate Secretaiy

Date:

Principal Financial Officer; Alain S,
VP - Finance

Date:

( )



KINANCIAK INFOKiVIATION
For (lie period ended Mjireli 31,2019

1. The following nnnudiicl Finnncinl S<n.e.„e„,s ore coninined in ihi.s ropor.:
>■> Stmernems or,nco„,e and Rcained Earnings for .he Period Ended March 31. 2019 and Ma rch
1.2 Balance Sheets as of March 31,2019 and December 31,2018-

2. Discussion on Financial Condition for the Period December 31, 2037 and March 33, 2038.
A. Key Performance Indicators

The following table shows tite Top 5 performance indicators for the past three interim periods:
KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Return on Fivcstments (ROJ)
(Net Income/Ave. StockhoJdere' Equity)
ProOt Margin
(Net Income / Net Revenue)
Inwstment in Projects (Non-Petroleum)
as a % ofTotal Assets

Inwstment In Wells & Other Facilities
as a % ofTotal Assets

Current Ratio
(Qjrrent Asset/Current Liabilities)
Asset Turnover
(Net revenue/Ave. Total Assets)
SolvencyRatios
Debt to Equity Ratio

Asset to Equity Ratio

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

IstOtr2019 1st Otr 2018 lstOtr2017

-0.23% -Z32% -136%

-15.47% -2761.50% -264.10%

21.00% 37.20% 38.79%

16.06% 17.01% I4Z7%

4.3:1 3.75:1 17.17:1

1.37% 0.08% 0.54%

9.04% 1Z3I% 3.16%
107.74% 110.99% 94.76%

-124.37% -2153.93% NA

investment. Profit M^gfr^et^Inc^e^ Equity) measures the profitability of stockholders'peso of revenue. Investment in Projects as a % ofAsscl produced by each
m Its committed work programs Current Ratio rc the company invested
short-term debt-paying abtliroftircom^rv^ r". m''"'' ' Liabilities) measures theAssets) nteasnre.f,L®
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Lsc qZrtcrl '''' '''"e

-2761.51% for Iho I« quarter or20IX and -

'«•« wc-e

irrtro720l/fem%^oy 21.00% for the P'
?"auarterof 20i rTh! H ! I " quarter of 2018 which also decreased from 38.79% for the
andte dlreLe L lo 8 ' r T P^°P-rtydim ine aecrease in 2018 was due to the increase in total assets. k J'

i™o72017l''l7 0iy''r,l''i'"^ '"™"' '4-27% for the P'
7nTn. 7 °'^2018 and decreased to 16.06% for the I" quarter of
totll as?e S Tf''' ^ decrease in investment and incr^se fntotal assets. The .ncrease ,n rate from 2017 to 2018 was due increases to both investment""",!"

forrpwl'!^^^^^^^ I^'quarter of2019, 3.75:1 for Ore P'quarter of 2018, and 17.17:1

° M "■ ■•« »~v» fo™ 2017,. 20,, I, d.. to

in total habilitiesTd dLrLsed ■ 2018 was due to the increasesdecrease in total liabilities and inireZto e^uity''""'^ '" '°

9476% 'he p. quarter of2019, 110.99% for the P' quarter of 201 8Sn t! 20 8ITdue o ̂  7 ""O'h. The increase in rattoratio from 20.8 t!'20l1 w^ i:ZZlZ:i7:lX

partial settlement the loar. pa^le as well as tht i ™ i ™ to/LTtartlr''
B. Discu.ssion and Analysis of Financial Condition as ofMarch 31,2019

to^tluLTlTd'^petfs'^m^^^^^^^ n77 PhplO.65 million andinterest rccordeTat Prnfiq m If T T ® °"hp 1.52 million with minorityrecorded at PhpO. 13 milhon for a net loss net of minority interests of Phpl .65 million.

s?r!teT!ra;LtVt!^'h;T87 strefn'netinTo'"f""
million iinrcaliV/»H wirv.. of associates amounting to Php2.12
PiipO.yLiiillion. cxciangc gam of PIip2.93 million and interest income amounting to
Cos, and expenses for the P' quarter of 2019 amounting to Phpl2.17 million were from general and



no 'ssT , n • "ri'l.p22.07 million fromH>p788.34 nnllion .s ol December 31, 2018. Currcnl as.sct.,, composed mostly of cash Ind cn
refrH w ^'^'^"ivables nmoundng to I>l,p34f,I milliol -md
incrltd bv p ™4 1 Jd Tl Non-current assets, however,

Phil 3 nlimon."'"" "" equipment amounit'ng ti

W?r64^29 m'^r' of December 31 2018 toPhp64.29 mtlhon as of March 31,2019 primarily due to the partial settlement ofthe ll payable

booked for the I» quarter o^mTo of ̂ cTfiT mMifon !' 7/
adjustment of Php2.99 million. ' decreased in cumulative translation

.iTiiisririd izi:"T"" """pi.,, m

Attachment A on Ftnancial Information for the period ending March 31, 2019.

rj,r:'=i"p,sz'z^=Spr" ̂ »' «• ~
On September 8, 2011, the SEC approved the Stock Option Plan (SOP) ofthe Parent Cnmn^n.

o«p.s,'s: -

.taS."" °° <•»"»'• " r" "«") •vm.ly "Oiii-J .bm „j Pto,

SSltvpTJtlt.lS'" «"•» "1 »-«

"""" «■« -■ -

2p™,rt"diSi,r mpSiiZ"?," dL°' "r" "s"'™?,*""' "d i"dhd"8
rcslructurings, and discontinuing of operaticn^'s'^ ° subsidiaries and long-term invesUneats,
Since December 31, 2018, there are no otlrer changes in contingent liabilities or assets and no new



'"■ known lo manage,ncnl lhalwiil liavc A malcrial impact on llie company's liquidity.

matoaTefto o,?t' "'Pi'"' expenditures and no seasonal aspects thai have amaterial eUect on (he financial condition.-; or results ofoperalions.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
sales/revenues/incor^nronV^^^^^^^^^^^^

Lmparv ^"elulhiTan' d "f 1,®®"' obligations that are material to thecompany, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements obliEations fincludinB
—M." '«<•-"« .,h„

and hor.zonta! analysts of any material item, have been presented in tWs report.

Jon^itrth^g "a^ exempt

'  )



CONSOLIDATED BALANCESIIIiiU^i
As of March 31,2019 and March 31,2018

IJnaiidilcd

3I-M;»r-I9

Audited

31-DCC-I8

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net ofallowance for bad debts
Refundable deposits

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non current assets

Investment in associates

Financial assets at FVQCI

Investment properties
Property and equipment
Deferred charges
Other noncurrent assets

84.547,386

34,611,380

39,610,895

13,542,698

42.093,952

127,372,857

16,183,711

12,888,673

P  I723I2359 P 198,539,193

221,056,671

45,457,497

160,879,000

39,737,306

123,088,441

217,136,156

44,336,517

160,879,000

41,032,391

123,042,519

1  Total non currentassets
P 593,960,068 P 589,798303

1  Total assets
f 766372,427 P 7883 38,096

Liabilities audstockholders'equity

Current liabilities
j  Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Loan payable
In come tax pay ab le

1  Dividends payable

P 9,001,718

30,000,000

216,908

888,714

P 8,994,164

50,000,000

216,908

888 7141  Total current liabilities
P 40,107340 P 60,099,786

1  Noncurrent liabilities
Accmed retirement benefits payable
Deferred income tax liabilities

P 9,179.839

15,006350

P 7,867,346

15 006 3501  Total noncurrent liabilities
P 24,186,188 P 22373,696

1  Total liabilities
P 64393328 P 82,973,482

Minority interest
P (9331322) P (936Iy446)

Stockholders' equity
Capital slock attributable to equity holders ofthe Company
Additional paid-in capital
Equity rcverve on acquisition ofnon-controiling interest
Revaluation increment in office condominium
Fair value adjustments on financial assets
Remcasurement loss on acquired retirement benefits
Qimulative translation adjustment
Share in cumulative translation adjustment ofassociates
Retained earnings (deficit)

Total ' "

Treasury stock(at cost)
Total equity

703,848,179

42,021,502

(53,945,929)

15,747.863

2304,360

1,751,984

(7363363)

27,544,449

(17,458.322)

714,450322

(3,240,000)

703,848,179

42.021,502

(53,945,929)

15,747,863

1,183,379

1,751,984

(4,374,615)

27.544,449

(15,810,752)
P 717,966,060

(3.240.000)
711310322 714,726,060

Total IJaNlities andstockholdcrs'
766372,428 788338,096



CONSOUDA I iaJS IA riCMI-NI?; OriN('OMICANDRi;rAINW>IAKNIN(:S
For (lie (X'l iodcnded Mjii cIi 31,2019 nml March 31,201«

REVENIJFS

Interest, dividends and oilier}!

Realized foreign exchange gain
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Share in net income ofassoclalcs

Management service fees

COSTS AND EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses
Interest ejgiensc
UnrcalizEd foreign exchange (loss)
Other expenses

LOSS BEFOREINCOMETAX

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX

Current

Deferred

NET INCOME

Minority interest

As of

March3I,20l9

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR/QUARTER

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OFTHE YEAR/QUARTER

Earnings (Loss) per share

779,395

20,720

2.925,282

2.120,630

4,803,010

10,649,038

11,490,508

676,577

12,167,084

(13I8>046)

(1318,046)
129,524

(1,647370)

(15,810,752)

(17,458322)

(0.0006)

As of

March3l,20I8

5IZ215

54,222

566,437

P  14,422,079

726,215

1,060,326

16,208.620

r  (15,642,183)

P  (15342,183)

(151,551)

P  (15,490,632)

7,761,901

(7,728,731

(0.0057)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMBSTOECASII MX)WS
for the pcriodendedofMarch3I,20I9nndM3H ch3I,20I8

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (loss)

Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cnsli pro\idcd byopcratinE
activities:

interest income

Depreciation,depletion and amortization
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss
Dividend income

Operating income (loss) before working caixtal changes

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in asset/s:
ReceivabJes

Other assets

Prepayments and other current assets
Increase pecrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Loan payable
Accrued retirement benefits payable
Other liabilities
Cash generated from (used in) operations

Interest received

Ta>oss paid

Net cash flows from (used) in operating activities

CASHFLOWS FROMlNVESTTNGACnVmES

Additions Peductions)to:
Financial assets at FVOCI

Refundable deposits
Investment in associates
Deferred charges
Property & equipment
Unrealiasd gain on fair value adjustments
Dividends received

Net cash flovre from (used) in investing activities

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnvrriES

Proceeds from issuance of capital stock
Net cash flows from (used) in financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate chnages in cash & cash equivalent
OiiTulative translation adjusment

NHT INCREASE PECREASE5 IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year/quarter
CASH AND CASH FPUIVAI FNT aT FND

IstOuiutcr

2019

Isl Quarter

2018

P  (14518,046) P (15,642,183)

P

779,395

1,295,085

(2,946,002)

512,21:5

1,312,915

1,006, KM

P  (2,389,567) p (12,810,949)

P  92,761,477 | P

(1.022,861)

(157,023)

(20,000,000)

U12,493

(19,684)

(1,754,719)

620,081

i.soaooo

P  70,504318 P (12,165371)

(779,395) I (512315)

P  69,725.123 P (12,677,486)

(1,120,980) I P
(23,427,184)

(3,920.515)
(45.922)

1,120,981

530,323

(6,347,656)
(115,999)

(530,323)

P  (27393.6211 P (6,463,655^

P  2,946,002 P (1,006,104)
(2,824,071) I 1,710,166

P  42,453,434 P (18,437,079)
42,093.952 | 75,029,384

84347386 P 56392305



CONSOUDA rij) s lA MjMijNi-s 01' (:iiAN(;ics IN s'r<)f:Kiiou)wt.s' loonrrv
for (he period ended Miirch 31,2019 nnd Hudi 31,2018

CAPITAL STOCK

Par value: PhpO.25 per share; Aiiiliori/cd: 10.000,()00.(XX) shams
Issued and subscribed

Paid-up capital ai beginning of the year
Additional subscription
Paid-up capital at end of (he perio<yquaiier

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of the year
Additional subscription
Balance at end of the ncrio<Pquar(cr

Equity reserve in acquisition of non-controlling interest
Revaluation increment in ofilce condominium
Fair value adjustments on financial assets
Remeasurement loss on acquired retirement benefits
Cumulative translation adjustment
Cummulative translation adjustment ofassociates
Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Balance at beginning ofthe year
Net income (loss) for the period
Balance at the end ofthe period/quarter

Total

Treasury stock (at cost)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITV

Quarters ended .Vtircli 31

2019 2018

2.8I5,39Z7I4 2.708,500,714

P  703,848.179 P  677,125,179

P  703,848.179 P  677,125,179

P  4Z021,502 P  35,617,951

P  42.021,502 P  35,617.951

P  (53,945,929) P  (53,945,929)
15,747,863 17,296.833
Z3D4,360 Z367.667
1,751,984 Z163,118

(7,363,263) (Z7I3,I29)
27,544,449

-

(15,810,752) 7,761,901
(1.647.5701 (15.490.6321

P  (17,458,322) P  (7,728,731)

P  714^450,822 P  670,182,958
(3,240,0001 (3.240.0C01

P  711,210.822 P  666,9423)58



S CI iEDULE 0 F ACCO KIX :iCIVA B LIsS

as ofMarch31,2019

Receivable fromslockholders

Receivable from Panphil Aqua
Receivable from Basic CSR foundation

Receivable from associates

Accrued Interest Receivable

Advances to Officers & Enployees
Others

1> 1,718,887

25.123.440

394,753

7,624,549

510,571

190,678

1,190,508

Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts
P 36,753386

(2,142,006)

P 34,611380

BASIC ENEHGYCORPORATION AND SL'BSIDIARIES
ACINGOFACCOlPfrS RBCnVABLE
M orM>rcb3l,20I9

ToW 1 Malb 2-3 awIlls 4-6 emllis
7 Moatlis (0

I Ymt
1  1-2 Year* 3-S Years

5 Years Mid

above

Paslthi«

aceouats 6

IMbh lai

TRADERGCIIVABLES

1)
2)

3)

P
•

. .

- -

: -

ToUl IrAde rccciwUes

Less Allowsnce fordoubtfultccountt
P

-
-

-
- - - ■

Net Irtde reedsables

NON-TRADE RECEZVABUES
1) Receivibles IromsiocUtoldeis
2) Receivebles fromPenphd Aqua
3) Receivables TromBasicCSRFoufidation

4) Receivabies from associate

5) Accrued titeresl receivable

6) Advances to oflicen/empbyees
7) Others

P

P  1.718.887

23.123.440

394.753

7.624.349

510.371

190.678

1.190.309

3,428

3.428

4.803,010

191.217

190,678

6.8S7

2S.I2a0II

6.473

2;B21.S)9

31181

319.334

11.887

384.830

1.711887

-

Total aoe-trade recdvaUn

Less: AlkxMince for doubtilil accounts
P 36,753,387

ai42.006)

3,198,618 28606.207 331641 63626 863668 101699 2,188,428

Net B«e-tradc receivable*

Ntl KhmVARI Ft

P 34,611,380

P 34,6IIJ80

5,198618

S.I986I8

28606,207

28606.207

331641

331641

63626

63626

863668

863668

101699

101699

46622

46622

-



UAaic COKPOKATION ANDSDPSIDIARIliS
SCHEDULLOr ACX:OIJN'I?i PAVABIJCANI) ACX:RIJICI> IiXPIlNSICS
asofMarcIi3l,20I9

Accojed Expense Payablcs

SSS/Philheallh/HDMF/UIR Payables
Others

P 5.M8.250

87.027

3,766 441

P 9,001,718

n

(  >



Paii I - Financial Inforniatioii

Pliilil),,inc Financial Reporting Slandanls. Notes to liiteri.n Financial Statcincnts:
(SFC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2013)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group applied for the first-time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1,20)8.

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the accounting
w ere a mo to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. barly application of the amendments is permitted.

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

•  PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Ins^uments. Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard

new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge

rnmniiic!!^ c appH^tioH is required but providing comparative information is not
.. accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with

some limited exceptions. ^ rr r r

Mrticutriv™ ^ in accounting policies,particularly on the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39's
mcurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach, but did not

nrevilTit T '"rT' financial statements. Also, the Group's financial assets
amnifi^ed "nder PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at.  , , •'? fPFRS 9, while the investments in debt securities and equity securitiesp  lously classified as available-for-sale (APS) financial assets under PAS 39 are classified as

fla^-fi r' ti' ^''opfion of PFRS 9 did not result to changes in the"'■^fnnt of financial liabilities. The Group has provided other required
information in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 witli PFRS 4

hisInimenK ulfToon^ms arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
nlr^uce tir r'' ® ■ntplemeiiting the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments

PPR S 0 d f insurance contracts: a temporary excmplion from applying
hei.inn!,r approacli. The lemporaiy exemption is first applied for reporting periods
PFRS 9 and imilv Ih' f ' j 2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first applies1 1 KS 9 and apply that approach rciro.spcctivcly lo financial assets designated on transition to PFRS



.... V .<■. wi M«iuIt'll tviivii my i*r v.

The amendmenls were no( applicable lo Ihe Groirp since none ol'lhc enlilies williin Ihc Group luivc
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

PFRS 15, Revenuefrom Conlracis with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new nve-step model that applies to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

he principles m PFRS IS provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing

PFRS 15 supersedes PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related Interpretations
and It applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the
scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arjsmg from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount tl.al
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods

M  ̂'^"dard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking intocon^deration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to
^n^cts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental co stsof obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. The Group adopted

15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption.
pe Group undertook an analysis of the impact of the new revenue standard based on a review of
the contractual terms of its management services agreement and assessed that the amount and timi jig
of revenue recognized under PFRS 15 is the same as that under PAS 18.
Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle) v oii oi annual

The amendments clarify that an entify that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
in '^'=''8"'"°" o" an investment-by-investment basis, to measure itsnvestaents m associates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarifythat If an entity that is not itself an investment entify has an interest in an associate or joint venture
value measurement applied by that investment entify associate or joint venture to the investment
entity ass^ate s or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
rach investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later ofthe date on which (a) the investment
an^n^eTtmrt! recognized; (b) the assoeiate or joint venture becomesinvestment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parentThe amendments should be applied retrospectively, witli earlier application permitted.

stat^emfms.'°" amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial
Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

an entity should transfer property, including property under
ZnL""; !? " property. The amendments state that a
nroncrtv „d .l m"" '!'■= Property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investmentproperty and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for



(

.u Ill use nun occur on or niicr the hcginning ofthc nnmial rcporl ing
period in which the cnlKy first applies the aiiicndinenls. Kcfrospcclivc application is only pcrmil led
If this IS possible without the use ofhindsighl.

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the claridcations issued, the adoption of these
amendments did not have any significant cfTecl on its consolidated financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset expense or income (or part of it) on the dereeognition of a nonmonetary asset
or nonmonetary habi ity relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on
which an entity initmlly recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. Entities
may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the
interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope tJiat arc initially
recogniKd on or af^er the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of these
interpretations did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Standards Issued but not vet Effective

doe^ntTvnprffhTfh'' f Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its

they become eff^ttve ^ '"'ends to adopt the following pronouncements when

Effective Beginning on or after January I, 2019

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

^  instalments with negative compensation prepayment
^ntitv ch II aniortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An
7010 p , . PP ̂  amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2019. Earlier application IS permitted. o o j »

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no debt
instrument with negative compensation prepayment feature.

PFRS \ 6, Leases

"r P""'='P'®® f®"" recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure ofeases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar

exeLtZ" fn recognition
leasTs t e Icaa T 'i ° 'low-value' assets (e.g.. personal computers) and short-term
lessee will reo "°'"'"enccment date of a lease, a
renresentinoTh w," liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
Lcs^is wm! he during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-usc asset).
tor^ialTo exneT' , " rccognizc the interest expense on the lease liability and thedcprccicition expense on the riglit-of-use n.sscl



,  uic luuMiiiy upon iiic occurrence <>i ccnniii cvenls(e^g., a change in the lease term, a change in lulurc lease payments resulting IVoni a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amoxml
oJ the remeasuremenl of the lca.se linhilily as an adjustment to the righl-of-usc a.sscl.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle a?; in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS I 7.

Early aplication is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

•  Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity sh all
app y these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or affer Januaiy 1,2019 Earl ier
application is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial
statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
cope o PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties

associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

•  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities ^

'  rfefcrmines tnxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused taxcredits and tax rates ,
*  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other unrertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty should be followed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting tills interpretation.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

o Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinrnions, and PFRS II, Joint Arrangements
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation



•  ; I I - - — 1. i^Miiii/iMiii iMii tiviiicvcii 111 s>ui^c:>, inuiuci iiij^
remeasiiring priivionsly held inlerests in ihe asscl.s and liabilities of liic joint operation at fair
value. In doing so, the acquirer rcmcasurcs its entire previously held interest in the joint
operation.

A party that participates in, but docs not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtnin
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation arc not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January I,
2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1,2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments are currently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future
transactions.

o Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly
to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners.
Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past
transactions or events.

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments are not relevant to the
Group because dividends declared by the Group do not give rise to tax obligations under the
current tax laws.

o Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of genera! borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing co.sts incurred on or after the beginning of
the ̂ nual reporting period in which die entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing die impact of the adoption of these amendments.
Effective Beginning on or after January 1, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify die minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant's aliiiity to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition

amendments also add guidance to assess whethei- an acquired process is substantive
and add dlustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
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These amendments will apply to future business combinations of the Group.

•  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation oj Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting PolicJes,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition ofMalerial

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used acr<iss
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the exist ing
requirements rather than to signifieantly impact an entity's materiality judgements.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

Effective Beginning on or after January /, 2021

•  PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4. Tliis
new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts
(i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely
bas^ on ̂ andfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the
general model, supplemented by:

A  specific adaptation for contracts vrith direct participation features
(the variable fee approach)
A simplified appfoach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2021, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

Deferred Effectivity

•  Aniendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidi^ that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
c  t at a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale
or contribution of assets that does not constitute , a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in tlie associate or joint venture.

On Januaiy 13,2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective date
ot Januaiy 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board
completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
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Presentation of Consolidalcd l-'in;iiici;il S(;ilcnicnts
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements; a
statement displaying components of proHl or loss (consolidated statement of income) and a second
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other comprehensive inco-me
(OCI, consolidated statement of comprehensive income).

Current versus Noncurrent Classifieatinn

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is;

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle*
•  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period; or
♦  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
•  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

ft IS due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the financial reporting period- or
fi, no ""co"<J'tional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months afterthe end of the financial reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial assets at FVOCI, AFS financial assets and investment properties, at fair
value at each end ofthe reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer tlie liability takes place eiUier;

•  in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
rr/ it to anothermarket participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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minimizing the use of unobscrvabic inputs.

All assets and liabilities for whicli tair value is measured or disclosed in the nnanclal slatenienis are
categorized within the fair value iiierarehy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpnl tha i is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

•  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
•  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair va lue

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
•  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

T)ie fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business at the end of the financial
reporting period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include comparison to similar investments for which market observable
prices exist and discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis or other valuation models.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level in the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

An analysis of the fair values of financial assets at FVOCI and investment properties and further details
as to how they are measured are provided in Note 26.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

Financial Instruments fPrior to Adoption of PFRS 91

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (i.e.,
the date that the Parent Company commits to purchase or sell the a.sset).

Initia/Recognition and Measurement. The Group determines the classification of financial instruments
at imtial recognition and where allowed and appropriate, rc-cvaluates this designation at every end of
the financial reporting period.
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instruments at fair value through profit or loss (rVPI>).

•  Financial Assets. Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classilied into the following
categories; financial assets at FVP]., loans and receivables, held-to-maturily (HTM) investments,
and availabie-for-salc (AFS) financial assets or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.

•  Financial Liabilities. Also under PAS 39, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
'^^"vatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective liedge, or as other financial

iiabihties. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component ̂ at is a financial liability, are reported as expenses or income. Distributions to holders
of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income
tax benefits.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

•  L.oans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivables. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured in the
consolidated statement of financial position at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less any provision for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the loans
and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

I^ans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
tinanmal reporting date or within the Parent Company's operating cycle. Otherwise, these are
classified as noncurrent assets.

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets include investments in equity and debt securities,
^uity mvesliuenls classified as AFS financial assets are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designat^ at FVPL. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized pins or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
Net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets" account until the investment

IS derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified
to consolidated statement of income and removed from OCI.

The Group evaluated its AFS financial assets whether tlie ability and intention to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
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Reclassificalioii to loans and receivables is perniitlcd when the rinancial asscls mccl Ihc donnilion
of loans and rcccivahlos and the Group has ilic inlenl and ability to hold these assets for Ihc
foreseeable luture or until maturity. Reclassifieation to tlie I I'l'M category is permitted only when
the entity has the ability and intention to hold the nnancia! asset accordingly.

For a financial asset rcclassified out of the AFS financial assets category, any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to the consolidated statement of income
over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR method. Any difference between the new
amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset
using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to consolidated statement of income.

•  Other Financial Liabilities. Issued financial instruments or their components which are not
designated as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the
contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as a whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on the issue and fees that ̂ e an integral part of the EIR. Other financial liabilities are classified as
current liabilities when it is expected to be settled within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at
least 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization shall be included in
Other income (charges) - net" in the consolidated statement of income.

Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities if settlement is to be made within 12
months from the financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

Impairment of Financial Assets fPrior to Adoption of PFRS 91
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whetlier there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred Moss event'), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of tlie financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficult}', default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whcUier objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial a.sscts that are not individually significant. If the
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estimation of future cash flows for groups ofsucii assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to
pay ail amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for wliich an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recogni zed
are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has b<jen
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash Hows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial assets' original EIR.

carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
t e OSS IS recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
Interest income" in the consolidated statement of income.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring er the iinpairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss IS recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount
o  e receiva e is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired receivables are
derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Fmancial Assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that a fmancial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination of what is
significant^ or prolonged" requires judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more and
prolonged ^ greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. Where there is evidence of

impairment the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
air va ue, ess any impairment los.s on that financial asset previously recognized in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is removed from OCI and recognized in consolidated statement of
income.

Inipaimient losses on equity investments are not reversed through consolidated statement of income
while increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the
s^e criteria as financial assets earned at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original
effective interest rate on the reduced canying amount of the asset and is recorded as a component of
Interest income account in the consolidated statement of income. If, subsequently, the fair value of
a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment oss was recognized in consolidated statement of income, tJic impairment loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of income.



A financial instrumenl is any contracl thai gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a llnancial
liability or equity inslrument oranolher entity.

Financial hislninwnts: Financial Assds

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. FVOCI, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers lo how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or botli.

,  - Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement. Por purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

■  Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial ̂ sets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

■  F inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(  ) - the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

(  payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using tlie effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized, modified or impaired.

financial assete at amortized cost includes "Cash and cash equivalents", "Receivables"
and Refundable deposits" in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (Debt Instruments). The Group measures debt instruments
at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and
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r-or debt instruments at fair value Ihroiii-h OCI, interest Income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income while foreign exchange revaluation and impairnieiil losses or reversals are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprclicnsive income and computed in the same maiimer
as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in
OU. Upon derecognition. the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profi t or

hisLmernf' OCI includes investments in quoted debt

OC> Instruments). Upon initial recognition, the Group
throu!b tic? h ^ "f investments as equity instruments designated at fair va^lue
PrZL^^ d^iinition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments-
instament basl^ is determined on an instrument-by-

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized

e^eot wheX C '"T "8"^' ofpayment has been estab^hcd,
Lr, • Group benefits from such proceeds as a recoveiy of part of the cost of the financial
OCI ;)e Tot sL^tr instruments designated at fair value throughUCJ are not subject to impairment assessment.

«tego™."^ irrevocably its investments in unquoted equity securities under this

Impairment of Financial Assets, The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLA)

Gr™™cr?t flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
will iLlndrr h fl ^ approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows
the cTntatTte^r ' enhancements that are integral to
ECLs are reeo^iz^ in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
rfeurjents!^ ," g"i'ion. ECLs are provided for credit losses that res^t from
t twcTther^hlrh/"'' X ^ '^^^dit exposures
irreou red for crtfir l risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
ofrerfatllKa fitimfE^^^^^^^^^ '""-8
Financial Instruments: Financial Liabilities

"irial recognition, aslinanc al liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and borrowings pavables or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

navaWernl'of d!mTl "'"iiTfif" borrowings andpayaoies, not of directly attributable transaction costs.

'^DivfoZk'Lvstr-^' mclude "Accounts payable and accrued expenses", "Loan payable"
by mlrnr accZtg standafo:;.
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cost using the lilR method. Gains and lossc.s arc recognized in profit or lo.ss when the liabilities are
dereccgnizcd a.s well as through the 1-IR amortization process.

Amortized co.st is caiculiUed by taking into account any di.scounl or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part o( the CiR. The EIR amorlizjilion is included as finance costs under the
interest expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dcrecognition ofFinancial Assets and Financial Liabilities tPrior to Adoption of PFRS 91

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

•  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
•  the Group retains the right to receive cash flow from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay

them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; or
•  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all tlie risks and rewards of the
^set, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

^  the asset, but has transfenred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
I  ) nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the

asset IS recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the
case of a wntten put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value
of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

'  ) Pjnancial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability isdischarged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
diflercnt terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modificatiOT is treated as a dcrecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and Uie difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

Offsetting ofFinancial Instruments
Financial assets and finaricial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability sinuiltaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of fmancial position.
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power lo participate in the financial and operaling policy decisions oflhc invcslcc, btil is nol coniro I or
joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining signiUcanl innuence are similar lo those neccssaiy to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group s investments in its associates arc accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost. The carry ing
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes In the Group's share of net assets of the
associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included In the carrying
amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group's share of tlie results of operations of the
associates. Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the
Group s oAer comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognizes the loss in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before they are utilized.
This account comprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items. The prepaid
rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items are apportioned over the period covered by the
payment and charged to the appropriate accounts in consolidated statement of income when incurred.
Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than 12 months after the reporting period are
classified as current assets otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable. When VAT from sales of services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases
of goods or se^ices (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statement of

purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position lo the extent of the recoverable amount.

Investment Propertie.s
Investment properties, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Group, are measured initially at cost,
inc iiding transaction costs. Subsequent lo initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
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in which they arise.

Inveslmenl propcrlies me derceognizcd when cilher Ihcy have been disposed ofor when the invcsim enl
property is pcrmancnlly withdiawn from use and no fuliirc economic bcncill is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses from dcrccognilion of an investment properly arc recognized in
consolidated statement of income in tlie year of retirement or disposal.

Propertv and Eouinmcnt

Property and equipment, other than office condominium, are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.

Office condominium is carried at revalued amount less depreciation and any impairment in value
charged subsequent to the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the "Revaluation increment in office condominium" account
in the equity secn'oii of the consolidated statement of financial position, net of the related deferred
income tax liability. An annual transfer from the "Revaluation increment in office condominium"
account to retained earnings is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued
canymg amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost. Additionally,
accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation
increment relating to the particular asset sold is transferred to retained earnings.

The initial costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
costs, are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year in which costs are incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional
cost of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major overhaul costs that are capitalized as

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter oftheir estimated
useful lives, typically the period until the next major maintenance or inspection.

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the related assets'
cost to their estimated useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation for each category are based on the
roilowmg useful lives of related assets:

Number of Years
Machinery and equipment 10
Transportation equipment 5
Building and building improvements 15
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3
Office condominium 15

The assets' estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that
these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and
equipment. r r j
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An Item of property and equipmeni is dcrccogni/xd upon disposal or wlicn no Culuro economic Ircnel Us
are expected to ar.se from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on dcrccognition of
e asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount orHic

Item) IS included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the item is derccognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

Deferred Exploration r!n«^g
All exploration and evaluation costs incurred in conneetion with the participation of the Group in the
determina ion of technical feasibility and assessment of commercial viability of an identified rLu roe
are capitalized and accounted for under the "successful efforts method" [determined on the basis of

materfar^d I d ^ or Geophysical Survey and Exploration Contract], These costs includematerials and fuel used, surveying costs, drilling costs and payments made to contractors.

fvalHVafe'r"®y'i'° ^^sociated with an exploration andevaluation ̂ e eapitah^d and amortized at tlie start of commercial operations. All such capitalized

impairent atTea'.^ review, as well as review for indicators of
vT,!.T r a ® 'continued intent to develop or otherwise extract
coste are witten-off, SCs are considered permanently abandoned if the SCs have expired and/or if there
are no definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

there is an indication

Ix! tfor P^°j«=' development costs may be impaired. If any indicationexists, or when m annual impairment testing for such items is required, the Group makes an estimate

value LTrsrto Lrrd"'; ̂"l higher of an asset's or CGU's fair
d^s not irrat h o \ " ''«t®™i"ed for an individual item, unless such item
oS ® ,h ' independent of those from other assets or group of asse"
and i?writtrdown toT'"® """Hf recoverable amount, such item is considered impaired
to b™rmed future cash flows
T  ̂ discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thatreflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or

Inves/ment Properties Property and Equipmeni and Other Noncurrent Assets. The Group assesses at
each reporting period whether there is an indication that an asset may be impair^ 'if r su^^
cash generafing u^h ̂ 001 amounts, the assets or
rê vfrabTfiTnu^^ recoverable amounts. The estimated
Tar^ss coTto sell I r " ? r TTre fair
less theTostrof disnosaV the sale of an asset in an arm's-length tmnsaction
to ̂  se ferl the no , " c of estimated future cash flows expected
vairin us^ e tlmTilTt " "'f o'"'' assessing
A- ♦ ' . future cash flows are discounted to their present value usine a nre tax
to the" asscf PoVan'assTto "t'd"'"'"'"' "nd the risks specific
recoverable amounfl H t 7? "u independent cash inflows, the estimatedccoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in tlie consolidated statement of income in those expense
categories consistent will, the function of die impaired asset. P
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recoveiable aniounl is eslimalcd. A previously rccogni/cd impniniicnt loss is reversed by a crcdi I lo
current operations (unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in which case the reversal of the
nnpairnient loss is credited to the revaluation inerenicnt oflhe same asset) lo the extent that it does not
restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have been determined (net of any
accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Swell
reversal is recognized in consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such reversal, the amortizat ion
charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised canying amount, less any rcsid ual
value, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets. The Group provides provision for impairment losses on
nonfinancial prepayments and other current assets when they can no longer be realized. The amou nls
and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different Judgments or
utilized different estimates. An increase in provision for impairment losses would increase recorded
expenses and decrease prepayments and other current assets.

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication tliat
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The recovery is
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset
due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the canying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss
been recognized for that asset in prior years.

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the
Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and
number of shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Paid-in Capital. When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds
and the par value is credited to the "Additional paid-in capital" account. When shares are issued for a
consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received
In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle the liability of the Group, the shares shall be measured
either at the fair value ofthe shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably
deteimmable. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are charged
to this account.

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription. This pertains to the amount of cash and advances from
stockholders as payment for future issuance of stocks. The Group classifies a deposit for future stock
subscription as an equity instrument if it satisfies all of the following elements:

•  Ae unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares
indicated in the contract;
there is BOD approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(tor which a deposit was received by the corporation);

•  there is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase; and
•  the application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present, the deposit for future stock subscription shall be
recognized as a liability.
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not recognized in the consolidated slalerncnl ol income for the year in accordance willi PI-'RS.

Retained EarniTi}*s. The amount included in retained earnings includes cumiilalive protll or loss
attributable to tiic Parent Company^s stockholders and reduced by dividends. Dividends are recogni y.cd
as a liability and deducted from equity when they arc approved by the Parent Company's BOD.
Dividends for the period that are approved after the end of the financial reporting date arc dealt willi as
an event after the financial reporting period. Retained earnings may also include the effect of changes
in accounting policy as may be required by the accounting standard's transitional provisions.

Basic/Diluted Loss per Share

Basic Loss per Share. Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits
during the year.

Diluted Loss per Share. Diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss
atfributabie to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for any stock dividends declared during the year plus weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive ordinary
shares into ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares.

Revenue Recognition
The Group recognizes revenue when it satisHes an identified performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is considered to be transferred when the
customer obtains control. The Group determines, at contract inception, whether it will transfer control
of a promised good or service over time. If the Group does not satisfy a performance obligation over
time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the custoiner, generally on delivery of the goods. Prior to 2018, revenue is recognized to the extent
that it IS probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliablv
measured. ^

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting
as a principal or an agent.

Interest Income. Interest income from bank deposits is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest rate method.

Dividend Income. Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Other Income Other income, which normally includes sale of property and equipment, is recognized
as revenue when earned and received.

Expenses

Expenses are decrees in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
occu^ences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to

Expenses are generally recognized when the services are used or the expense arises
while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial reporting date.

Retirement Benefits

The net retirement benefits liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value ofthe retirement benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any).



in future contributions to the plan. '

The cost of providing benefits under the retirement benefit plans is acliiarinlly determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Retirement benefit costs comprise the following;
•  Service cost

•  Net interest on Uie net retirement benefit liability or asset
•  Remeasuremenls of net retirement benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-rout ine
settlements are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income. Past service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
retirement benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net retirement benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in consolidated
statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on retirement benefit liability) are recognized
imm^iately in OCI in the period in which tliey arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Remeasurements recognized in OCI after the initial adoption of Revised
PAS 19, Employee Benefits^ are not closed to retained earnings account. These are retained in OCI until
full settlement of the liability.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the
Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
retirement benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting retirement benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

The Group s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a retirement
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for tlie current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to tlic taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount arc those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the financial reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity is recognized in equity and not in tlie consolidated statement of income. Management
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Deferred Income Tux. Deferred income Iii,\ is provided, using Ihc balance shcel linbilily nielliod, on nil
temporary differences at the nnancial reponing dale belwccn Ihc lax bases of assets and liabililies iind
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recogniaed
for all taxable temporary differences, except:

•  where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the lime of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss;

•  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests m joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporaiy differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Defe^ed income tax assets are recognized for ail deductible temporaiy differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular
corporate income to (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO), to the extent that it
IS probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized
except: '

• where the defe^ed income to asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of aii asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
me time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss;
in respect of deductible teinporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
associates interests in joint ventures, deferred income to assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporaiy differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income to assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income to assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax
assets ̂ e reasse^ed at each financial reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow the deferred income tax assets
to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the to rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rate and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the financial reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred to liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax^sets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Related Party Transactions

Tr^sactions wi^ related parties are accounted for based on the nature and substance of the agreement,
and financial effects are included in the appropriate asset, liability, income and expense accounts.

Segment Infonnatinn

The Group considers investment holding and gcoUiermal energy projects as its primaiy activities. The
oroup has no geographical segmentation as the Group's operating business segments are neither
organized nor managed by geographical segment.
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of the transaction. Monetary a.s.sct.s and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rale of exchange ruling at the end of tlie Irnancial reporting period.
Nonmonetary item.s that are niea.surcd in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transhilcd
using the exchange rates prevailing a.s at the date of the initial transactions, Nonmonetary items
measured at the fair value In a (oreign currency arc translated using the exchange rates at the date wlicn
the fair value is determined. All differences arc taken to "Other income - net" in the consolidated
statement of income under "Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) - net" account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits'is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in tlie Group's consolidated financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

Signiflcant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial
statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions
used m arriving at those judgments and estimates to change. The effects of the changes will be reflected
in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Judgments

In the process of applying ̂ e Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on amounts
recogni2icd in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of the Group's Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the
underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency has been determined to be the
Philippine Peso. It is the currency that mainly influences the operations of the Group.

Determination of Significant Influence over an Investee Company. The Group has 15% interest each in

D  which is below the 20% tlireshold where significant influence is presumed underPAS 28. The Group considers its 15% investments each in VEPC and VINTER as investments in
associates as it concluded that it has significant influence over the operating and financial policies of its
investments in associates due to the following:



"  piirticipalion in poiicy-makiiig processes, including parlicipalion in decisions about dividends ;ind
other distributions; and

■  m«iterial transactions between the investor and investce.

Classification of Investment Property. Tlie (jioup classifies its land as investment propei ly or
owner-occupied property based on its current intentions where it will be used. When the land is held
for capital appreciation or when management is still undecided as to its future use, it is classified as
investment property. The land which is held for rent are classified as investment property.

Capitalization of Exploration and Evaluation Costs. Careful judgment of management is applied wlaen
deciding whether the recognitioti requirements for exploration and evaluation assets relating to the
Group s exploration projects have been met. Capitalization of these costs is based, to a certain extent,
on management s judgment of tlie degree to which the expenditure may be associated with finding
specific geothermal reserve. This is necessary as the economic success of the exploration is uncertain
and may be subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments are based on the
information available at end of each reporting period.

Contractual Cash Flows Assessment (Applicable upon adoption of PFRS 9). Beginning Januaiy 1,
2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms to identify whether the
instrument is consistent with the concept of SPPI.

Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of
principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment
and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the
period for which the interest rate is set.
In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
con^actual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In
such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Evaluation of Business Model in Managing Financial Instruments (Applicable upon adoption of
PFRS 9). Beginning Januaiy 1, 2018, the Group determines its business model at the level that best
reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Group's
business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

•  How the performance ofthe business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

•  The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and

•  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group's
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case'
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that

IS dilfcreni from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.



TTie estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uovisions to accounling
estimates are recognized in the period in which the cslininles are revised if the revision.s affect only *hal
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fulurc
periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unceHainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
asset and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below;

Estimation of Allowance for Impairment of Receivables. The Group reviews its receivables at each
reporting date to assess the adequacy of the allowance for impairment. In particular, Judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on factors such as, but not limi led
to, the length of the Group's relationship with the customer, customer's payment behavior and otiier
known market factors.

Estimation of Provision for Expected Credit Losses (Vpon Adoption ofPFRS 9). The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
each counterparty.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
eveiy reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forec^t economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the
future. The infonnation about the ECL on the Group's receivables is disclosed in Note 27.

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The defennination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" requires
judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more of the cost and "prolonged" as greater than
12 months for quoted equity securities.

Revaluation of Office Condominium and Investment Properties. The Group carries its investment
properties at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income
and caries its office condominium at revalued amount with changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group engaged an external appraiser to assess the fair
value of its investment properties as at December 31, 2018.

For investment properties, a valuation metliodology based on market approach was used, which is a
comparative approach ̂ at considers the sales of similar or substitute assets and related market data and
establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison. In addition, it measures the office
condominium at revalued amount, with changes in fair value being recognized in OCI. The market
approach was used for the office condominium, which provides an indication of value by comparing
the subject asset with identical or similar assets for which price information is available.

Impairment of Property and Equipmeut. The Group assesses impaimient on property and equipment
recorded at cost whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying amount of these
assets may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an



•  significanl iindcrpcrformance relative to expected historical or projected riittire operating ro.siilt s;
•  signi/lcaitl elianges in the manner of use of the actpiired assets or the strategy lor {)vcrall business;

and

•  significanl negative indiistiy or economic trends.

As at December 31,2018 and 2017, the Group assessed that there were no impairment indicators on its
property and equipment.

Impairment of Investments in Associate. The Group detertnines whether there is objective evidence that
the investments in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amo unl
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying val ue,
and then recognizes the loss in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment and Write-offofDeferred Exploration Costs. The Group assesses impairment on deferred
exploration costs when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may
exceed its recoverable amount. Until the Group has sufficient data to determine technical feasibility
and commercial viability, deferred charges need not be assessed for impairment.

Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 6,
Explorationfor and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, are as follows:

•  the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the specific area has expired or will expire
in the near future and is not expected to be renewed;

•  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned;

•  exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discovery
of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the entity has decided to discontinue
such activities in the specific area; and

•  sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from
successful development or by sale.

For deferred exploration costs, impairment is recognized when a SC where the Group has participating
interest is permanently abandoned. Future events could cause the Group to conclude that these assets
are impaired.

Estimation of Retirement Benefits. The cost of defined benefit pension plan as well as the present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions which include the determination of the discount rates, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government
bonds ̂ at are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is modified
accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements.

Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all
temporary deductible differences to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Management has
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- 1* • • —• •assets related to the provision for impairment loss and some portion ofNOLCO and MCIT.

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties. The best evidence of fair value is current pri ccs
in an active market for similar lease and other contracts, in the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount williin a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the
Group considers information from variety of sources including:

•  current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

•  recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

•  discounted cash flow (DCF) projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.
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SECURITIES AND EXC IIAN(;E COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(a) - 17(b)(2) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended; June 30, 2019

2. Commission Identification No.: 168063

3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 000-438-702-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction ol incorporation or organization: Philippines

6. industry Classification Code: | | (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office:?'" Floor, Basic Petroleum Building, C. Palanca Street,
Legaspi Village, Makati City, Philippines

Postal Code: 1229

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code: +63 2 817 8596 to 98

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report: N/A

10.Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common stock
outstanding and amount of debt outstanding

Common Shares 2.815,392,714

Listed with PSE 2,603,684,382

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Slock Exchange?

Yes[X] No[ ]

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule ll(a)-l thereunder, and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [X] No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes[X] No[ ]
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ATTAC HMI NT "A"

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the period ended June 30, 2019

1. The following unaudited Financial Slateinents are contained In this report:

1.1 Slalcments of income and Retained learnings for the Period Ended June 30, 2019 and June 30,
2018;

1.2 Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2019 and December 31.2018;
1.3 Statements of Cash Flows for the Period ijided June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018;
1.4 Statements of Changes in Stockholder.s" Equitv for the Period ended June 30. 2019 and June

30,2018.

2. Discussion on Financial Condition for the Period December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019.
A. Key Performance Indicators

Management considers the following as key performance indicators of the company: Return on
Investment (ROI), Profit Margin, Performance of Committed Work Programs, Current Ratio and
Asset Turnover.

The following table shows the Top 5 performance indicators for the past three interim periods:

KE\' PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2nd Qtr2019 2nd Qtr 2018 2nd Qtr 2017

Return on Investments (ROI)

(Net Income / Ave. Stockholders' Equity)
-4.72% -6.43% -3.00%

Profit Margin

(Net Income / Net Revenue)
-299.55% -4514.95% -381.89%

Investment in Projects (Non-Petroleum)

as a % of Total Assets
22.78% 38.09% 39.52%

Investment in Wells & Other Facilities

as a % of Total Assets
15.66% 17.11% 17.42%

Current Ratio

(Current Asset / Current Liabilities)
1238:1 3.44:1 14.09:1

Asset Turnover

(Net revenue / Ave. Total Assets)
1.47% 0.13% 0.83%

Solvency Ratios

Debt to Equity Ratio 5.32% 13.00% 3.38%

Asset to Equity Ratio 103.97% 111.57% 94.84%

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio -3614.94% N/A N/A

ROI (Net Income / Average Stockholders' Equity) measures the profitability of stockholders'
investment. Profit Margin (Net Income / Net Revenue) measures the net income produced by each
peso of revenue. Investment in Projects as a % of Assets, measures how much the company invested
in its committed work programs. Current Ratio (Current Assets / Current Liabilities) measures the
short-term debt-paying ability of the company. Asset Turnover (Net Revenue / Average Total
Assets) measures how efficiently assets are used to produce profit.



ROI was -4.72% for the 2"** quarter of 2019. -6.43% for the 2"*' quarter of 2018, and -3.00% for the
2"^ quarter of 2017. The negative rates in 2017.2018 and 2019 were due to the losses booked during
those quarters.

Profit Margin was -299.55% for the 2"'' quarter of 2019, -4,514.95% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018, and
-381.89% for the 2'"^ quarter of 2017. The negative rates in 2016. 2017 and 2018 were due to the
losses booked during those quarters.

Investment in Projects (Mon-Petroleum) as a % of Total Assets decreased to 22.78% for the 2"''
quarter of 2019 from 38.09% for the 2"^^ quarter of 2018 which also decreased from 39.52% for the
2"'' quarter of 2017. The decrease in the 2019 was primarily due to the sale of an investment property
and the decrease in 2018 was due to the increa.se in total assets.

Investment in Wells & Other Facilities as a % of Total Assets decreased from 17.42% for the 2'"*

quarter of 2017 to 17.11% for the 2'"' quarter ol' 2018 and further decreased to 15.66% for the 2'"'
quarter of 2019. The decrease in rate from 2018 to 2019 was due to the decrease in investment and
increase in total assets. The decrease in rate from 2017 to 2018 was due decreases to both

investments and total assets.

Current Ratio was 12.38:1 forthe 2'"^ quarterof2019,3.44:1 forthe 2'"^quarterof2()!8, and 14.09:1
for the 2"^^ quarter of2017. The increase in ratio from 2018 to 2019 was due to the decrease in current
liabilities. The decrease in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increaso^n current liabilities.

Asset Turnover was 1.47% for the 2'"' quarter of 2019, 0.13% for the 2"'^ quarter of 2018. and 0.83%
for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in asset turnover from 2018 to 2019 is due to the increase
in revenue for 2019. The decrease in asset turnover from 2017 to 2018 is due to the decrease in

revenue and increase in total assets.

Debt to Equity Ratio was 5.32% for the 2'"' quarter of 2019, 13.00% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018. and
3.38% for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increases
in total liabilities and decreased in equity and decrease in ratio from 2018 to 2019 was due to the
decrease in total liabilities and increase in equit).

Asset to Equity Ratio was 103.97% for the 2'"^ quarter of 2019. 111.57% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018,
and 94.84% for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the
increase in total assets while equity decreased. The decrease in ratio from 2018 to 2019 was due to
the increase in equity.

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio was -3.614.94% for the 2"'^ quarter of 2019, 27.39% for the 2'"' quarter
of 2018 and none for the P' quarter of 2017. The decrease in ratio in 2019 was primarily due to the
partial settlement the loan payable as well as the increase in earnings for the quarter.

B. Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition as of June 30,2019

For the quarter ending June 30, 2019, the company recorded total revenue of PhplO.99 million and
total cost and expenses of Php43.93 million resulting to a net loss of Php32.93 million with minority
interest recorded at PhpO.17 million for a net loss net of minority interests of Php33.10 million.

Total revenue for the 2"^^ quarter of2019 of Php2.47 million was primarily from management service
fees amounting to Phpl .03 million, unrealized foreign exchange gain of PhpO.46 million and interest
income amounting to PhpO.98 million.

Cost and expenses for the 2"^ quarter of 2019 amounting to Php33.88 million were from general and
administrative expenses amounting to Phpl4.85 million, provision for impairment loss of Phpl 2.58
million, share in net loss of associates amounting to Php 6.24 million and interest expense amounting



ROI was -4.72% for the 2'"' quarter of 2019, -6.43% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018, and -3.00% for the
2"^* quarter of 2017. 1'he negative rates in 2017,2018 and 2019 were due to the losses booked during
those quarters.

Profit Margin was -299.55% for the 2""^ quarter of 2019. -4,514.95% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018, and
-381.89% for the 2"*^ quarter of 2017. The negative rales in 20 U>. 2017 and 2018 were due to the
losses booked during those quarters.

Investment in Projects (Non-Petroleum) as a % of Total As.sets decreased to 22.78% for the 2"*^
quarter of 2019 from 38.09% for the 2'"^ quarter of 2018 which also decreased from 39.52% for the
2"*^ quarter of 2017. The decrease in the 2019 was primarily due to the sale of an investment property
and the decrease in 2018 was due to the increase in total assets.

Investment in Wells & Other Facilities as a % of Total Assets decreased from 17.42% for the 2'"'

quarter of 2017 to 17.11% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018 and further decreased to 15.66% for the 2'"'
quarter of 2019. The decrease in rate from 2018 to 2019 was due to the decrease in investment and
increase in total assets. The decrease in rate from 2017 to 2018 was due decreases to both

investments and total assets.

Current Ratio was 12.38:1 for the 2"''quarter of 2019, 3.44:1 for the 2'"'quarter ol" 2018, and 14.09:1
for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in ratio Iroin 2018 to 2019 was due to the decrease in current
liabilities. The decrease in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the increase^n current liabilities.

Asset Turnover was 1.47% for the 2'"' quarter of 2019,0.13% for the 2"'* quarter or20l 8. and 0.83%
for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in asset turnover from 2018 to 2019 is due to the inerciiso
in revenue for 2019. The decrease in as.set turnover from 2017 to 2018 is due to the decrease in

revenue and increase in total assets.

Debt to Equity Ratio was 5.32% for the 2'"' quarter of 2019, 13.00% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018. and
3.38% for the 2"*' quarter of 2017. The increase in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the inerciiscs
in total liabilities and decreased in equity and decrease in ratio from 2018 to 2019 was due tt) the
decrease in total liabilities and increase in equit>.

Asset to Equity Ratio was 103.97% for the 2'"^ quarter of 2019. 1 11.57% for the 2'"' quarter of 2018,
and 94.84% for the 2"'' quarter of 2017. The increase in ratio from 2017 to 2018 was due to the
increase in total assets while equity decreased. The decrease in ratio from 2018 to 2019 was due to
the increase in equity.

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio was -3,614.94% for the 2""^ quarter of 2019. 27.39% for the 2"^ quarter
of 2018 and none for the E' quarter 0(2017. The decrease in ratio in 2019 was primarily due to the
partial settlement the loan payable as well as the increase in earnings for the quarter.

B. Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition as of June 30,2019

For the quarter ending June 30, 2019. the company recorded total revenue of Php 10.99 million and
total cost and expenses of Php43.93 million resulting to a net loss of Php32.93 million with minority
interest recorded at Php0.17 million for a net loss net of minority interests of Php33.IO million.

Total revenue for the 2"^ quarter of 2019 of Php2.47 million was primarily from management service
fees amounting to Php 1.03 million, unrealized foreign exchange gain of PhpO.46 million and interest
income amounting to PhpO.98 million.

Cost and expenses for the 2"^* quarter of 2019 amounting to Php33.88 million were from general and
administrative expenses amounting to Phpl4.85 million, provision for impairment loss of Php 12.58
million, share in net loss of associates amounting to i^hp 6.24 million and interest expense amounting



to Php0.21 million.

Total Assets as of June 30. 2019 stood at Plip706.34 million a decrease of Plip82 million from
Php788.34 million as of December 31. 2018. Current assets, compo.scd mostly of cash and cash
equivalents amounting to Php43 million, receivables amounting to Php35.62 million and refundable
deposits amounting to Plip39.61 million, decreased by Plip66.7() million, as these were used for
operations and for the settlement of the loan payable. Non-current a.ssels. decreased by Phpl5.29
million. The decrease was primarily due to the decreases in deferred charges amounting to Php 12.39
million, investment in associates amounting to Php2.32 million and properly and equipment
amounting to Php2.57 million.

Total Liabilities decreased by Php49.45 million from Php60.l million as of December 31, 20)8 to
PhplO.65 million as of June 30, 2019 primarily due to the settlement of the loan payable.

Total Stockholders* Equity as of June 30, 2019 stood at Php679.39 million a decrease of Php35.34
million from Php714.73 million as of December 31, 2018. This was primarily due to the net loss
booked for the C halfof2019of Php33.1 million and decreased in cumulative translation adjustment
of Php3.66 million.

The interim financial report is in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
same accounting policies and methods of compulation were followed in the interim financial
statements, as compared with the most recent audited financial statements, which are as of December
31,2018.

The interim operations are not characterized by any seasonality or cyclicality. The nature and
number of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income and cash flows are explained in
Attachment "A" on Financial Information for the period ending March 31, 2019.

There are no changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current
financial year or those reported in prior financial years.

On September 8, 2011, the SEC approved the Stock Option Plan (SOP) of the Parent Company
granting directors, members of the advisory board, officers and employees of the Parent Company
options to purchase, at the par value of P0.25 per share, a total of 500,000,000 shares. Out of these
shares, 26.7 million have been paid and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on January 21,2013
which was classified as deposit for future stock subscription as of December 31, 2012. On July 24,
2013, the Philippine Stock Exchange approved for listing the remaining 473,300,000 shares. As of
December 31, 2017, 117.625 million SOP shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

There were no dividends paid (aggregate or per share) separately for ordinary shares and other
shares.

Currently, the company has a single business and geographical segment and therefore, segment
disclosures have not been included.

There are no material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been reflected
in the financial statements for the interim period.

There are no changes in the composition of the company during the interim period, including
business conditions, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments.uuoinwaa cvjiiuiiivjiia, acquiblliuu Uispuss

restructurings, and discontinuing of operations.

Since December 31, 2018, there are no other changes in contingent liabilities or assets and no new
material contingencies, events or transactions that have occurred during the current interim period.



There are no trends, deinaiids, coinnirtrncnts, events or unceiiaintics. known lo nuinagenicnl that
will have a material impact on the company's liquidity.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures and no seasonal aspects that have a
material effect on the financial conditions or results of operations,

There are no known trends, events or unceiiaintics that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revcnues/income from conliiuiing
operations.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that are material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

The causes for any material changes (5% of the relevant accounts or such lower amount, which the
company deems material on the basis of other factors) from period to period which include vertical
and horizontal analysis of any material item, have been presented in this report.

There were no sales of unregistered or exempt securities, nor were there any issuances of securities
constituting an exempt transaction.

Finally, there are no other material information for disclosure during the current interim period,
whether under this report or under SEC Form 17-C.
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.luiic 30.2019

Al 1)1112)

Dcccnilxrr 31,2018

ASS05

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net ofallowance fordoubthil accounts

Refundable deposits

Other current assets

t* 42,996.172

35.622,247

39.610,89.5

13.607.182

P  42.093.952

127.372.857

16.183.71 1

12,888.673

Total Current Assets f  131,836,496 P  198339.193

Noncurrcnt Assets

Investment in associates

Financial assets al FVOCl

Investment properties

Properly and equipment

Deferred charges
Othernoncurrcnt assets

t* 214,816.955

45,763.021

160,879.000

38.464.450

1 10.648.141

3.934.908

f  217.1.36.1.56

44.336.517

160,879.(KM)

41.032.391

123.042.519

3.372,320

Total Noncurrcnt Assets f  574,506,475 P  589,798.903

TOTAL ASS O S r  706342,971 P  788338,096

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUm

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued e>qrenses
Loan Payable

Income tax payable

Dividends payable

f» 9,757,508

888.714

P  8.994.164

50.000,000

216,908

888.714

Total Current Liabilities !» 10,646322 P  60.099.786

Noncurrent Liabilities

Accrued retirement benefits payable
Deterred income laxasset

f» 10.492,331

15,006,350

P  7.867.346

15.()0(>,350

Total Noncurrcnt Lialatities t* 25,498,681 P  22373.696

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1* 36,144,903 P  82,973,482

Minority Interest

Stockholders' Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders ofthe Parent Conpany
Capital stock

Additional Paid-in Capital
Equity reserve on acquisition on non-controlling interest
Revaluation increment in office condominium

Fair value adjustments on financial assets

Remeasurement loss on acquired retirement benefits
Cumulative translation adjustment

Share in cumulative translation adjustment of associates
Retained earnings

f  (9,189311)

f  703,848,179

42,021,502

(53,945,929)

15,747,863

2,609,882

1,751,984

(8,035,696)

27,544,449

(48.914.655)

P  (9361,446)

P  703,848,179

42,021,502

(53.945,929)

15,747.863

1.183,379

1,751,984

(4,374,615)

27,544,449

(15.810,752)

Total Stockholders' Equity
Treasurv slock (at cost)

P  682,627379

(3,240,000)

P  717,966,060

(3,240.000)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDIRS' EOITTV P  679387379 P  714,726,060

TOTAL LIABILITiES AND STOCKHOLDEKS' BOllTV
'

P  706342,971 P  788338,096



BASIC EMiRGV CORPORATION AM) SI i».SII)IAUIhN

C ONSOLIDATED STATEMKS IN ()!• INCOME AM) RErAINIl) lv\RNINC?i

For (he period ended June 30.2019 and Juno 30, 20 IK

For (lie period

cntk'd

30-.)iin-l9

For the qiinrier

ApriUIunc 2019

Fur (he (writKl

ended

30-.lun-IK

For the (|uiirl er

\|>rll-.luiie 2(118

REVtMiES

Interesi. Dividends and Others

Management services fees

Unrealized Foreign Exchange Oain

ReaIi2Ed Foreign E.'chanpe Ciain

P  l.75f>.7(W

5.X.V>.7<)5

3.382.922

17.345

P  977.314

1.033.785

457.639

(3.375)

859.005

87.919

.34().7')0

r  10.993.771 P  2.465J63 P  946,924 P  380,487

COSTS AND EXPENSES

General and administrative ejpenscs
Unrealiaid Foreign Exchange Loss
Interest E.>^ense

Provision for tmpaimient losses

Share in net loss of associates

P  20..3.39.288

880.473

12.580.893

4. 1 19.086

P  14.848.780

209.89(j

12..580.893

6,239.716

33.6.55.289

8.538.728

1..50C>.()76

19.2.3.3.210

7.478.402

779.861

f 43.925,740 P 33,879,285 P 43.700,093 P  27.491,473

LOSS BEEOREINCOMETAX P (32,931,969) P (31,413,922) P (42,753,169) P (27,110.986)

PROVISION FOR INCOMET.AX

Current

Deferred

P P P P

P P P P

NETINCOME

Minority interest

P (32.931,969)

071.935)

P (31,413,922)

(42.412)

P (42,753,169)

58.5.774

P (27,110.986)

737.325

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEaNNINGOF THE

\T:AR/OUARTER

P (33.103,904)

(15.810.752)

P (31,456334)

(17.458322)

P (42,167395)

7.761.90!

P (26373,661)

(8.031.832)

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF THE

m;vr/oiarter
P (48.914.656) P (48,914,656) P (34.405,494) P (34,405,494)

Earnings (Loss) per Share P  (O.OM8) P  (0.0112) P  (0.0156) P  (0.0097)
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l-'or the period ended Juno Jll, 2019 nndJuno JU. 2018

Fur (Ik- |X*riod

ended

3()-.Iur-I9

For the tpiarler

ApriUhiiir 2019

Fur llie period

ended

30-.lun-l8

I'lir the qunrler-

ApriUlitne 2018

CASH MOWS nxoMOPWA i iNXiAcnvrriFX

Net Income (loss)

Adjustment to rceoncile not income to net rnsh pro>ided t]>

operating aolmtics:

Interest income

Dcprectaiion.deplciion and <iiix>nralion

Ii5ss (gain) on salcofpropenv and equipments and

investrtxmis

Fair Value Adjustment on financial assets at FVPL and

Impainnent losses on AFS

Foreign Bchange Oain/Lt)ss

Dividend Income

t* (J2,9JI.969)

l» (l.75ft.7(N)

a.W.'WI

(.1.4(X).2(>7)

P (31.413,922)

P  (2.536.I(M)

1.272.856

(454.265)

P (42,753,169)

P  (859,(X).5)

2.622.709

8,450.80^)

P (27.110.986)

P  (i,37142ti)

l,.3IW,7'M

7,444.705

Operating income (loss) before working capital changes

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease (Increase) in asscl/s:

Financial assets at fair value through profii or loss
Receivables

Other assets

Prepayments and other curreiu assets

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities

Accounts payable & accrued c.'qtenses

Loan payable

Accrued retirement benefits payable

Other Liabilities

f (JS.521.(»04)

r

91.750.610

(I.281.CW6)

763.344

(50.000.(XX>)

2.624.985

P (33,131.43.5)

P

(1.010.867)

(258.235)

920,367

(30.000,000)

1.311492

P (32,538.656)

P

40.714

(1.908.063)

941.919

3.600,000

P (19,727,707)

P

611,398

(15.3,344)

.321.838

l.8(X).(XX)

Cash generated from (used in) operations

Interest received

Ta>ES paid

f  8J36339

l,756.7(N

(216.908)

P (62,167.678)

15.36.104

(216.908)

P (29,864,087)

859,005

(1 1.800)

P (17,698,816)

1.371.220

{!l,80())

Net cash flows from (used) in operating activities P  9.876,640 P (59,848,482) P (29,016.882) P (16,339496)

CASH FLOWS KROMINVESI ING ACTD'mEX

Adcfitions (Deductions) to:

Financial assets at FVOCI

Refundable deposits

InvestTTcnt in associates

UnrealizEd gain on fairvalue adjustments
Deferred charges

Property & equipment

P  (1.426,504)

(23,427.184)

2,319.201

1.426.503

12,394.378

P  (305,524)

6.239,716

305,522

12.440,300

P  715.745

(715.745)

{9,049410)

{121.399)

P  185.422

(185.422)

(1701.554)

(5.400)

Net cash flows from (used) in imesting activities P  (8,713,606) r  18,680,014 P  (9.170,609) P  (2,706,954)

CASH FLOWS FROM F1NAN( INC ACTIVrnES

Proceeds from issuance ofcapiial stock

Proceeds from deposit for future subscription
P P P P

Net cash flows from (used) in financing activities P P P P

Effect of foreign exchange ratechnages in cash & cash
equivalent

Cumulative translation adjusmeni

P  3.400,267

(3,661,081)

P  454465

(837,010)

P  (8,450,809)

9.610.617

f  (7,444.705)

7,900,451

NET INCREASE(DECRFASE5 IN CASH AND CASH
EOHD ALENT

Cashand cash equivalent at beginning ofthe year/quarter

P  902421

42,093.952

P (41,551413)

84,547.386

P (37,027,683)

75.029.384

P (18,590,604)

56.592,306

CASH AND CXSH BOIWALENT AT END P 42,996.172 P 42,996.172 P 38,001.702 P 38,001,701



BAS K ICN ««;V (■()RI»()lt\ 1 ION AND SI US IDIAKBN

< ONS()I.iDATH)STATEMBS,1^> OK liAN(;iN IN SKX KllOU)hHS' HQim
For Ihc period cndedJune 30,2019 and June JO. 2018

.Inn lo.liinc OuHi'lors ciuk'd.hiiir 30
2UI9 2018 2019 2018

CAPRAI. STOCK
Par value Php0 25pershare; Authorized. lO.OOO.WlO.OOOsliarc
issued and subscribed

s

2,KI5T92,71J 2.708..500,7I4 2.8I.S..3y2.7l4 2.7(I8..5(X».714

Paid-up capital at beginning oflhe year
Additional subscription

r  70J.K4X.179 P  677.125.I7<'7 70.1.K4K.I>7 677.125.179

Paid-up capital at end of the oeriotPquartcr P 703,848,179 P 677.125,179 P 7034148,179 P 677.125.179

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning ofthe year
Additional subscription

P  42.021..S<)2 P  35.617.951 P  42.021.502 P  35.617.951

Balance at end ofthe period/quarter P 42,02 ld?{)2 P 35,617,951 P 42.021,502 P 35,617,951

Revaluation increment in office condominium
liquity reserve on acquisition ofnon-controlling interest
Fair value adjustments on financial assets
Remeasurement loss on acquired retirement benefits
Cumulative translation adjustn^nt
Cumulative translation adjustment ofassociates
Retained earnings (deficit)

Balance at beginning ofthe year
Net income (loss) for the period

P  h.747.86J
(SJ.'MS.W)

2.til >9.882
1.751.''784

(X.0J5,6%)
27,544.449

(I5.8I0.7.52)
(33.103.'704)

P  17.296.833
(53.945.929)

1182,245
2.163.118
5,187.322

7.761,901
(42.167.395)

I5.747.8fi3
(53.945.929)

2.609.882
1.751.984

(8.035.696)
27.544.449

(17,458.322)
(31.456.334)

I7.29fv833
(53.^M5.929)

2.182,245
2.163.1 18
5.187.322

(8.031.832)
(26.373.6f>l)

Balance at the end of the period/quarter P  (4K,yi4.f>5(i) P  (34.405.494) f  (48.914,6.56) P  (34.40.5.493)

Total

Treasury stock (at cost)
P 682.627,578

(.V24U.iX)0)
P 651.221.225

(3.240.000)
P 682.6274578

(3.240.(X)0)
P 651,221,226

(3,240.tXX})

TOTAL ST0CKH01J)ERS* EOIHTV P 679,387,579 P 647,981,226 P 679387,579 P 647,981,226



BASIC BVERGVCORPORA riON ANDSUBSimARII-N

SCHEDlJLEOFACCOllNl>i RK EIVABIJ>i

As ofJune30,20I9

Receivablle from Panphil Aqua Cullurc Corp

Receivable from Associates

Receivable from CSR

Receivable from Stockholders

Accrued Interest Receivable

Advances to Officers & Employees

Others

P 25.123,440

8,658,335

394,753

1.718,887

269.738

415,235

1,183,866

Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts

r 37,764.253

(2,142,006)

r 35,622,247

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION ANDSUBSIDIARIES

AGING OFACXXIDNTS RECEIVABLE

As ofJune30,2019

ToUl 1 itMnlh 2-3 nXHiibs 4-6 tnoiillis
7 Moathi to

1 Venr
1-2 Years 3-5 ̂  cars

5 Years and

nbnw

Past due

accounts &

llcuH In

TRADE RECDVABLIS

1)

2)

2)

f

- -

•
-

Total trade rocriuUcs

Less Allowance fordoublfulaccuunis

P
-

- - •
-

Net trade receivaHes

NON-TRADE RBCEIVABLE5

1) Receivables fromPanphil

2) Receivables fromCSR

3) Receivables ftomstockholders

4) Receivables ftomAssociates

5) Accrued interest receivable

6) Advances to officers/enployees

7) Others

P

P  25,123.440

394.753

1.7IB.887

8.658335

260.738

415,235

1.183.866

3.428

1,033.785

203J29

43,076

1.200

3.43

6.475

4.803.0IU

66.409

48.639

4.475

:;5.120.011

2.821.539

323.520

5.412 63.426

384.850

96.881 542,931

1.718.887

469.541

-

Total non-trade receivsUes

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

f 37.764J53

2,142006

U84J19 4,932,437 28^70,482 63,426 481,731 542,931 2,188,428

2I4ZI»0

Net non-trade receivables P 3SA22347 U84.8I9 4,932,437 28,270,482 63,426 481,731 542,931 46,422

NET RECEIVABLES f 35,622347 1,284,819 28,270.482 63,426 481.731 542,931 46.422



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SliBSIDlARRN

SCHEDlILEOFACCX)lJNlT> PAYABLEAND ACC'RUIJ) ICXPI-3MSt?>

As ofJune30,20l9

Accaied Expense Payables

SSS/Philheallh/HDMF/BlR Payables

Olhers

P 5,306,964

632,555

3.817.989

P 9,757,508



ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Part I - Financial Information

Philippine Financial Reporting; Slaiulanls. Notes to Interini Financial Statements:
(SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series <>12013)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group applied for the first-time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1,2018.

•  Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based PaynienL Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations: and the accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

•  PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. Retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions.

The adoption of PFRS 9 from January 1, 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies,
particularly on the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39''s
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach, but did not
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Also, the Group's financial assets
previously classified as loans and receivables under PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at
amortized cost under PFRS 9, while the investments in debt securities and equity securities
previously classified as available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets under PAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at FVOCI under PFRS 9. The adoption of PFRS 9 did not result to changes in the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group has provided other required
information in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

•  Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1,2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first applies
PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on transition to PFRS



9. The enlily reslalcs companuivc inlbrinalion rcllccling llic overlay approach if, and only il'. ihc
entity restates comparative inlormation vnIicii applying PI-RS 9.

The amendments were not applicahic to tiie (iroup since none ofthe entities within the (iroiip have
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

PFRS 15. Revenue from i 'on/racls with ( iisiomers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that applies to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is rceogni/.ed at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recogni/.ing
revenue.

PFRS 15 supersedes PAS 1 1, Consiruction ('onlracls, PAS 18. Revenue and related Interpretations
and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts arc in the
scope of other standards. The new .standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to
contracts with their customers. The standiird also specifics the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract and the costs directl> related to fulfilling a contract. The Group adopted
PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption.

The Group undertook an analysis of the impact ofthe new revenue standard based on a review of
the contractual terms of its management services agreement and assessed that the amount and timing
of revenue recognized under PFRS 15 is the same as that under PAS 18.

Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capita! organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment
entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (a) the investment
entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes
an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.
The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property. Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for



the use of a properly does not provide evidence of a change in use. The aniendments should be
applied prospectively to changes in u.se thai occur on or after ihc beginning ol the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the aniendments. Ketrospectivc application is only permitted
if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clarincations i.ssued. the adtiption ol'these
amendments did not have any significant effect on its consolidated llnancial statements.

•  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22. Foreign ('u/rt'iicy Tmnsactions and Advance C 'on.sideraiion

The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonctary asset
or nonmonetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on
which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset ornonmonetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. Enlities
may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the
interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clariflcaiions issued, the adoption of these
interpretations did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Standards Issued but not vet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when
they become effective.

Effective Beginning on or after January I, 2019

•  Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An
entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January I,
2019. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no debt
instrument with negative compensation prepayment feature.

•  PFRS Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term
leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.



Lessees will be also required lo rcmcasurc ihe lease liability upon the oceurrence orcerlain events
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used lo determine those payments). I he lessee will generally reeogni/e the aiiRHinl
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment lo the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 Is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classillcation principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS 17.

Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard's transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2019. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial
statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncerlamry over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for ittcome taxes wlien tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

•  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

•  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty should be followed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

o Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation



The amendmenls clarify lhat. when an enlily obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including
remeasuriiig previously held interests iit the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair
value. In doing so. the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint
operation.

A party lhat participates in, but does not have joint control of. a joint operation might obtain
joint control of the joint operation in vvliieh the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business as dellned in PFRS .T The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendmenls to business combinations for which the acquisition dale is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January I.
2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after January I. 2019. with early application permitted.

These amendments are currently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future
transactions.

o Amendments to PAS 12, Income Ta.x Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income ta.\ consequences of dividends are linked more directly
to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners.
Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity aceoiciing to wiiere the entity originally recognized those past
transactions or events.

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January I, 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments are not relevant to the
Group because dividends declared by the Group do not give rise to tax obligations under the
current tax laws.

o Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of these amendments.
Effective Beginning on or after January /, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant's ability to replace rni.ssing elements, and narrow the definition
of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which pennits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.



An entity applies those amendments prospeclivcly for anninil reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments will apply to rmure business combinations ol'thc Group.

•  Amendments to PAS I, Pn'.senktfioii itj Financial Sfafcincn/s. and PAS 8. Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Dcilnition of Material

The amendments refine the dcilnition of material in PAS I and align the dellnitions used across
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding olThe existing
requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity's materiality Judgements.

An entity applies those amendments prospeclivcly for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

Effective Beginning on or after January I. 2021

•  PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective. PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4. 7'his
new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts
(i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will appK.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the
general model, supplemented by:

•  A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features
(the variable fee approach)
A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

Deferred Effectivity

•  Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Sfatemems. and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate orjoint venture. The amendments
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate orjoint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale
or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate orjoint venture.

On Januaiy 13,2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective date
of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board
completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the



simpiillcalion ofnccounting lor such inuisnciioiis niul ol" oilier uspccls of accounting lor associalcs
and joini ventures.

Siimmiiry of Significant Accounting l*oIicics

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Sialcincnts
The Group has elected to present all items ofrecogni/cd income and e.\pense in two statements: a
statement displaying components of prollt or loss (consolidated statement of income) and a second
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other comprehensive income
(OCI: consolidated statement of comprehensive income).

Current versus Noncurrenl Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position ba.sed on
current/noncuirent classification. An asset is current when it is:

•  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
•  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•  Expected to be realized within 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period; or
•  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrenl.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating c^cie:
•  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
•  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the financial reporting period; or
•  There is no unconditional right to defer the seltleinent of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the financial reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial assets at FVOCL AFS financial assets and investment properties, at fair
value at each end of the reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•  in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
•  in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions tliat market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.



The Group uses valuation techniques thai are appropriate in the circunistances anil for which sufllc ient
data are available to measure fair \alue. inaximi/ing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the llnancial statements arc

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

•  Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
•  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signilkant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
•  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated llnancial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments thai are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business at the end of the financial
reporting period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include comparison to similar investments for which market observable
prices exist and discounted cash How (DCF) analysis or other valuation models.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level in the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

An analysis of the fair values of financial assets at FVOCI and investment properties and further details
as to how they are measured are provided in Note 26.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

Financial Instruments (Prior to Adoption of PFRS 9)

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (i.e.,
the date that the Parent Company commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Initial Recognition and Measurement. The Group determines the classification of financial instruments
at initial recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every end of
the financial reporting period.



Financial instrurnciils arc rccogni/cti initialls al lair value. Dirccll) aUrihuiabIc transaction costs arc
included in the initial nicasurcmcni of all llnancial assets and nnancial liabilities, except for I'inancial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (I'VPI.).

•  FUnwcia! Assci.s. Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classilled into the following
categories: financial assets al FVPL. loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (IITM) investments,
and available-lor-sale (AFS) financial assets or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments iu
an effective hedge, as appropriate. I he classillcation depends on the purpose for vvhieli the
investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.

•  Financial LiabilUies. Al.so under PAS .>9. llnancial liabilities arc classilled as llnancial liabilities

at FVPL. derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, or as other nnancial
liabilities. The Group determines the classillcation at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at eveiy llnancial reporting date.

Financial instruments arc classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement, interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial in.strument or a
component that is a financial liability, are reporied as e.xpense.s or income. Distributions to holders
of financial instruments classified as equitv are charged directly to equity, net of any related income
tax benefits.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurcmenl of financial assets and liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

•  Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative llnancial assets with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturities tiiat are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivables. After initial measurement, sucli financial assets are subsequently measured in the
consolidated statement of financial position at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less any provision for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the loans
and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
financial reporting date or within the Parent Company's operating cycle. Otherwise, these are
classified as noncurrent assets.

•  AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets include investments in equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as AFS financial assets are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated al FVPL. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
''Net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets" account until the investment
is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified
to consolidated statement of income and removed from OCI.

The Group evaluated its AFS financial assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to



inactive markets and managcmcnfs inlention to do so signincanlly changes in the rorcsccsihic
future, the Group may elect to rcclassify these nnnncial assets in rare circumstances.

Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity. Reclassillcation to the H I'M category is permitted only when
the entity has the ability and inlention to hold the financial asset accordingly.

For a tmancia! asset reclassifled out ol lhe Al-S llnancial assets category, any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recogni/^cd in equity is amortized to the consolidated statement of income
over the remaining life of the investment using the FIR method. Any difference between the new
amortized cost and the expected cash Hows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset
using the EIR. if the asset is subseqiienily determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassifled to consolidated .statement of income.

•  Other Financial Liabilities. Issued Unancial instruments or their components which are not
designated as at FVPL are classified as other llnancial liabilities, where the substance of the
contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as a whole, the amount separately deteniiined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. Other financial liabilities are classified as
current liabilities when it is expected to be settled within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at
least 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization shall be included in
"Other income (charges) - net" in the consolidated statement of income.

Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities if settlement is to be made within 12

months from the financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

Impairment of Financial Assets (Prior to Adoption of PFRS 9)
The Group assesses, at each repotting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event'), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications thai ihe debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significani. if the



Group determines Ihiit no objective evidence of impjiirmcnt exists for individually assessed rinancial
assets, whether signillcant or not, it includes the asset in a group of llnancia! assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses lor impainoctU. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash Hows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be. recognized
are not included in a collective assessment lor impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial as.set's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial assets' original f^lR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future ca.sh
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
"Interest income" in the consolidated statement of income.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recogiiizcd. the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difllcullies of the debtor) thai the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired receivables are
derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

AFS Financial Assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination of what is
"significant" or "prolonged" requires judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more and
"prolonged" as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impaimient loss on that financial asset previously recognized in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is removed from OCl and recognized in consolidated statement of
income.

Impairment losses on equit>' investments are not reversed through consolidated statement of income
while increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original
effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as a component of
"Interest income" account in the consolidated statement of income. If, subsequently, the fair value of
a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in consolidated statement of income, the impaimient loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of income.



l-inancial Instruments (Upon Adoption oJUM'l<S Oj
A financial instruineni is any contract that gives rise to a llnancial asset ofone entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanothor eiilit).

Financial InslrumtnUs: Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measweine}//. I'iiiancia! assets arc classilied, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. I-V()C'I. and lair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPl)' on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business mi^dcl determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (I'cguiar way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e..
the date that the Group commits to piircliase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequeni measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

■  Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
■  Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
•  Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon

derecognition (equity instruments)
■  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

■  the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

■  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost includes "Cash and cash equivalents", "Receivables",
and "Refundable deposits" in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (Debt Insirmnents). The Group measures debt instruments
at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

■  The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling: and



■  The contraclual terms ofllic rmancml nsscl give rise on speciHed dates to cash flows lhal are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulslanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through (X.'l. interest income is recogni/ed in the consolidated
statement of income while foreign exchange revaluation and impainneiU losses or reversals are
recognized in the consolidated statement ofeomprehcnsive income and computed in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. ! he remaining fair value changes arc recognized in
OCI. Upon derecognilion. the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or
loss.

The Group's debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt
instruments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value thrDiifili OCI (Equity Insintments). Upon Initial recognition, the Group
can elect to classify irrevocably its equitv investments as equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI when they meet the dellnition of equity under PAS 32. Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The ciassineation is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these llnancial assets are never recycled to prollt or loss. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the consolidated statement of income when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recover}' of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its investments in unquoted equity securities under this
category.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within tiie next i 2 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the liming
of the default {a lifetime ECL).

Financial Instruments: Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FV TPL), loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instalments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and boaowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include "Accounts payable and accrued e.xpenses", "Loan payable",
"Dividends payable" and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered
by other accounting standards).



Subsequent Measuremenl - Loans ami Borrowings. This is the category most relevant to tlie (iroup.
After initial recognition, interest-i>caring loans and botTowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through llie IdR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account an\ discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the lilR. I he EIR anu>rti/ation is included as llnancc costs under the
'"Interest expense" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Derecoanition of Financial Assets and I'inancial 1 .iabilities (Prior to Adoption of PFRS 9)

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when;

•  the rights to receive cash flows from the as.set have expired:
•  the Group retains the right to leceive cash flow from the asset, but lias assumed an obligation to pay

them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement: or
•  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under a 'pass-througlE
arrangement: and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee ox er the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value
of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respectixe carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are otfset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case w ith master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.



Investments in AssocL'ilcs

An associate is an entity over which the (Jroiip has signillcnni inniiencc. Signillcant influence is the
power to participate in the llnancial and operating policy decisions of the investee. but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining signillcant innuence are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its associates are accounted lor using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the cairying
amount of the investment and is neither amoni/ed nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the
associates. Any change in other comprehensive income of those investces is presented as part of the
Group's other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are elijiiinated to the extent of the interest in the associates.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Alter application of the equity method, the Group determines wiiether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as liie difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognizes the loss in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carry ing amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and tlie fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Prepavments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before they are utilized.
This account comprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items. The prepaid
rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items are apportioned over the period covered by the
payment and charged to the appropriate accounts in consolidated statement of income when incurred.
Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than 12 months after the reporting period are
classified as current assets otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable. When VAT from sales of services (output VAT) e.xceeds VAT passed on from purchases
of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

Investment Properties
Investment properties, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Group, are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recog.nhion, investment properties are stated at fair



value, which rellecls market conditions at the reporting dale, (iains or losses arising iVoni changes in
the fair values of investment properties are included in the consolidated statement of income in the year
in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when cither they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected IVom its
disposal. Any gains or losses from dorecognition of an investment property are recognized in
consolidated statement of income in the > ear of retirement or disposal.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, other than olllce condominium, are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value.

Office condominium is carried at revalued amount less depreciation and any impairment in value
charged subsequent to the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the "Revaluation increment in office condominium" account
in the equity section of the consolidated sialeincni of financial position, net of the related deferred
income tax liability. An annual transfer from the '"Revaluation increment in office condominium"'
account to retained earnings is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost. Additionally,
accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation
increment relating to the particular asset sold is transferred to retained earnings.

The initial costs of property and equipmeiil consist of their purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
costs, are recognized in the consolidated .statement of income in the year in which costs are incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional
cost of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major overhaul costs that are capitalized as
part of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorterof their estimated
useful lives, typically the period until the next major maintenance or inspection.

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the related assets'
cost to their estimated useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation tor each category are based on the
following useful lives of related assets:

Number of Years
Machinery and equipment 10
Transportation equipment 5
Building and building improvements 15
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3
Office condominium 15

The assets' estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that
these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and
equipment.



Depreciation of property and eqiiipmcnl begins when it becomes available for use. i.e.. wlieii it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable ol" operating in the manner intended by
Eiianagcinent.

An item of propeily and equipment is derecogni/ed up<ni dispo.sal ov when no future econi>mic bencHls
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or lo.ss arising on dereeognilion of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount oflhe
item) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the item is dcrecognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

Deferred Exploration Costs

All exploration and evaluation costs incurred in connection with the patlicipalion of the Group in the
determination of technical feasibility and asses.smenl ofcommcrcial viability of an identilled resource
are capitalized and accounted for under the "successful efforts method" [determined on the basis of
each Service Contract (SC) or Geophysical Survey and pAploralion Contract]. These costs include
materials and fuel used, surveying costs, drilling costs and payments made to contractors.

Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration and
evaluation are capitalized and amortized at the start of commercial operations. All such capitalized
costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review, as well as review for indicators of
impairment at least once a year. This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract
value from the discovery. When an SC is permanently abandoned, all related capitalized exploration
costs are written-off. SCs are considered permanently abandoned ifthe SCs have expired and/or if there
are no definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

Impairment of Nonflnancial Assets

Deferred Exploration Costs. The Group assesses at each reporting period whether there is an indication
that its deferred exploration costs and project development costs may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when an annual impaimient testing for such items Is required, the Group makes an estimate
of their recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair
value less costs to sell ajid its value in use, and is determined for an individual item, unless such item
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets
or CGUs. When the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, such item is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
to be generated by such items are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

Investment Properties, Property and Ecjuipmeni and Other Noncurreni Assets. The Group assesses at
each reporting period whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, if any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
cash generating unit (CGU) are written down to their estimated recoverable amounts. The estimated
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair
value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's-length transaction
less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to v\hich the asset belongs. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in tlie consolidated statement of income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.



An assessnienl is made at each llnaneial reporliiiii dale vshellier lliere is an; indication thai previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may ha\e decreased. H siich indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously reeogni/.ed impairment lo'-s is reversed by a credit to
current operations (unless liic asset is carried at a revaluetl amount in winch case the reversal of tiie
impairment loss is credited to the revaluation increment oflhe same asset) i ) the extent that it does not
restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of" what would have bc.m determined (net of any
accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been rccogni/.ed Tor the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in consolidated staiemcnl ol" income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Alter such reversal, the amortization

charge is adjusted in luture periods to allocate the asset's revised cariy inL amount, less any residual
value, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets. The Cjroup provides provision for impairment losses on
nonflnancial prepayments and other curren! a.ssets when they can no longer be realized. The amounts
and timing of recorded expenses j'or any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or
utilized different estimates. An increase in provision lor impatrmenl losses would increase recorded
expenses and decrease prepayments and other current assets.

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The recovery is
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset
due to a recovery of an impairment loss Is recognized to the extent it docs not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss
been recognized for that asset in prior years.

impairment losses are recognized in the consoiidaicd staiemcnl of income.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the
Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and
number of shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Paid-in Capital. When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds
and the par value is credited to the "Additional paid-in capitaf account. When shares are issued for a
consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received.
In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle the liability of the Group, tliC shares shall be measured
either at the fair value ofthe shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably
determinable. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are charged
to this account.

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription. This pertains to the amount of cash and advances from
stockholder as payment for future issuance of stocks. The Group classifies a deposit for future stock
subscription as an equity instrument if it satisfies all of the following elements:

•  the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares
indicated in the contract:

•  there is BOD approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation):

•  there is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase: and
•  the application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present, the deposit for future stock subscription shall be
recognized as a liability.



Other ('omprehensive Incoine. Oilier coniprehciisivu incumc ciunpriscs items of Income aiul expense
(including ilems prcvious!> presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are
not recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with IM-RS.

Retaimd Earnin^^s. The amount included in retained earnings includes cumulative prolll or loss
attributable to the Parent C\impan\'s stockholders and reduced b> divitlends. Dividends are recognized
as a liability and deducted from equity wiien ihev arc approved by the Parent Company's iU)D.
Dividends for the period that are approved after the end of the rmaiicial reporting date are dealt with as
an event after the Unancial reporting period. Retained earnings may also include the effect of changes
in accounting policy as may be required by the accounting standard's transitional provisions.

Basic/Diluted Loss per Share

Basic Loss per Share. Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, .stock splits or reverse stock splits
during the year.

Diluted Loss per Share. Diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders ol the Parent Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for any stock dividend.s declared during the year plus weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive ordinary
shares into ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares.

Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies an identihed performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to a customer. A giK)d or service is considered to be transferred when tlie
customer obtains control. The Group determines, at contract inception, whether it will transfer control
of a promised good or service over lime. If the Group does not satisfy a performance obligation over
time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Prior to 20)8, revenue is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benetlis will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in orderio determine if it is acting
as a principal or an agent.

Interest Income. Interest income from bank deposits is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest rate method.

Dividend Income. Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Other Income. Other income, which normally includes sale of property and equipment, is recognized
as revenue when earned and received.

Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
occurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to
equity participants. Expenses are generally recognized when the services are used or the expense arises
while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial reporting date.

Retirement Benefits

The net retirement benefits liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the retirement benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any).



adjusled for any effecl of iimiling a net ticllnccl bcncni asscl to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is
the present value of any economic benel'ils aviiilable in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing bcncnts under the rcliremcni heneni plans is acliuirially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Retirement benefit costs comprise the follow ing:
•  Service cost

•  Net interest on the net retirement benelli liability or asset
•  Remeasurements of net retirement benelli liability or asscl

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or los.ses on non-routine
settlements are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income. I^ist service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts arc calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
retirement benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of lime which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net retirement benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in consolidated
statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on retirement benellt liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in whicli they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassifled to profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Remeasurements recognized in OCI after the initial adoption of Revised
PAS 19, Employee Benefils, are not closed to retained earnings account. These are retained in OCI until
full settlement of the liability.

Plan assets are assets that are iield by a long-term employee benelli fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the
Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by di.scounling expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
retirement benefit obligation, tlie measurement of the resulting retirement benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

The Group's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a retirement
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value wlien and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the financial reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of income. Management



periodically evaluales posilioiis laken in the lax rcUinis willi rcspccl (o siliialions in which applicable
tax regulations are siihjecl to inierprtialion and csiablishcs provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all
temporary differences at the financial rept)rting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for llnaneial repotling purposes. Deferred income lax liabilities are reeogni/ed
for all taxable temporaiy differences, except:

•  where the deferred income lax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss:

•  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing ol'thc reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporar\ differences w ill not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized I'or all deductible temporary differences, carryfonvard
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss cany-over (NOLCO), to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient future taxable prollls will lie a\ ailable against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward bencHts of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

•  where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporaiy difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or iiaollity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or los.s;

•  in respect ot deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporaiy differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax a.ssets is reviewed at each nnancial reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that suffleicnt future taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax a.ssets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income lax
assets are reassessed at each financial reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that sufTicient future taxable prolns w ill be available to allow the deferred income tax assets
to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is seitled, based on the lax rate and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the llnaneial reponing date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are olTsei if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Related Partv Transactions

Transactions with related parties are accounted for based on the nature and substance of the agreement,
and financial effects are included in the appropriate asset, liability, income and expense accounts.

Segment Information

The Group considers investment holding and geolhermal energy projects as its primary activities. The
Group has no geographical segmentation as the Group's operating business segments are neither
organized nor managed b> geographical segment.



Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies arc initinll) recorded in lite lunciional currency rale ruling at the dale
of the transaction. Monctaty assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arc translated at
the functional currency rale of exchange ruling at the eiul of the tlnaiicial reporting period.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates prevailing as at the dale cd" tlie initial transactions. Nonmonetary items
measured at the fair value In a foreign currencv are translated using the e.xchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. All differences are taken to "Otiier income - ncT' in the consolidated
statement of income under "Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) - net'' account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal i>r constructive) as a result of
a past event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bcnetlls will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized In the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. C.'onlingeni assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an Inflow oreconv>mic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional inlbrmation about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period (adjusting events) are rcriecicd in the Ciroiip's consolidated financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events arc iliscloscd in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements, fhe judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial
statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements, future events may occur which can cause the assumptions
used in arriving at those judgments and estimates to change. The effects of the changes will be reflected
in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably deierminable.

Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which liavc the most significant effect on amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of the Group's Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the
underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency has been determined to be the
Philippine Peso. It is the currency that mainly influences the operations of the Group.

Determination of Significant Influence over an InvestfC Company. The Group has 15% interest each in
VEPC and VINTER, which is below the 20% threshold where significant influence is presumed under
PAS 28. The Group considers its 15% investments each in VEPC and VINTER as investments in
associates as it concluded that it has significant influence over the operating and financial policies of its
investments in associates due to the follow ing:



■  representation in the BOD;
■  pailicipation in policy-making processes, iiielmling participation in decisions ahoul dividends and

other distributions: and

■  material transactions between the investorand invcstec.

Classijicaliori of Itivesfmenl I'rojH'riv. Die (iroiip classifies its land as itnestmenl properly or
owner-occupied property based on its cunenl intentions where it will be used. When the land is held
for capital appreciation or when tnanagcrnent is still undecided as to its future use. it is classified as
investment property. The land which is held for rent are elassided as investment property.

Capiialization of Exploration ami Evaliutfion (Vrs/.s. Careful Judgment of management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition rec|iiiremeiUs lor exploration and evaluation a.sscts relating to the
Group's exploration projects have been met. Capilali/.ation ofthese costs is based, to a certain extent,
on management's judgment of the degree to which the expenditure may be associated with ilnding
specific geothermal reserve. This is necessary as the economic success olThc exploration is uncertain
and may be subject to future technical problems at liic time of recognition. Judgments are based on the
information available at end of each reporting period.

Contractual Cash Flows Assessment (Appiicahie upon adoption of PFRS 9). Beginning January L
2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms to identify whether the
instrument is consistent with the concept of SPFl.

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (lor example, if there are repayments of
principal or amortization of the premium/Ji^coimi).

The most significant elements of interest w ithin a lending arrangement arc typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment
and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the
period for which the interest rate is set.
In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding, in
such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVI PL.

Evaluation of Business Model in Managing Financial Instruments (Applicable upon adoption of
PFRS9). Beginning January I, 2018. the Group determines its business model at the level that best
reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Group's
business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-insirument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

•  How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel:

•  The risks that atTect the perfomiance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and

•  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group's
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking "worst case'
or 'stress case' scenarios into account, if cash ilows after initial recognition are realized in a way that
is different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.



Estimates and AssiimpI
The estimates and undcrK ing assumpiions are rc\ icv\cd on an ongoing basis. Kcv isions to aecounting
estimates are rccogni/cd in ihc }XMiod in uhich the eslimatcs arc revised iflhc revisions alTeet only that
period, or in the period ofthe revision and riKure pcritxis ifihe revision ariecls both eurrenl and rulure
periods.

The key assumptions concerning the fulurc ami »>iher ke> stuirces o!" eslimalion uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a signilleam l isk o.l'causing a malenal adiustmem to the carrying amounts of
asset and liabilities within the next llnancial year are disenssed below;

Estiniation of Allowance for Impairmcni <ff Rccciyahlcs. The (iroup reviews its receivables at eiicli
reporting date to assess the adequacy oJ the allowance lor impairment. In particular. Judgment by
management is required in the eslimalion of the amount and liming of future cash flows when
determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates arc based on laclors such as, but not limited
to. the length of the Group's relationship with ihe customer, customer's payment behavior and other
known market factors.

Estimation of Provision for Expected Credit Losses (Upon Adoption of PERS 9). The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
each counterparty.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic

conditions and ECLs is a signitlcant e.slimate. i he amouni of LCLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and ot forecast economic conditions. 1 he Group's liisioricai credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may ai.so not be represeiiiaiive ot customer's actual default in the
future. The information about the ECL on the Group's receivables is disclosed In Note 27.

Impairment ofAFS Financial Assets. I he Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is '"significant" or '•prolonged" requires
judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more of liie cost and "prolonged" as greater than
12 months for quoted equity securities.

Revaluation of Office Condominium and Investment Properties. The Group carries its investment
properties at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income,
and carries its office condominium at revalued amoum wiih changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group engaged an external appraiser to assess the fair
value of its investment properties as at December 31. 20! 8.

For investment properties, a valuation methodology based on market approach was used, which is a
comparative approach that considers the sales of similar or substitute assets and related market data and
establishes a value estimate by processes invoK ing comparison. In addition, it measures the office
condominium at revalued amount, with changes in tair value oeing recognized in OCI. The market
approach was used for the office condominium, which provides an indication of value by comparing
the subject asset with identical or similar assets for which price information is available.

Impairment of Property and Eijuipmenf. The Group as^es.ses impairment on property and equipment
recorded at cost whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carry ing amount of these
assets may not be recoverable. 1 he factor.s that the Group considers impoitam which could trigger an



impairment review include the Ibilow ing:

•  significant underperfonnancc rolnlivc lo cNpccted hisUnical or projcclcd luUirc operating results;
•  significant changes in the manner oi'use ol'ihe ueiiuirecl assets or the stra(eg\ lor overall business:

and

•  significant negative industry or eeonoinie trends.

As at December 31,2018 and 2017. the Group a.sscssed that there were no impairment indicators on its
property and equipment.

Inipairniejit of Inve.s/nwnfs in Associala. The (Iroup determines whether there is ohjcctivc evidence that
the investments in the associate is impaired, iriiierc is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the rect)vcrable amount of the associate and its carrying value,
and then recognizes the loss in the consolidated statement ol income.

Impairmenl and Write-off of Deferred Kxpion/tion ( The Group assesses impairntenl on deferred
exploration costs when facts and ciicumslanccs suggest that llie carrying amount of the asset may
exceed its recoverable amount. Until the Group has sufficient data lo determine technical feasibility
and commercial viability, deferred charges need not be assessed for impairment.

Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 6,
Exploration for and Evaluation ofMineral ReMJurces. arc as lollovvs:

•  the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the specific area has expired or will expire
in the near future and is not expected lo be renewed;

•  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned:

•  exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discovery
of commercially viable quantities of minenil rcsouree.s and the entilv has decided to discontinue
such activities in the specific area: and

•  sufficient data exist lo indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploratiori and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in Ail! from
successful development or by sale.

For deferred exploration costs, impairment is recognized when a SC where the Group has participating
interest is permanently abandoned. Fuliiiv eveiUs could cause the Group to conclude that these assets
are impaired.

Estimation of Retirement Benefits. 'Die cost of defined benefit pension plan as well as the present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions which include die determination of the discount rates, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency In which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined beneilt obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available morlalily tables for the specific country and is modified
accordingly with estimates of moiialitv' improvements.

Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets. Deferred income lax assets are recognized for all
temporary deductible differences lo the extent that ii is probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Management has



determined based on business foreensi ol succcedinii years iliiil ihere Is no sunicicnt i'uture laxtiblc
profits against which the dcrerred income tax assets will he uiili/ed except for the deferred income lax
assets related to the provision for impairment loss and some purl ion ofNt )l .CO and MCIT.

Determination oj Fair Value oj Investmem ProiH'rlies. I he best ev idence of fair value is currenl prices
in an active market for similar lease and olhcr contracls. In ihc absence of such information, the (iroiip
determines the amount within a range of reasonable lair value estimates. In making its judgment, the
Group considers information from variety of sources including;

•  current prices in an active market for properties of ditTcrenl nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to rcllecl those differences;

•  recent prices of similar propeilies in less active markets, with hdjustmenis to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dale of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

•  discounted cash flow (DCF) projections based on reliable c.siimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from e.xtemal evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition and using
discount rates liiat reflect current market assessments of the uncertainly in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.


